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CEQO’s Statement
1T AR 5 B

It is with great delight that | present the annual report of Tai United
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
(the "Group”)) and its audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

2018 has been a tough year for market participants in various
investment markets across the globe. Indexes of stock markets
worldwide including Dow Jones, Nasdaq and the Hangseng have
posted disappointing yearly returns due to slowing global growth
and market volatility fuelled by political turmoil; the housing
market of the United Kingdom (“UK") has lacked impetus amid
uncertainty caused by Brexit and prospective interest rate rises.
Commodities-trading market has remained quite volatile with
the prices of some commodities like gold and oil remaining more
unstable than others. Participating in many of these markets,
various business segments of the Group inevitably suffered certain
loss during the year. Having decisively adopt a prudent approach
at the early stage of this global uncertainties, the Group has
suppressed the impacts to a reasonable level and successfully
reshuffled the asset portfolio by disposing high risk assets to
prevent possible future loss. The Group’s financial positions are
therefore maintained healthily with enhanced corporate resilience
to any unexpected downturn, while reserving sufficient internal
resources for future investment opportunities.

Despite there was a change in controlling shareholders in April
2018, the Group was continuing actively to explore any potential
business opportunities and seek sustainable development with
their support and trust.

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”
or the “Directors”), | would like to take this opportunity to express
our sincere gratitude to the management for their contribution to
the Group and to all staff for their relentless support to the Group’s
development.

Chen Weisong
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E W AT

BUSINESS REVIEW e

To better reflect the Group’s latest business strategy and AR RMAEENSHEERE L EE R
operations, the business segments have been regrouped from  Z— \&F » E¥B 5 BB EEFHHEETME - BIG)
seven to four in 2018, namely, (i) financial services and asset & RRELEEESE : (\HRLEEREZ S : (i)
management; (i) commodity and medical equipment trading; (i) ¥R E : K(v)FRNMERIRER o
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property investment; and (iv) mining and exploitation of natural
resources.

(1) Financial Services and Asset Management

Financial Services

The Group's revenue generated from financial services
business for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$134
million, representing a decrease of 43% as compared to
last year. In which of such revenue, over 98%, i.e. HK$131
million (2017: HK$217 million) was derived from the
effective interest income from the loan note investment. This
revenue recorded a decrease as there was an early partial
repayment of the outstanding principal amount of the loan
note receivable during the second and third quarters of
2018 while the remaining outstanding principal amount has
been repaid in December 2018. Also as the result of the
Company disposed of 67% controlling interest in Best Future
Investments Limited (“Best Future”) in January 2018, the
results of the securities brokerage and asset management
business were not consolidated into the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company subsequently. Details
of which were set out in notes 50(d) and 50(e) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the paragraph headed
“Material Disposals” of this annual report. Nevertheless, the
overall performance of this business remained stable and
recorded a profit of HK$86 million which was the same as
last year.

Distressed Debt Assets Management

Our onshore professional team has been proactively tapping
into the value gap of distressed debt assets in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”), building up various
investment channels and acquired quality distressed bank
loan portfolio strategically through public tenders, in a bid
to maximise its overall revenues by integrating features
of individual debtor and collaterals for different disposal
methods.

(1) EREBREEER

ERR%

RBE_Z—N\F+_A=+—BHIL&EE "
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BT DT

Throughout this financial year, the Group has reshuffled the
investment portfolios of and realised certain capital gain from
its various investments including distressed debt assets, with
a view to maximising the returns to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and carrying out better risk
management. Since commencing the distressed debt assets
management in April 2016, the Group has recovered from
the sale of distressed assets investment of approximately
HK$389 million and HK$449 million for the nine months
ended 31 December 2016 and for the year ended 31
December 2017. Notwithstanding that the performance
of this business was satisfactory in the previous years, the
macro-economic environment in midst of the trade war
between the United States (“US”) and China has becoming
increasingly uncertain. Accordingly, the Board would consider
to realise the distressed debt assets held in stock whenever
there was any opportunity and restore the financial position
of the Group in a timely and appropriate manner. As a result,
the distressed debt assets held by the Group measured at fair
value decreased to HK$10 million as at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of 98%, from HK$447 million of the
end of last year. The net investment gains of Distressed Debt
Asset Management decreased from HK$81 million of 2017
to net investment losses of HK$13 million due to a fall in
asset price under concerns over global economic slowdown,
and the fact that the Group has recorded a loss in its disposal
of certain distressed assets as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 September 2018. Accordingly, the
results of this business was decreased by HK$87 million to a
loss of HK$31 million for the year as compared to a gain of
HK$56 million of last year.

Securities Investment

Stock markets of Mainland China and Hong Kong were
volatile in 2018 and remained turbulent throughout the
year as the intensified trade dispute possibly exacerbated
the capital outflow and currency depreciation. Against this
backdrop of global uncertainties, the Group has adopted a
prudent approach on maintaining its investments through
decreasing the size of investment portfolios, in order to
bolster corporate resilience against any possible issues and
threats arising from international crisis. During the reporting
year, the change in fair value of financial assets held-for-
trading decreased from a gain of HK$157 million in 2017 to
a loss of HK$173 million, and resulting in the Group recorded
substantial losses of HK$234 million arising from trading
securities business, comparing to a gain of 117 million for last
year. As at the end of the year, the Group did not hold any
listed equity securities investment (2017: HK$2,245 million).
Details of the Group’s significant investments as at the year
ended 31 December 2017 were set out on the Company’s
announcement dated 4 September 2018.

RAMRFEE  ALBEEHEZSEKRE (B
FREBEE)MKREMEGETEH  TER
ETEARZ  UHARQRBRRE (TRER]
BRmgADR  THETEERAREE - 5=
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BILRAOEEB T - BEMBEEBRBE
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BB T ESEMRBTHEA - Bt EF
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WEE W R E R AN E B
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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(2)

On 26 June 2018, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Solis Capital Limited (“Solis
Capital”), an associate (as defined under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
which is wholly-owned by Satinu Resources Group Ltd.
(“Satinu”), the controlling Shareholder in relation to the
proposed disposal of shares of The Hongkong and Shanghai
Hotels, Limited ("HSH") held by the Group. Details of which
are set out in the paragraph headed “Material disposals”.

Commodity and Medical Equipment
Trading

Commodity Trading

2018 proved to be another year of mixed fortunes for the
oil and gas industry-oil price rose and crashed in the year. In
the first half year, pundits and market participants explained
that the major factors in oil prices going above $70 included
surprise announcement of the sanctions of US on Iran, the
possibility for market tightening, and an acceleration in
the decline of Venezuelan production. However, the price
suddenly plummeted in the fourth quarter due to expectation
on excessive supply of oil based on the initial decision by
the Saudis, Russians and others to offset potential losses of
Iranian oil, along with the Trump Administration’s granting
of waivers to major Iranian customers, and unexpectedly
strong rise of US shale oil production. The management of
the Group decided to adopt a more prudent approach in this
extremely volatile market, leading to a significant decrease in
both trading volume and transactions. As a result, revenue
generated from commodity trading amounted to HK$4,045
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing
a decrease of 62% over last year of HK$10,617 million. The
commodity trading business recorded a loss of HK$11 million,
comparing to a gain of HK$33 million last year, which was
primarily attributable to the unexpected fluctuation in oil
price and substantial decrease in trading activities.

Medical Equipment Trading

The revenue contribution from medical equipment trading
was HK$40 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of 82% as compared to the year of
2017. In spite of encouraging growth in income, this business
recorded a loss of HK$0.1 million as the result of the erosion
by rising cost in the reporting year.

(2)

RZE-NFRAZ+/A  KAQFE HSolis
Capital Limited ([ Solis Capital | * — iz i 4%
X &) ¥ % f% R Satinu Resources Group Ltd.
(fSatmuJ)zé%’&ﬁE’JH‘év%}\i)(E%ﬁ(%
BEERSMBERAR (B FES LM
ﬁ%ﬁtmﬁ%ﬁ AIVEMARBREHERE
EREABLEXNBEERAR([EELE
KEBEEDORDOEE R - BRAFBEERHR
TXIEAHE]—RK -

AmEkEREREES

BmES

—E-N\FRAEBARAATEREZRE
BREEEHR LR BN —F £ L35
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(3)

(4)

Property Investment

The Group operated its property investment business in
Hangzhou, the PRC, Hong Kong and London, the UK, in
order to seize the market development opportunities of
real estate in major developed regions both onshore and
offshore, benefit from the long-term rental returns and asset
appreciation, and enhance the diversity and stability of the
Group’s profit.

The revenue generated from property investment for the year
ended 31 December 2018 decreased 27% to HK$95 million,
as compared to HK$130 million of last year. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in property rental
income as a result of the disposal of an investment property
in UK in September 2017. Furthermore, a loss of HK$125
million arising from charged in fair value for the Group’s
investment properties in UK was recognised based on the
valuation reports of investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2018.

During the reporting year, the Group proceeded two major
transactions, which are the disposal of property holding
companies with the principal assets of properties in Hong
Kong and Hangzhou, the PRC. Details of these disposals are
set out in the paragraph headed “Material disposals”.

Mining and Exploitation of Natural
Resources

Currently, the Group holds four mining right licences (the
“Mining Rights”) of three tungsten projects in Mongolia.

The Group completed the acquisition of the Mining Rights
on 31 December 2009 by way of acquiring the entire
issued share capital of the ultimate holding companies of
the Mining Rights, namely, Prolific Rich Limited and Grand
Shining Limited at an aggregate acquisition cost of HK$940
million. The acquisition cost was satisfied by (i) cash payment
of HK$102 million; (ii) the issue of the promissory notes in
the principal amount of HK$23 million; and (iii) issue of the
2,716,666,666 convertible preference shares of the Company
in the principal amount of HK$815 million. Details of which
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 5
June 2009, 23 July 2009 and 29 September 2009 and the
Company’s circular dated 31 October 2009.

(3)

(4)
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To assist the then management of the Company to conduct
the impairment testing on the Mining Rights, the then
management of the Company engaged SRK Consulting
(Australasia) Pty Ltd (“SRK"), an independent qualified
mineral technical adviser, to prepare an updated resource
estimation technical report under the Australasian Code for
Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserves (“JORC Code"”) in 2017. The first phase of such
resource estimation technical report (“Updated Estimation
Report”) was made available to the management of the
Group in February 2019.

Based on the findings of the Updated Estimation Report,
the Group engaged a PRC professional firm to update the
feasibility study report and also engaged Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporation Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an
independent qualified professional valuer, to perform the
valuation related to the Mining Rights at 31 December 2018
based on the Updated Estimation Report and the latest
feasibility study report.

According to the Updated Technical Report (which was
prepared in accordance with JORC Code, which the Directors
believe the standards and the requirements for sampling
are different from those adopted by & 28 & 5 + b & K fx
(unofficial translation as Liaoning Province No. 7 Geological
Brigade) in preparing the then technical reports (“Previous
Technical Reports”) in connection with the acquisitions
of the Mining Rights by the Group), the average grades of
the Mining Rights drop and this mainly results in a lower
valuation. With reference to the valuation of the Mining
Rights performed by JLL and the information available to the
Group up to the date of this report, the Directors were of the
view that impairment losses of the mining rights amounting
to approximately HK$110 million (2017: Nil) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 need to be recognised for the
cash-generating unit that holds the Mining Rights (“Mining
CGU") in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as the recoverable amount
of the Mining CGU was lower than (2017: higher than) its
carrying amount.

Further details of the impairment losses on the Mining CGU
are set out in notes 22 and 23 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements contained in this annual report.

RO ARTEREREBETHEERRE
BAH ARAFERERBER_Z—LFZ
H8 %8 <7 & & 18 7% 2 £l B B SRK Consulting
(Australasia) Pty Ltd ([ SRK ]) 1R #& 2 M &)
RER BEERRBABE2RERA
(Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration
Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves
(TJORCHAI)) R BFH ERMMERMERE -
AEBEEENR_Z—NF_AEREH
BREERMTREE M EHEERSE]) -

AEEZRE-—RTPBEEXQREREHEE
BENGRUEHATERRES  TRE
—HBBUAEREXAEMTEBITEREF
mRFBHERAR ((MEBWT])  EN&EHN
HERERSHATERARREERN _-F
—NF+ZA=+t—BETREEERGE -

REBESEFEERE (HRIFIORCHAGRE) -
EERAEZBEZEMB K EAEBRUK
BREENSEAEZEEAFELHWEABRERE
BE SRR E (AR MRE]) B
A RERZFHERENTR X2
BHSEGE - KE2E MW T 2 REREMS
BERASEEEAREBRASHNER &
ERAERBE_T—\E+=-_A=+—H
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Details of the valuation

Valuation Method

There is no change in the valuation method adopted for the
valuations as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 as
both were conducted by discounted cash flow method under
income approach.

Key Inputs

Average grades of the Mining Rights

The following is a comparison table in respect of the average

grades of the Mining Rights from the Updated Estimation Report
and the Previous Technical Reports:

BEFE

151875 %

AR -2 N\F+_A=+—HE-_Z—+F
T A=+ —BEEEBRAEZETRRE SR
T MZEMEFERGEMEBZHBES A
Hmag o

TEBHAEE

HEE 2 FHER
ToRBEBEFHERS KA RMHRE ARE
2 FH SR ERERE

Average Grade

EHER
As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017

—2-\F+t=-A=t+-H —B—tF+=-A=+-H

(which is based on the (which is based on the

Mining License Updated Estimation Report) Previous Technical Reports)

RIERERT AR

(BREFIEEHEEL) (BREFIRMBE EL)

5518A & 11027A
11863A
3506A

1.1% 2.7%
7.5% 15.0%
0.6% 2.5%
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Other key assumptions in the valuation EEMERAZ K 2 /RR

The other key inputs in the valuation include commodity price, {HEMRAZEMEIZEHARIERIEERES -
price growth and discount rate. There is no significant change  EREERINEE - BEZSHABIE Z EZEW
in the basis of determining these inputs and JLL merely updated EEAEZHLHFEHTEENTSEHE LS
these inputs based on the market changes. The following is a B AZUE - N7 AEEXEETER 2 it A
comparison table in respect of the aforementioned inputs applied — EUE &I L ERRAS ¢

in the valuation of the Mining Rights:

Parameter Input Basis Input  Basis
2% BWABE EX BWARE EX
As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017
R=ZB-NF+=A=+—H R=ZB—tF+=-A=+—H
Adopted price on 65% US$14,030  With reference to the US$12,778  With reference to the
tungsten concentrate per ton market price in 2018 per ton market price in 2017
M 65% IWWIFWMRABHEL  FHE14030 2R_Z—N\EWME BNE12,778 2R _ZT—tFmE
£ eV
Price growth (%) 0.6%  Compound annual growth 2.7%  Compound annual growth
rate of the market price rate of the market price
from 2006 from 2006
BRIE R (%) 0.6% BZZZERFEMBER 27% BZZEZERFEMBER
ZEAFERE ZEAFERE
Discount rate (%) 22.0% Based on weighted average 21.5% Based on weighted average
cost of capital cost of capital
il = (%) 220% EREE Z T HEAR 21.5% HRED 2 IREFHGRAE
Future plan for development of the Mining Rights RIBE R R Z A KB

As to the future development of the Mining Rights, the Group ~ BLERBEZ RAKEEM T - NEBERAEEE
is in the process of identifying suitable independent third parties — TTHRIEE 2 IR O BIEBYL S = FHFEAELHE -
for continuing potential cooperative arrangements as to carry out

exploitation of the Mining Rights.
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Material disposals

Disposal of 100% equity interest in Best Future

On 17 January 2018, the Company entered into agreements with
two independent purchasers respectively, pursuant to which, the
Company had conditionally agreed to sell each of the 33.5%
equity interest in Best Future to the two independent purchasers
at a cash consideration of approximately HK$52.5 million
respectively. Upon their completions on 18 January 2018, the
results of the BF Disposal Group (as defined below) was accounted
for as an associated company, and its financial statements were
not consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

As at the date of the agreements, Best Future and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries (the “BF Disposal Group”) were principally
engaged in (i) Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"); and (ii) money lending
business. The Company subsequently disposed of the remaining
33% equity interest in Best Future on 1 June 2018 to another
independent third party and did not hold any equity interest in the
BF Disposal Group as at 31 December 2018.

Disposal of Excel Fine Holdings Limited (“Excel Fine”)

On 21 September 2017, Tai Infinite Holdings Group Limited
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, “Tai Infinite
Holdings”), as the vendor, and the Company (as the vendor’s
guarantor) entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement
(the “Provisional SPA") with Profit Gate International Limited
(“Profit Gate”), pursuant to which Tai Infinite Holdings has
conditionally agreed to sell, and Profit Gate has conditionally
agreed to acquire, (i) the sale shares, representing the entire issued
share capital of Excel Fine, and (i) the sale debts, representing the
entire shareholder’s loan owed by Excel Fine to Tai Infinite Holdings
as at completion date i.e. 28 March 2018, at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$738 million. The respective formal sale and
purchase agreement (“Excel Fine FA"”) was signed on 23 October
2017. Excel Fine is a property holding company and its principal
asset is the Property in Hong Kong, i.e. the entire 79th floor of
The Center, a high rise office tower in Central, Hong Kong. All
the conditions precedents as set out in the Provisional SPA and
Excel Fine FA have been fulfilled and the disposal of Excel Fine was
completed on 28 March 2018 (the “Excel Fine Completion”).

BERHE
HEEL100% KE

RZZE—NF—A++tH ARADHERZE
NERENBE B ARRBEGERES R
HEEB3I3S%BRETRBELES ReNE
DA BERSEEETL BEEBEESEN
T-NF-A+N\BEKE EHHEEE(T&
BTIOMEEIERB L RARIAR  EFBKERE
TEHEARNANREMBRERLGEAR -

RipZBEH E8RE2ERANNBAR ([
BHERE])  TERRFEBENBBEOFSTTE
Bk REED ([BERAERG D IATE 158 (E
HR5F) F2HEHERNRZ) RFH(BEE
B)XREEY RBEER - AREIERN
E-NFRA-BEHRTHIBRESEEETS
—BYE=71 R-_TE-\F+-_A=+—RHY
ERFEEAERDERENIARE-

4 & Excel Fine Holdings Limited ([ Excel Fine_)

RZZE—+tFNLA-+—H AREBREEFR
REl(ARRZ2EMBRAR  [KEER] EA
BERRARNF (ERBEAZERA) BEHERKE
BAR (KB VHREESH:E ((REEER
B B AZZEREERHGERELE MK
HE A KR EIEE () $HE RMD (F8E 7 Excel Fine
B2 E EHITIRA) - K (i) S JE B (58 & 7 Excel
FineRE BB (B —E—N\F=A=-1+/\B) &
RABEBRNEZHBRRER)  #IHEREA738
BEAT BHNEIREERZER_T—tF+
A=+ =H%5%T ([ Excel Fine ExX %3 ]) - Excel
Fine 5 —HMERA QAR HXTEELAEEME
BIMIRBBFRZESERDAKNERIRPLTIE
2E) - NERE B S 35 M Excel Fine EX s P &
IR FT A o R G B E R - M & Excel Fine
MZSER_ZT—N\F=A=-+N\B5EMK ([Excel
Fine5E % ]) °
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Upon the Excel Fine Completion, Excel Fine ceased to be an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the Company ceased
to have any interest in Excel Fine. The financial results of Excel Fine
were not consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Company. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 21 September 2017 and 28 March 2018.

Disposal of shares in HSH

On 26 June 2018, the Company and Solis Capital entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “HSH SPA") in relation to
the proposed disposal (the “HSH Disposal”) by the Company to
Solis Capital of 184,360,714 shares (the “HSH Sale Shares”) of
HSH (a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 45)) at the consideration of HK$12.80 per
share or HK$2,359,817,139.20 in aggregate. The HSH Sale Shares
represented approximately 11.47% of the issued share capital
of HSH as at the date of the HSH SPA. Given that Solis Capital
is an associate of the Company, the HSH Disposal constituted a
major transaction and a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, it was
subject to the approval of the independent Shareholders. On 21
August 2018, a special general meeting (the “SGM") was held
and a resolution to approve the Disposal was passed. After the
completion of the HSH Disposal which took place on 22 August
2018, the Group has not held any HSH shares.

At the same SGM, the independent Shareholders had approved
the recommendation of special dividend of 28.58 HK cents per
share of the Company (the “Special Dividend") in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$1,500,456,000 to be paid in cash
out of the net proceeds from the HSH Disposal.

After the repayment of the margin financing facilities relating
to the HSH Sales Shares of approximately HK$586 million and
the payment of Special Dividend of approximately HK$1,500
million, the remaining net proceeds from the HSH Disposal of
approximately HK$274 million was used as intended.

Details of the HSH Disposal were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 26 June 2018, 18 July 2018, 30 July 2018
and 21 August 2018 and the Company’s circular dated 31 July
2018.

M Excel Fine 52X 7% * Excel Fine 2 N A& D & HY
MEE2EWBAR MAREINE NEE A Excel
Fine M (L {a] # 25 © Excel Fine 2 BA IS ¥4 Jf ~ & &
AABMBEETBREEAEAR - BREFBYI
RARRRZBE—tFENLA=-FT—BE=-Z—N
FZA-+N\HHRAER -

HEEE FEXTERG

RZE—-NFRNAZ+NHE KA a HESolis
Capital ;I —HH EEWHZ ((BERALEXEEEE
W&l - RA B AR R ERZ M Solis Capital i &
184,360,714 &% LB XBJE (—MR BBt
M2 BRAR  ERORERMERET (KH
REE:45) By (BB LEEBEESERM ) (&
BLEAEEHESEE])  REASRKRI12.80B T
348118 2,359,817,139.208 7T - &8 HEAEIE
FERNBERESLEXNBEEEHZEAEN
BT ANA11.47% © 7 Solis Capital &7Z8 A F)
ZHMBALT O BREBELITRIFUVRELAE F
BEERNBEHETEEXNARRAZ—EHEER
Sh—TBEBERS FAEESIBIRERE -
RZE—NFNAZ+—HB ARARERITRE
BFRAS ((RELIXRE]) B AHEEEN
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EEETMES LBXEEZBG -

RE—BREFINAE L BYRRD I EERIK
RN AFRR 28.58 BILAVF AR E ([HBIRED) -
484X /1,500,456,00058 7T IBIAIR© B FE
EERBENEEEMEFTOEEAEP I -

REEFBERLERBERFERNASCHEE
ABITHRE B E M F491,500 B BB TTHY B
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Disposal of Hangzhou Tai Rong Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
(“Hangzhou Tai Rong”)

On 15 June 2018, the Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU") with an independent third party (the
“Proposed Purchaser”), pursuant to which, it was proposed
that the Company would sell its all indirect interest in the issued
shares of Hangzhou Tai Rong and the entire shareholder’s loan
owing by Hangzhou Tai Rong to its owner and also an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Xizang Hongrong
Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (“Xizang Hongrong"”), to the
Proposed Purchaser. Hangzhou Tai Rong is a property holding
company and holding a property located at No. 555 Fenggi Road,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC under the MOU. The
formal agreement in respect of the disposal (“Tai Rong FA") was
signed between Xizang Hongrong, Hongrong Investment Holdings
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*, Hangzhou Tai Rong and another third party
purchaser, which is a nominee of the Purposed Purchaser on 31
August 2018 at the consideration of RMB1,550 million (the “Tai
Rong Disposal”). Given that the Tai Rong Disposal constituted a
major transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, it would
be subjected to the reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval requirements. On the same date of signing Tai Rong FA,
the Company’s substantial shareholders had given their written
consents on approving the Tai Rong Disposal, no special general
meeting of the Company was convened. As at the date of this
annual report, the completion of the Tai Rong Disposal has not yet
taken place.

Details of the Tai Rong Disposal were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 15 June 2018, 28 August 2018 and 31
August 2018, and the Company’s circular dated 26 October 2018.

HEVMAKEEEEFRL A ([HiMAH])

MN_EBE—NEXNA+RA ARBE—-ZBILE
—H(BBERDITUnBES ((RRES
1) B ARRBEEERINAREE BT
&t a2 E R KM REEREEER A ()
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A MR R BT & N T B 555 5T R P 3 o
BRLENEX S (AREXBR) R=F
—N\FENA=Z+—HHARER  ZriEER
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REME=—FEFHL REAARB155088
TARHESE]) HRAEHEEEER L
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Disposal of Distressed Assets

On 27 September 2018, three indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, namely Xizang Hongrong, Zhejiang Tai Rong Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* and Hangzhou Hong Nong Investment
Management Limited Partnership*, collectively as the Distressed
Assets Vendors, and Hangzhou Fu Te Asset Management Limited*,
as the Distressed Assets Purchaser, entered into the disposal
agreement, pursuant to which, the Distressed Assets Vendors have
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Distressed Assets Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase, the distressed assets being
all rights in respect of 31 non-performing debts and the rights to
enforce the collaterals in connection with certain non-performing
debts due from the companies located mainly in Cixi, Ningbo and
Shaoxing, Zhejiang Province, the PRC (the “Distressed Assets”),
for the consideration of RMB266,450,000. The disposal of the
Distressed Assets was completed in December 2018.

Details of which were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 27 September 2018.

* The English translation of the Chinese names denoted in this section
is for illustration purpose only.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's consolidated net asset was
HK$3,373 million, representing a decrease of HK$1,810 million as
compared to that of HK$5,183 million as at 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has 5,250,019,852 shares
of HK$0.05 each in issue and total equity attributable to the
owners of the Company was approximately HK$3,370 million (31
December 2017: HK$5,180 million).

There was no movement on the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank balances and cash was
HK$1,168 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,381 million), current
assets of HK$3,140 million (31 December 2017: HK$7,827 million),
current liabilities of HK$934 million (31 December 2017: HK$5,141
million). The current ratio was 3.36 times ™o (31 December 2017:
1.52 times). As at the end of this year, the net current assets of
the Group were HK$2,206 million (31 December 2017: HK$2,686
million).

As at 31 December 2018, the total debt financing of the Group
was approximately HK$427 million (31 December 2017: HK$2,825
million), which all was the current debt financing (31 December
2017: HK$2,204 million), and no non-current debt financing for
the reporting year (31 December 2017: HK$621 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a negative net
debt Mere 2 of HK$618 million (31 December 2017: net debt of
HK$1,566 million) and the total equity was HK$3,373 million (31
December 2017: HK$5,183 million). The gearing ratio ™% as at
the end of the year was 0.13 (31 December 2017: 0.57).

Note 1: Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities

Note 2: Net debt = Borrowings + Loan from Tai An Capital — Bank balances
and cash

Note 3: Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing borrowings/Total equity

The objective of the Group’s funding and treasury management
activities is to ensure a sufficient liquidity to meet operation needs
and various investment plans.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material capital
commitments and was not engaged in any future plans concerning
major investment or acquisition of capital assets (31 December
2017: nil).

Charges on group assets

Details were set out in note 51 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of this annual report.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2017: nil).
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Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s financial statements are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD"), while the Group is conducting business mainly in
HKD, United States dollars (“USD"), Great British Pound (“GBP")
and Renminbi (“RMB"). Since exchange rates of HKD is pegged
to USD, there is no material exchange risk in respect of USD assets
and transactions. However, the assets, liabilities and transactions
of the UK and the Mainland China subsidiaries of the Group are
mainly denominated in GBP and RMB respectively, there were
exchange risks during financial settlement at the end of reporting
period in this regard.

The Group has implemented policies and guidelines in relation to
foreign exchange risk management. Meanwhile, the subsidiaries in
the UK and the PRC are able to generate sufficient income to deal
with their local currency expenses; therefore, the management
of the Company considered that the Group’s exposure to the
potential foreign currency risk was relatively limited.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 69 (31 December 2017:
145) employees, of whom approximately 44.9% (31 December
2017: 53.8%) were located in Hong Kong and the rest were
located in the PRC and overseas.

The Group recognises the employees as the key element that
contributes to the Group’s success. The Group’s remuneration
policies are formulated based on the individual performance and
the salaries trends in various regions, which will be reviewed
annually.

Apart from mandatory provident fund and medical insurance, the
Company has adopted a share option scheme under which share
options may also award to the Directors and eligible employees
as an incentive with reference to the assessment of individual
performance. The Board believes that the Group maintains an
admirable relationship with the employees.

Further details of the share option scheme are set out to the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in note 52 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.
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DIVIDENDS

On 9 July 2018, the Board had recommended a special dividend
of 28.58 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: nil), amounting to approximately HK$1,500,456,000
in aggregate. The Special Dividend was conditional upon (i)
completion of the HSH Disposal and receipt of the consideration
of the HSH Sale Shares; and (i) the approval of the Shareholders at
the SGM. On 21 August 2018, the resolution of declaration of the
Special Dividend was approved at the SGM. The Special Dividend
was payable on 18 September 2018 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the registers of members of the Company on 28
August 2018.

Details of the Special Dividend were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 26 June 2018, 9 July 2018, 30 July 2018
and 21 August 2018 and the Company’s circular dated 31 July
2018.

Given that the Group's operating cash flow remains strong,
the Board considers to generate Shareholder returns by way of
distribution of a portion of the Company’s contributable reserves in
form of cash as dividends in accordance with the dividend policy of
the Company adopted on 31 December 2018 and the bye-laws of
the Company (“Bye-laws”) .

The Board has recommended the declaration of second special
dividend in lieu of the final dividend of 20 HK cents per share
of the Company (“Share”) (the “Second Special Dividend”)
for the year 31 December 2018, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at a special general meeting (2019 SGM"), in an
aggregate amount of payment of approximately HK$1,050 million
(2017 interim dividend: 1.81 HK cents per Share and 2017 final
dividend: nil). The payment of Second Special Dividend will be
paid to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on a record date which will be
announced by the Company in due course. Together with the
distribution of the Special Dividend on 19 September 2018, the
total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 will be 48.58
HK cents (2017: 1.81 HK cents).
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PROSPECTS

The outlook for businesses in 2019 is markedly more reserved as
trade dispute between United States and its major trading partners
show no signs of cooling and new conflicts in the Middle East
represent heightened risks to the global economy. The global
economic growth forecasts have been revised downward, by
International Monetary Fund in the World Economic Outlook
Update of January 2019, to grow at 3.5 percent in 2019 and
3.6 percent in 2020, 0.2 and 0.1 percentage point below last
October’s projections. As higher uncertainties and greater volatility
in all investment markets become new normal, the Company will
continue to adopt a prudent approach in establishing our business
strategy and investments portfolio to enhance corporate resilience
against possible negative impacts.

Although faced with these economic headwinds, the industry
environment where the Group operates is still faced with both
challenges and opportunities. The Group will seize market
opportunities brought by national policies, continue to consolidate
the development results of each business segment, optimise
assets allocation, reinforce internal control management and build
its core competitiveness, aiming to achieve sustainable business
development and bring continuous valuable returns to the
Shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors

% BB

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Weisong (“Mr. Chen"), aged 39, is the chief executive
officer (“CEO") and the executive Director of the Company since
27 October 2017. He also serves as senior vice president of the
Company and the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He
was the executive Director from 22 June 2016 to 25 April 2017
and the chief financial officer of the Company from 15 February
2016 to 25 April 2017.

Mr. Chen has over ten years of experience in asset management
industry. He worked for CCB International Asset Management
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Construction Bank
Corporation, from April 2008 to February 2016. He was a non-
executive director of Universal Medical Financial & Technical
Advisory Services Company Limited (stock code: 2666, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange from 6 March
2015 to 13 April 2016.

Mr. Chen received a Master of Philosophy degree from the
University of Hong Kong in December 2005. Mr. Chen holds
the qualification as a Chartered Financial Analyst from the CFA
Institute. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and was licensed as a responsible officer for
Type 9 (asset management), Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type
4 (advising on securities) regulated activities of the Securities and
Futures Commission.

Mr. Chen was appointed as a committee member of Nanshan
District Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the People’s Republic of China with
effect from October 2016.

Mr. XU Ke (“Mr. Xu”), aged 49, is the executive Director and
senior vice president of the Company. Mr. Xu has over 25 years
of relevant experience in the distressed assets investment and
management segment. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Electrical
Engineering from Zhejiang University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Xu worked in the China Construction Bank, Zhejiang Branch
from 1991 to 1999, and was the director of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Branch from 1999 to January
2016. He was also the director and assistant to general manager
of Zhejiang Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. from 2007 to
2010, and was the director and general manager of Zhejiang
Development Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.* GIT /T 3 Bz 3=
B EE® AR A)from 2008 to 2010.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors
£ R B

Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny (“Dr. Kwong"), aged 60, was
appointed as the executive Director and authorised representative
on 19 April 2018 and 7 September 2018 respectively. He also
serves as the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group currently.

Dr. Kwong holds a Bachelor Degree in Arts from Simon Fraser
University in British Columbia, Canada and was awarded the Honor
Degree of Doctor of Commerce by The University of West Alabama
in 2007. Dr. Kwong held senior positions with major international
banks in Hong Kong in respective lending departments and China
department for many years. For the past years, he has served as
executive director of over 10 publicly listed companies both in
Hong Kong, Canada and the United Kingdom. Dr. Kwong has
extensive knowledge in corporate finance and banking.

Dr. Kwong was a director of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
from 2008 to 2010 and was a member of the Campaign
Committee of The Community Chest from 2006 to 2010. Dr.
Kwong was an appointed member of the China People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the Hubei Province and Zhaoqing City
of the Guangdong Province. Dr. Kwong was an executive director
and managing director of China Soft Power Technology Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 139) from September 2014 to April 2015; an
executive director and managing director of HengTen Networks
Group Limited (Stock Code: 136) from May 2015 to October 2015;
an independent non-executive director of Imagi International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 585) from January 2016 to May
2017 and an executive director of GT Group Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 263) from September 2017 to April 2018, all of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. GAO Bin (“Dr. Gao"), age 56, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Dr. Gao has extensive
knowledge and rich experience in foreign exchange, fixed income,
equity and commodity investment. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Space Physics from University of Science and Technology of China,
an MA from Princeton University in Astrophysics and a PhD Degree
in Finance from New York University.

Dr. Gao currently serves as chief investment officer/founder of
Invealth Capital. He has been serving as a special term professor at
School of Economics and Management and PBC School of Finance
of Tsinghua University since 2002. He served as a senior vice
president of Lehman Brothers from 2004 to 2005. He served as a
managing director of Merrill Lynch from 2005 to 2014, in charge
of interest strategies in Asia Pacific. He was a tenured associate
professor of the finance department at University of North
Carolina-Business School, USA before joining this industry.
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Ms. LIU Yan (“Ms. Liu”), aged 48, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Liu has over 20 years of
solid experience in auditing, financial management, taxation and
fund management. She holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from
the Central University of Finance & Economics and a Master Degree
in Business Administration from University of Rochester. She is a
member of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CICPA)
and passed all tests for Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) program.

Ms. Liu has worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers (Guangzhou,
China), Barclays Capital (New York City), Angelo Gordon Asia
Limited (Hong Kong and New York), China Everbright Limited
(Hong Kong) and Brilliance Group Holdings Limited (Shanghai).
Ms. Liu was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Haitong International Securities Group Limited (Stock Code:
665) and Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 583)
on 19 June 2018 and 26 November 2018 respectively, she was an
independent non-executive director of U Banquet Group Holding
Ltd (stock code: 1483) from 1 November 2016 to 27 September
2018, all of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. TANG King Shing, GBS, PDSM ("Mr. Tang”), aged 64, is
the independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Tang holds a Master’s Degree in International and Public Affairs
from The University of Hong Kong. In March 2013, Mr. Tang was
appointed a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic
of China. In June 2013, he was appointed a director of the
Hong Kong News-Expo. In September 2017, he was appointed
as the Chairman of the Country and Marine Parks Board of the
Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department for a term of
two years and he is an honorary advisor of Hong Kong Strategy.

Mr. Tang took office (until retirement) as Commissioner of Hong
Kong Police from January 2007 to January 2011. He served as
vice chairman and executive director of the board of Hong Kong
Airlines from 28 September 2016 to 17 December 2018. He also
served as an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Chemical Holdings Limited (stock code: 148, a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from 1 August 2013
to 1 November 2016. On 15 July 2017, he was appointed as a
non-executive director of Hong Kong International Construction
Investment Management Group Co., Limited (stock code: 00687, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - wg MERmE

The Company adheres to the concept of sustainable development
for its corporate planning and operation and strives to create
long-term value for the Group’s stakeholders. The Company
prepares the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
"ESG Report”) in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide"), set out in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules, to inform all stakeholders about our ESG
policies, measures and performance.

This ESG Report mainly covers (i) financial services and assets
management; (i) commodity and medical equipment trading; and
(iii) property investment segments which accounts for the Group's
major operating gain during 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
(the “Reporting Period” or “FY2018"). All management and
staff with primary responsibilities participated in the preparation
of this ESG Report to assist the Group’s operation in reviewing and
identifying relevant ESG matters, as well as assessing the related
matters that are material to our business and every stakeholder. A
summary of the ESG matters material to the Group contained in
this ESG Report is set out in the following table:

ARABAABEERREEREBLERD K
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HELBFEARE HEREARE  UIHH
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MENEEE - TRAAREAFAEEBEKX
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ESG Guide Summary Significant ESG Matters
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A. Environmental
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A1. Emissions °
PR

A2. Use of Resources o
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources o
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B. Social
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B1. Employment O
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B2. Health and Safety o
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B3. Development and Training o
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B4. Labour Standards .
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B5. Supply Chain Management o
fHrresEeEn

B6. Product Responsibility o
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B7. Anti-corruption o
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B8. Community Investment o
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Waste Treatment and Carbon Emission
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Energy and Water Consumption
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Environmental Implication Management
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Employee Benefits and Equal Opportunities Policies
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Occupational Health and Safety
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Employee Training Plan
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Prevention of Child Labour or Forced Labour
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Sustainable Supply Chain
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Customer Service, Marketing and Customer Privacy
Security
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Prevention of Corruption and Fraud
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Contributions to Society
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RiE
A1. Emissions Al. BER

The Group is always holding sustainable development
and enterprise social responsibility as its mission.
The Group commits to carrying out monitoring
and emission reduction measures in every process
management, energy and resource management in
its day-to-day operation to prevent any unnecessary
contamination and reduce the adverse impact on the
environment. In recent years, the Group focused mainly
on the development of (i) financial services and assets
management; (i) commodity and medical equipment
trading; and (iii) property investment segments, which
have not generated any exhaust gas and sewage
emission during daily commercial operation.

Moreover, as regards to mining and exploitation of
natural resources businesses, no active mining operation
of the Group has taken place yet during the Reporting
Period. As such, the emissions relating to the exhaust
gas, sewage and wastes during the mining process
are not applicable temporarily during the Reporting
Period. The Group is in compliance with all the laws and
governmental rules and regulations in Mongolia relating
to mineral resources exploitation and its renewal, and
currently holds four tungsten mining rights licenses
through two wholly-owned Mongolian subsidiaries.
The four tungsten mining rights are still in effect and
in good standing as at the end of Reporting Period.
The Group is in the course of exploring various feasible
mining work plans with our qualified mineral technical
advisor and professional mining consultant. The Board
will consider any possible business arrangements
including strategic mining partnerships with trustworthy
explorer worldwide. The Company will make a further
announcement in due course or as and when necessary.
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During FY2018 under review, the total amount of waste
generated from day-to-day operation of the Group was
only 0.725 tonne, of which it included non-hazardous
waste (paper and disposable office supplies) of 0.719
tonne, and hazardous waste (waste tube, detergent and
other chemical materials) of 0.006 tonne.

The Group initiates vigorously green office, pushes
to implement various environmental protection
policies to achieve waste source reduction during
the Reporting Period. As regard to daily office work,
the Group implements the environmental protection
policy to promote the paperless practice and electronic
documentation. Staff is encouraged to apply both-
side printing and copying to reduce wasting papers.
At the same time, the Group purchase and choose
environmentally friendly papers to reduce damage to
natural forest and help mitigate global warming. A total
of approximately 0.28 tonne of papers was saved in
FY2018.

The Group recognises the equal importance of waste
recycling on environmental protection in addition to
waste source reduction, therefore, the Group also
proactively promoted various environmental recycling
policies during the last financial year. As regard to waste
treatment, the Group categorizes all wastes in the office
into three types (paper/plastic/non-recyclable) according
to requirements and uniformly collects and disposes
of all types of waste. The Group particularly provides
recyclable tableware and cups in our tearooms to
encourage staff to reduce using disposable tableware.
During the Reporting Period, 0.8 tonne of papers was
recycled due to our successful implementation of the
above environmental protection policies.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. BiE @)
A1. Emissions (Continued) Al BER Y (&)
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A. BiE @)
A1 BERY ()

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)

Carbon Emission

In FY2018, the total carbon emission of the Group was
73.74 tonne, the carbon emission density per square
meter of office space was 0.042 tonne of carbon
dioxide ™ The above carbon emission was mainly
generated from the usage of various energy sources
by the Group, including electric power, gasoline and
natural gas. Please refer to A2 Use of Resources —
Energy consumption ™2 in this ESG Report regarding
the usage and consumption of relevant energy.

To promote staff’'s awareness of emphasizing
environmental protection, the Group purchased
additional video conferencing equipment simultaneously
in our offices in Hong Kong, Singapore, Shenzhen and
Hangzhou, the PRC to reduce greenhouse gas emission
generated from attending the meeting by airplane. The
Group have also reduced paper consumption through
application of computer technology (e.g. written
communication by email, use Dingtalk office software
as an instant messaging platform and approval process
management) and increased work efficiency.

Note 1: The above calculation of carbon emission is referenced
to the “2018 Government GHG Conversion Factors
For Company Reporting” issued by BEIS (&[0 & % -
BE R Ko = 2 SR BE EB), Electricity Grid Emissions Factors
and Upstream Fugitive Methane Emission Factor issued
by Energy Market Authority of Singapore (37 0¥ &
JRTHBEIE D), “Emission Factor of Mongolia” issued
by Joint Credit Mechanism of Japan, “Environmental
Key Performance Index Reporting Guide"” issued by the
Stock Exchange and “the China Regional Grid Baseline
Emission Factor” issued by National Development and
Reform Commission of China.

Note 2: The above calculation of carbon emission covers M2 BafBER e sSTERERAR S OR ﬁ
the emission activities under range one and two in RERERIEEERIES)FHE— s
“Environmental Key Performance Index Reporting REE —HERUEE) © —
Guide" issued by the Stock Exchange. T

i

Each of our department rigorously complied with REEZBPIIEBETEERANFEIER H

the inter-group management system in relation to RBBEREIRHE - R E B A ® i

environmental protection. During the Reporting Period, FAMEREBRIEEEREHEN - RKK d

there was no breach of relevant laws and regulations THHEES  BEREEBEEVNEL m

relating to the prevention of exhaust gas and ZHEBERRROIEER LI o T

greenhouse gas emissions, sewage into water and land, %

causing hazardous and non-hazardous waste. ﬂ

| o
e
K

B

R2018MEFE - AEBOTHENES
R73.74RWE - B ORI A H A 8 i
e R E 50.042 AWE — S L iE #ED o
N EBRBEREEREAEBEH SHER
WER(BESEN  AhRRAR) @ 1
FRERE R RSB 2MARE -
g RERREA2ERER-LFH

gﬁfﬁ (Hit2) o

REFEETISRERENED A&
B R R EE 3R R AR RYI R
MEVRAERREEEHREY R E
RN ZERPTEKAREREBIN
RN ARETEBEB EER
PIRAE FE A2 B EEBE - N A
T A ERASBIMTaREFL
FEHRRIEEES  UHEARAERE
R R 7T TR -

MEET : EMERBE At E 2 MER % - g
R N E 3 2R % AP (BEIS) HH AR 2 € 2018
Government GHG Conversion Factors
For Company Reporting ) * #1 ji 3%
B2 IR T % B 12 B A 6 &9  Electricity
Grid Emissions Factors and Upstream
Fugitive Methane Emission Factor ) -
B 7 Joint Credit Mechanism 2 4 &Y
{Emission Factor of Mongolia) * &
R GRS BRERIEEERES)D
FAEBRERMBIEZES DM
2R B[S EAAE G REAT) o




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE g REBRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. BiE @)
A2. EREH

A2. Use of Resources
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The Group puts emphasis on saving resources and
environmental protection, committed to minimize
possible risks of impact on the environment arising from
business development by utilizing resources effectively
and advocating commercial acts accountability to the
environment. During the Reporting Period, the Group
achieved various energy-saving targets and successfully
implemented green energy policies, and actively
participated in office energy-saving and environmental
protection activities promoted by property management
company of the building where it locates, for instance,
resources recycling activity, with a view to improve
staff's awareness in energy conservation and emission
reduction.

Energy Consumption

To implement energy saving policy, the Group
proactively carried out various energy saving policies
and measurement which helped us saving a total of
5.4% energy consumption during the Reporting Period.
The Group's office has fully installed the energy efficient
fluorescent tube and other electronic equipment with
high energy efficiency, set and conduct modulated
temperature and timing control on air-conditioners.
Moreover, the Group also requires staff to turn off
office equipment, computers and lightings when not
in use or after working hours to reduce electricity
consumption.

AEEIEERRBOLIRERE B8
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIZ @)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued) A2. ERERA (&)
Energy Consumption (Continued) BEIF M FE (#E)

Set out below is the Group’s total energy consumption
and total energy intensity in FY2018:

Consumption

Energy category (daily office work)

AT R AL BE R 20188 B4 E a2 R
BREERGREREE

Total Energy Intensity
(office space per unit)

#E BERERE
RREE (BE#HR) (BEURAEE)
Electricity 53,835 kWh 30.32 kWh/sg.m.
E 53,835 T FLEF 3032 FREE, FH*K
Gasoline 16,332 liter 9.2 liter/sg.m.
Ve 16,332 27+ 9208 /T HK
Natural gas 169.5 cubic meter 0.0955 cubic meter/sg.m.
RARR 169.5 3 5 oK 0.0955 37 77 K /S J5 K

Note:  The above consumption only comprised the
consumption that directly controlled and utilised
by the Group, of which it included the Group’s
offices in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Mongolia,
Singapore and the United Kingdom, but not including
consumption arising from other third-party.

Water Consumption

The Group’s water consumption during the Reporting
Period was generated from daily office water utilisation.
Although the Group’s businesses activities do not
consume a large volume of water, the Group still
endeavour to promote water recyclability in the office
to save water resources. In addition to purchasing and
using a pressurised water-saving device in the office,
the Group posted water-saving warning signs in every
lavatory as well. During the Reporting Period, the
Group’s water consumption in its offices was 78 cubic
meters in total. The average water consumption per
square meter of office space is 0.0439 cubic meter when
calculated by office space. Total water consumption in
FY2018 decreased by 67.03% as compared with that
of the previous year. The increase was mainly due to a
decrease in the number of office staff.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIZ (@)

A3. The Environment and Natural A3. REBER XAREIR
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Resources

Environmental Implication Management

The Group is deeply aware of the importance of
environmental protection, social responsibility and
governance, the green office environment will continue
to be promoted through the four basic principles of
reduction, reuse, recycling and replacement. Although
the core business of the Group has an insignificant
impact on environment and natural resources, the
Group still always strictly abides by laws, regulations and
national standards relating to environmental protection,
and incorporates the impact of its operation on
environment as one of its significant considerations and
endeavours to minimise the impact of the Company’s
operation on environment.

For the Mongolian tungsten mining business, the Group
is in the course of exploring various feasible mining work
plans with the qualified mineral technical advisor and
professional mining consultant. With a view to reduce
exposure to commodity, geopolitical, environmental and
other business risks encountering during the period of
mineral exploration, the Board will consider any possible
business arrangements including strategic mining
partnerships with trustworthy explorer worldwide. The
Company will make a further announcement in due
course or as and when necessary.

As regard to office decoration and maintenance, the
Group requires the supplier engaged to use materials
and techniques that have a low impact on the
environment and resources, for instance, using natural
and environmental friendly decoration materials, and
implement the principle of “Make the Best Use of
Resources, Conservation and Waste Reduction”.

Besides, the Group constantly conducted assessment
and supervision on environmental risks during daily
operation, developed immediate mitigation measures
when potential environmental risk was identified to
ensure such risk is under control.
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B1. Employment

Employee Benefits and Equal Opportunities
Policies

The Group believes that talent is a key factor for
enterprise competitiveness and human resources play
a vital role in the Group’s long-term development and
success. Therefore, the Group strive to introduce talents
through multi-channel and cultivate talents through the
adoption of an incentive mechanism.

To attract and retain talents, ensure smooth business
operation of the Group and in line with continuous
expansion needs, the Group has its human resources
management policy in place to regulate matters
relating to staff recruitment, promotion, dismissal,
working hours, holidays, remuneration packages and
benefits. The remuneration of the Group’s employees is
determined with reference to market standard, industry
practice and staff’s qualifications and experience.
Meanwhile, the Group distributes bonuses to employees
to the extent possible according to profitability as
incentives for the contributions they made to the
Group and provides staff with on-the-job training and
development opportunities to assist them to show their
talents in the positions. The benefit plan of the Group’s
staff comprises mandatory provident fund, medical
insurance, accidental insurance, employees’ benefits,
paid holidays (annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave,
paternity leave, marital leave and examination leave).
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Employee Benefits and Equal Opportunities
Policies (Continued)

Both staff's working hours and holiday schedules have
rigorously complied with national and local laws and
regulations to make sure staff can demonstrate their
abilities in a favourable working environment. The
Group takes a fair and open principle on recruitment
policy, adheres to the basic principle of merit and
capabilities, open position recruitment, equal
competition, two-way selection and engagement of
the excellent in recruitment. All candidates are required
to undergo an objective orientation examination and
interview to assess whether their abilities can meet
our development requirements. At the same time, the
Group is also required to ensure the fairness of the
overall recruitment process through stringent approval
procedures. In addition, the Group provides staff with
good promotion prospects and opportunities. The
Group established an annual performance appraisal
system to review staff performance and remuneration
policy regularly, with an aim to reward and motivate the
contribution and performance of employees and assist
them in their career development and promotion within
the Group.

In the meantime, the Group is committed to providing
staff with a fair and equitable working environment with
no discrimination. The Group prohibits the occurrence of
any form of discrimination in its working environment,
avoid any form of discriminating recruitment, re-
designation, remuneration and promotion. The Group
establishes the reporting and complaint mechanism
system to report or submit complaints to the officer-in-
charge of the human resources department immediately
in case of any biased treatment, and task force will
conduct an investigation and take appropriate follow-
up actions. If our employees have any problems
or opinions, they could give feedback through the
communication channels established by the Group.

The Group has organised a variety of activities during
the year to improve the sense of belongings of our staff
and promote corporate culture, among which they
include organizing employee birthday parties, Christmas
and Mid-Autumn Festival dinner, new year corporate
annual meeting and corporate annual dinner. Besides,
the Group also regularly holds seminars, exchanges
ideas for work and builds up team spirit.

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant
breach of any relevant laws and regulations such as
Labour Law relating to human resources.
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Occupational Health and Safety BEREHEZE

The Group regards staff's occupational health and
safety as our foremost responsibility, and endeavours
to provide staff with a satisfactory and safe working
environment. As regard to fire control safety, the
Group provides all staff with detailed guidelines on fire
escape routes and escape procedures and requires staff
to participate in fire escape drill of office buildings. In
addition, the Group also encourages staff to report
various accidents occurred during work and other
unsafe factors. Staff may seek assistance from human
resources and administration department in case of
an accident during work or within the working arena.
The Group give priority to staff's safety under adverse
weather conditions (such as rainstorm, typhoon). Staffs
are required to comply with the guidelines for the staff's
working arrangement under adverse weather conditions
to safeguard staff safety to the greatest extent.

Besides, the Group also pay high attention to staff’s
physical and psychological health. The Group organises
various sports and recreation activities from time to
time. In addition to building up a healthy body, staff
may develop team spirit to promote a harmonious
working environment.

For tungsten mines exploitation in Mongolia, as no active
mining operation of the Group has taken place yet, the
guidelines on providing safe working environment and
protection of employees from occupational hazards
were not applicable during the Reporting Period. Once
the mines exploitation commences officially, apart from
making sure meeting the business compliance with local
laws and regulation on production safety, the Group will
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The Group believes that talents development is an
enterprise’s development foundation. Hence, the Group
pay high attention to staff's occupation development
and training. The Group has established systematic
training regimens and training system to support staff's
continuous development, among which it comprises
induction training, on-the-job training and external
training. At the end of each year, the human resources
and administration department collects the training
and developing requirements from each department
and formulates training plans based on the information
and opinions collected. Apart from induction training,
newly employed staff will continue to learn and improve
themselves during the mentoring by experienced staff.
Besides, the Group will also arrange on-the-job training
and external training that tailored to staff's needs
according to their operation post, personal ability and
aspiration to promote staff's continuous growth and
development at work. After completing the training,
the Group will also collect staff’s feedback to constantly
improve our training quality. The Group started to set up
special education allowances in FY2018 to encourage
potential staff to commence continuing study relating
to current works or for long-term career development
purpose to meet the business development goals of the
Company.
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B3. Development and Training B3. &R KiEI
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B4.

B5.

Labour Standards

Prevention of Child Labour or Forced Labour

The Group is always committed to creating harmonious
labour relationship with staff and strictly complies with
the employment laws and regulations of the region
where it locates and Labour Law to ensure staff’s
interest was fully safequarded. The Group establish
a rigorous and comprehensive recruitment review
process and uphold the principle of fairness, openness
and voluntariness for staff employment. At the time
of interview, candidates should provide identification
document and valid employment visas for us to conduct
a due diligent investigation on their basic information,
sign a legal labour contract. The recruitment for all staff
is on an optional and legal basis. In addition, the Group
pays equal attention to the implementation of labour
standards in subsidiaries and outsourcing companies.
The Group will regularly conduct a random inspection
on subsidiaries and outsourcing companies to make
sure no violation of relevant laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to the prevention
of child labour or forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

Sustainable Supply Chain

Given that supply chain management is the key factor
of sustainable development, such that the Group has
stringent requirements for supplier management. Each
department is required to purchase according to the
“Guidelines for Procurement Process Standard of Office
Supplies and Fixed Assets” prepared by the human
resource and administration department. In addition,
the Group’s purchasing department sets up a dedicated
department taskforce to formulate and complete the
procurement process standard, conducts an annual
review and update on the procurement process to make
sure the Group adheres to the principle of openness,
fairness and transparency for supplier selection, and
conducts procurement at reasonable price and quality.
In coming years, the Group will continuously plan and
develop the supplier selection mechanism to reinforce
suppliers’ requirements will focus on environmental
protection, labour safety and staff protection.
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B5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Sustainable Supply Chain (Continued)

The Group will also supervise supplier performance. The
Group will suspend supplier service if its performance
is unsatisfactory. Meanwhile, the Group also intends
to carry out regularly annual assessment regarding
supplier performance and requires all suppliers to
satisfy the Group's requirements in the environmental
protection and social responsibilities aspects, such as
adopting green materials, prohibiting employment of
forced labour and child labour before continuing the
cooperation relationship.

Product Responsibility

Customer Service

As a member of the investment and asset management
and financial service industry, the Group attaches
great importance to our service quality and customer
experience. The Group built customer satisfaction
through constantly improving our service standard
for customers to make sure providing customers with
quality products and services and set up an effective
customer complaint mechanism to constantly improve
service experience through customer’s feedback. The
Group dedicates to provide accurate information for
customers to make a wise investment decision, provides
customers with sufficient advice and coaching to help
them understand and select products and service
required through offering products and services with
clear description and provisions.

(i) Customer Satistaction

The Group regularly conducts annual customer
satisfaction investigation to continuously improve
our products and services and analyses in details
the investigation results in accordance with the
established services indicators, of which it includes
management service quality, service and products
safety, customer service and products support.
The Group will also improve its customer service
performance next year by establishing an action
programme.
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B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

Customer Service (Continued)
(i) Customer Complaint Follow-up

The Group attaches great importance to client
feedback for improving its service quality
continuously by humbly accept customers’
opinions. The Group has set up a professional
customer service team to address and follow up
customer complaints. Every complaint will be
investigated and followed up by special person-in-
charge and the whole process will be monitored
by management. After the reasons for the
complaints are identified and responding progress
is completed, the special person in charge will
contact the complainant to offer our resolutions
for the proper handling of the customer complaint.

Marketing

Integrity management is the essential merit of our
business operation. The Group endeavours responsible
marketing strategy with no exaggerated marketing
tactics. All sales, promotion documents and data are
required to be approved by management before rolling
out to make sure complying with the requirements of
relevant advertisement laws and regulations.

Customer Privacy Guarantee

The protection of the privacy of customers or consumers
is crucial for the Group’s operation. Except for the public
documents as specified in laws and regulations, the
Group strictly follows the relevant privacy ordinance in
relation to the usage and confidentiality requirements
of customers or consumers’ private information
and never allow information disclosure without the
approval of data owners. The Group has “Staff Code
of Practice” in place to standardise the principle of
management, usage and abide by the confidentiality
of business data and prohibits casual management and
storage of customer information. In addition, the Group
emphasise the importance of protecting customer data,
and provide guidance on customer data processing in
staff training and devote all our efforts to prevent the
leakage of customer information.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach
of relevant laws and regulations relating to privacy,
product, service quality and marketing.
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Prevention of Corruption and Fraud

The Group propagandises enterprise culture of honesty,
integrity and righteous and commits to building an
anti-fraud and anti-corruption corporate culture
environment. The Group requires staff to stringently
complies with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and
strives to maintain clean management and operation
structure of the Company. Meanwhile, the Group set
up the “Staff Code of Practice” and disseminated to
all staff. The Practice standardises the staff’s code of
conduct and the guidelines on conflict of interests
and requires staff to report regularly on any conflict of
interests. Besides, the Group also establishes a series of
anti-fraud measures, among which includes propaganda
and training of anti-fraud policy, fraud risk assessment
mechanism and complaint reporting mechanism.

Under the guidance of anti-fraud policies and related
measures, the Group regularly organises and invites
professionals to conduct training on laws, regulations,
integrity and ethics. Employees are taught how to
identify and correctly handle conflict of interests at work
and resist the temptation of improper interests. Under
the fraudulent risk assessment mechanism established
by the Group, it is regularly conducted fraudulent
risk identification and assessment at the Group's
and department’s level to assess the importance and
possibility of fraudulent risk and formulate resolutions
to address fraudulent risk as required. The Group also
established a set of comprehensive complaint channels,
investigation mechanism and accountability mechanism.
Any staff, supplier and customer of the Group may
report any undue staff behaviour through the channel
provided for assisting the Group to supervise staff’s
ethical character and penalise staff for any misconduct.
Complaints matters include but not limited to the
violation of laws, regulations and the Group’s policy
requirements, or undue behaviour relating to internal
monitoring, operation, accounting, auditing, finance
and undue conduct, illegal act or fraudulent matters.

The above policy regarding bribery, conflict of interests
and whistle-blowing forms part of the Group’s Code
of Conduct for employees and is clearly set out in the
Employee Handbook. All employees are required to
follow stringently.
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B7.

B8.

Anti-corruption (Continued)

Prevention of Corruption and Fraud (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to the prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Community Investment

Contributions to Society

The Group always attaches importance to the corporate
social responsibilities, adheres to the concept of
repaying the society while its business is developing
and devotes ourselves to social and public welfare to
make contributions in facilitating social harmonious
development. In the meantime, the Group also actively
encourages the Group’s staff to participate in various
social and public services. In FY2018, the Group
called upon staff to participate in the “Flag” fund-
raising activity organised by One Foundation, and the
donations raised were used for the “Water Purification
Project” to help children in the remote regions of China
to drink clean water, improve the drinking conditions
and habits of school children and foster their growth.
Besides, the Group also called on staff to donate in
the Movember charity event in the United Kingdom to
arouse social attention to men’s health, especially the
health concerns, such as prostate cancers, testicular
cancer and melancholia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, except for certain deviations disclosed in this corporate
governance report (the “CG Report”).

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
as amended from time to time, as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Company’s Model Code also applies to all employees who are
likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance of the Model Code was noted by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions, financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman of the board and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the
chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The responsibilities of the Company’s chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman"”) are to provide leadership to the Board and formulate
the Group’s business strategies. The Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring the Board works effectively, in particular, ensuring all
Directors receive reliable, adequate and complete information in a
timely manner. The Chairman may communicate with the Directors
directly or through the assistance of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) to discuss or clarify any
issues concerning the Group from time to time, and to provide any
supporting information and documents to them. The Chairman
assumes the primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established.

The Company’s chief executive officer is responsible for the
conduct of day-to-day operation of the Group and accountable
to the Board for all aspects of the corporate performance. He
recommends policies to the Board for consideration and approval,
and keeps the Board informed of any material developments of the
Company’s business. The CEO may delegate his duties to any other
management members or responsible officers of the Company but
he assumes the principal responsibility.

During the reporting period, Mr. Chen Weisong was the CEO
while the Chairman remained vacant. The Company deviated from
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018.

The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate to
be appointed as the new Chairman and will keep the shareholders
informed of such appointment by announcement in due course.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cContinued)
Composition

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors during the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weisong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Xu Ke

Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny (appointed on 19 April 2018)
Mr. Ye Fei (resigned on 7 September 2018)

Mr. Wang Qiang (resigned on 5 December 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs")

Dr. Gao Bin
Ms. Liu Yan
Mr. Tang King Shing

INEDs and their Independence

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all
times met the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-
election.

INEDs are not appointed for a specific term. However, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Each of the INEDs had made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all INEDs are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of the Directors

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors” on pages 21 to 23 of this annual report, which
demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the
Directors shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting
of the Company provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at the annual general meeting of the Company at least
once every three years. All retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board and has more than one-third in number of its
members comprising INEDs.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably qualified for his/
her position, and has sufficient experience to hold the position so
as to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

Board Meetings

The Company Secretary shall assist the Chairman and the executive
Directors in establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director
is able to request inclusion of items in the agenda. The Board
schedules at least four regular meetings a year and also meets as
and when required. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Board held 30 meetings. All such meetings were convened in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least
14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to give all
directors an opportunity to attend. During the year ended 31
December 2018, certain Board meetings were convened with less
than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to react timely
and make expeditious decisions in respect of urgent corporate
transaction and general business update which was significant in
nature. As a result, such Board meetings were held with a shorter
notice period than required with the consent of the Directors. The
Board will do its best endeavour to meet the requirement of code
provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in the future.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings (Continued)

Adequate and appropriate information are circulated to the
Directors normally three days in advance of Board meetings
or such period accepted by them. In addition to regular Board
meetings, the Chairman should at least annually hold a meeting
with the INEDs without the presence of other Directors pursuant
to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code. However, the position of
Chairman remained vacant during the year ended 31 December
2018. As a result, the Company deviated from code of provision
A.2.7 of the CG Code.

Minutes of all Board and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.
Draft minutes of all Board and committee meetings are circulated
to all Directors and committee members for comments within the
period accepted by them after each meeting.

Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the attendance of each
individual Director at the Board meetings, committee meetings, the
annual general meeting held on 8 June 2018 (the “2018 AGM")
and the special general meeting (the “SGM") held on 21 August
2018, are as follow:
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LR/ RERLE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EXReE EFNZESEE REZEEEE FMzEceEl REAE
Executive Directors HIEE
Mr. Chen Weisong (Chief Executive Officer) REDLE(TTHES) 3030 NATER NATE NATER Wy
Mr. Xu Ke rukE 17130 NAT & NATEF NAEA 012
Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny % BRI B 18124 NATER NATE NATER iy
Mr. Ye Feifie2 By 16/23 NATER NATER NATER 12
Mr. Wang Qiang TR ) 8/28 NATER NATEA NAT @R 02
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTEE
Dr. Gao Bin REEL 17/30 414 55 33 02
Ms. Liu Yan Heut 18/30 414 575 373 02
Mr. Tang King Shing BEKiE 15/30 24 5/5 33 M
Notes: i
1. appointed on 19 April 2018 1 RZE-N\FOATIBAEZF
2. resigned on 7 September 2018 2. RIZIE-N\FNLALAHET
3. resigned on 5 December 2018 3. RZE-N\F+-ARABEIE



Corporate Governance Report
PEERWE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings
(Continued)

According to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of listed issuers.

Dr. Gao Bin and Ms. Liu Yan, the INED, were unable to attend the
2018 AGM and SGM due to their other business engagements.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Dr. Kwong Kai Sing
Benny the newly appointed Director, was given an induction
after his appointment as the executive Director and authorised
representatives so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the Group's business and of his duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular
updates on the business performance of the Group to the
Directors. The Directors are continually updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of
good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh knowledge and
skills. The Company has received confirmation from all Directors of
their respective training records for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Corporate Governance Functions

Pursuant to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as set
out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions (Continued)

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the CG Report.

This CG Report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge of its
corporate governance functions.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in
the execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto,
the Company has arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things,
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
all Directors and senior management of the Company. No
individual Director is involved in decisions relating to his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

As at 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three Directors, all of them are INEDs. The members of the
Remuneration Committee were:

Dr. Gao Bin (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Yan
Mr. Tang King Shing

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held 3 meetings. The attendance of each member
during the reporting period is set out on page 44 of this annual
report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2018 included:

(1) reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management for the year
ended 31 December 2017; and

(2) reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages
of the newly appointed Director for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) stipulating the composition of the Board.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) and taken effect from 31 December 2018. The aim of
establishing this policy is to ensure the at the Board has a balance
of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business. When
considering a candidate nominated for directorship or a retiring
Director’s proposed re-appointment, the Nomination Committee
will have regard to, (i) age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise,
professional and educational qualifications, background and
other personal qualities of the candidate; (ii) effect on the Board’s
composition and diversity; (i) commitment of the candidate to
devote sufficient time to effectively carry out his/her duties; (iv)
potential and/or actual conflicts of interest that may arise; (v)
independence; (vi) in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an
INED, the number of years he/she has already served; and (vii) other
factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination Committee.
Having due regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy, the Nomination Committee will identify and consider each
suitable candidate or retiring Director and make recommendation
to the Board. Subject to the provisions of the Bye-laws, each the
appointment of new Director and re-appointment of Director will
be stand for re-election at the general meeting.

As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee comprised
three Directors, all of them are INEDs. The members of the
Nomination Committee are:

Dr. Gao Bin (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Yan
Mr. Tang King Shing

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held 5 meetings. The attendance of each member
during the reporting period is set out on page 44 of this annual
report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2018 included:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

(b) identified individual suitably qualified to become Board
members and made recommendation to the Board on their
appointments;

(c) assessed the independence of the INEDs;

(d)  made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors
for re-election at the 2018 AGM; and

(e) formulate the Nomination Policy.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the composition
of the Board, the Nomination Committee is satisfied that the
requirements set out in the Board Diversity Policy had been met.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising
the financial reporting process, assisting the Board to ensure
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and providing advice and comments to the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and may access to independent professional advice if
considered necessary.

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee comprises three
Directors, all of them are INEDs. The members of the Audit
Committee are:

Ms. Liu Yan (Chairman)
Dr. Gao Bin
Mr. Tang King Shing

Ms. Liu Yan, the Chairman of Audit Committee, possesses relevant
professional qualifications and financial management expertise and
meets the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
held 4 meetings. The attendance of each member during the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out on page 44 of this annual
report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the work performed by
the Audit Committee included:

(a)

(9)

reviewed with the Company’s auditors the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
reviewed the unaudited interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, with recommendations to
the Board for approval;

reviewed the risk management report on monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and
statutory requirements;

reviewed with the management of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

reviewed the term and remuneration for the appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as external auditor
to perform the agreed-upon of the final results for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the general review on the
interim results for the six-month ended 30 June 2018;

reviewed the independence of Deloitte as the external
auditor, especially for those non-audit services; and

to nominate the re-appointment of Deloitte as the auditors of
the Company at the 2018 AGM.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and may access to independent professional
advice if considered necessary.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remunerations paid
and payable to Deloitte for audit services and non-audit services
regarding the review of interim financial statements and other
assurance and non-assurance engagements rendered to the Group
are as follow:

Services rendered for the Group
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RESERHAZRE

Fees paid/
payable to
Deloitte
B2 BN
EHNER
HK$'000
FHET

BRI
FEEZIRT

Audit services
Non-audit services

Total AEr

The Audit Committee is satisfied with, inter alia, the audit fees,
effectiveness of the audit process, independence and objectivity of
Deloitte and has recommended to the Board the re-appointment
of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor for the ensuing year
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and
cash flows of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and the year ended 31
December 2018, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to these financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 69 to 74 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining a sound
risk management and internal control system within the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness. However, such system was
designed only to manage various risks of the Group within certain
acceptable risk level, rather than completely eliminate the risk
of failing to achieve the business objectives of the Group, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or losses. The Audit Committee assists the
Board to oversee the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group
established its own risk management and compliance department
on 16 May 2017 to perform its internal audit functions. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the internal auditors of the Group
carried out an analysis and independent appraisal regarding the
adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management and internal
control systems.

In addition, the Group has developed an internal control
model which follows the principle of Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO"). It consists
of five elements, namely control environment, risk assessment,
control, information and communication, and monitoring. Under
this control model, the Group’s management is responsible
for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control measures and its effectiveness, and the Board and Audit
Committee will supervise the appropriateness of internal control
measures as designed by the management and the effective
implementation of internal control measures. Meanwhile, the
internal control has adapted to the Group's scale of operation,
scope of business, competition and risks, and is subject to prompt
adjustments according to changes in circumstances. It will be
a long-lasting and continuous work to improve the internal
control system, implement the regulated system and intensify the
supervision and examination of internal control.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

The risk management and compliance department also prepared
a risk management framework of the Group, including the
construction of the architecture for the aforementioned
organisation and definition of the responsibilities of all parties
concerned, and prepared risk management policies and processes
and clarified the risk assessment procedures, which, specifically
include risk identification, risk analysis, risk control and risk report.
Step 1:  Risk identification — identify risks currently exposed to
the Group and business and its existing management
and control measures.

Step 2:  Risk analysis — analyse the possibility of risk, extent of
influence and its existing management and control
measures, identify risk exposure, and propose further
countermeasures.

Step 3:  Risk control — implement and periodically detect the
identified risks to ensure effective operation of risk
countermeasures.

Step 4:  Risk report — summarise the results of risk management
analysis, prepare action plans and report to the
management, Audit Committee and the Board.

The risk management and compliance department conducted
reform and amendment to the Group’s risk management system
in light of its actual conditions. After the review by individual
business units and departments and obtained their feedback,
the risk management and compliance department completed
the preparation of a new risk management system. In 2018,
through this risk management system, the risk management
and compliance department assisted the major business units
and departments of the Group including securities investment,
distressed debt asset management, financial services and property
investment to complete three major risk control activities,
including its assessment, scoring and ranking, and prepare risk
countermeasures to ensure that each significant risk has adequate
corresponding risk countermeasures.

[B B B IR I A B4R (m)

Rl EIE K& RAFI TR HE A EE AR ERIER
BREY DMBBERBTIRESETRE - M&ﬂ
ETRBREENBRRMRE AT BB ﬁm
B EREERREBR - BRSO HMm

MERIRE o

ZE Brhl - BRI AREEmREKER
EH'EEHHE’]H &EEEET TEIE@O

SH2: BRAIT-HEBRFENATENE P&
&E&ﬁﬁahamﬁﬁ DA BEIRE

RO - WIE A — PR R

SE3: BB i RR SRR R
BRI - T AR R A8 0 T LA A
BT -

RiRE - RERRERESMTEOER
HETBFELREIRRE §V§AE
MEERER -

ElRERERERIFGEEAEENERIERN  H
SENRREREBRELNRERER £ HA

SEBBEMALRBPAEHREEZRE  SIEHH
ERERHE R_Z—N\F BREERER
HFEZLRRERDE HBOAEENEEZE
BB R (REEHFKRE TREKEEETRE
SRR RERE) TR =BT BRI IS THE

BFER R AT M - BB 5T 5 BLEE T & 6l 5T BB FE
TR HBREEZEAABRHIBEEBAN T HLELY
[2\ B2 15 B o




8107 Hoday [enuuy PN SSUIP[OL] pajiuN e

Corporate Governance Report
rERERWRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, major risks relevant to
our businesses have been identified by the Group and respective
controls to mitigate those risks have begun to set up. The Board
is of the view that the Group’s current risk assessment system
is effective and adequate, and will perform periodical reviews
to improve and safeguard the effective operation of our risk
management system. In addition, in view of the enhanced control
on listed companies in recent years by regulators such as the SFC
and the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange, backed by
the consolidated corporate systems and procedures and internal
control manual, the risk management and compliance department
conducted sampling check on major compliance control activities
and procedures of listed companies in the second half of the year
and no material internal control deficiencies was discovered.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls.
Internal control procedures are designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure proper accounting
records are maintained to provide reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication purposes, and ensure its compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board is of the
opinion that the available resources and staff qualifications of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions are
adequate and sufficient. Based on the information furnished and
upon its own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
internal controls of the Group.

The Group regularly reminds the Directors and employees on
compliance policy regarding inside information, and provides
them updates in relation to the appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure complying with regulatory requirements. The Group
is aware of its obligations under the SFO, the Listing Rules and
overriding principles and that inside information should be
announced timely and conducts its affairs in strict compliance with
the prevailing applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests
of the Company. The Board reserves for its decision on all major
matters relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yam Wai Wah Jenny (“Ms. Yam") was appointed as a full-
time employee company secretary of the Group. Ms. Yam is
responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as the
communications among the Board members, shareholders
and management. Ms. Yam also prepared detailed minutes of
each meeting and such minutes would be sent to the Board for
comments as soon as practicable. Ms. Yam reports directly to the
Board. All Directors are able to access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary to ensure that all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year ended 31 December
2018, Ms. Yam undertook no less than 15 hours of professional
training to update her skills and knowledge pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with all shareholders. The annual general meeting of the Company
is a valuable avenue for the Board to enter into direct dialogue
with shareholders. The Chairman and the members of Board
committees will attend the annual general meeting to answer any
question raised from the shareholders.

In addition, the Company convened one SGM during the year
ended 31 December 2018 approving the HSH SPA, the HSH
Disposal and the declaration of Special Dividend and such meeting
was convened in accordance with the Bye-laws, the Listing Rules
and the corporate governance procedures of the Company. These
provided further opportunities for shareholders to comment and
vote on specific transactions.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are despatched
to shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid
by statutory and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective
communication with shareholders.

All the shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice before the date of the annual general
meetings and at least 10 clear business days’ notice for all other
general meetings pursuant to code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and
notices of shareholders meetings as required under the Listing
Rules will be available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning
voting by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting
procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are
included in circulars to shareholders dispatched by the Company
and explained by the chairman of general meeting at the meeting.
All resolutions proposed at general meeting are voted separately.

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a special general meeting of the Company. Pursuant to Bye-law
58 of the Bye-laws, shareholders holding in aggregate of not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company may send
a written request to the Board to request for a special general
meeting; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned, must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 2902, 29th Floor, China United Centre, 28 Marble
Road, North Point, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) once a
valid requisition is received.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date.

A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (Continued)

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason
of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall
be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so
repaid shall be retained by the Company out of any sums due
or to become due from the Company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such Directors as were
in default.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(@ any number of members representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders holding shares in the
Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposal must be deposited at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 2902, 29th Floor, China United
Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong or at the
Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders
concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under
Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The declaration and
payment of dividends shall be determined at the sole discretion
of the Board and subject to all applicable requirements (including
without limitation restrictions on dividend declaration and
payment) under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda and the Bye-
laws. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s actual and expected financial
results, the economic conditions and other factors that may have
impact on the Group; the Group’s business strategies, current and
future operations, liquidity position and capital requirements and
any other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The dividend
payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing via the following channel:

In respect of the corporate affairs:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
Tai United Holdings Limited

Room 2902, 29th Floor

China United Centre

28 Marble Road

North Point

Hong Kong

E-mail: ir@taiunited.com

Facsimile: (852) 2527-1144

In respect of the other shareholding/entitlement affairs:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the Directors
EE WS

The Directors are pleased to submit herewith their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group was principally engaged in
(i) financial services and asset management; (ii) commodity and
medical equipment trading; (iii) property investment; and (iv)
mining and exploitation of natural resources.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 54 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2018 by segments are set out in note 7 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 75 to 76.

The Company paid a special dividend of 28.58 HK cents (special
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017: nil) per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2018 on 18 September
2018. The Board has recommended the declaration of second
special dividend in lieu of the final dividend of 20 HK cents per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2018, subject
to the approval of the Shareholders at a special general meeting
(2017 interim dividend: 1.81 HK cents per ordinary share and 2017
final dividend: nil). Together with the distribution of the Special
Dividend on 18 September 2018, the total dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 will be 48.58 HK cents (2017: 1.81 HK
cents). Details are set out in note 16 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2018 and a discussion on the Group's further
business development are provided in the sections headed “CEQ’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group include
strategic, operational and financial risks. Each of them is discussed
briefly as below:

Strategic Risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial and
equity markets, the Group is facing significant strategic risks on
its investments when changing the strategic plans to adopt the
unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational Risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise,
resulting from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and
compliance matters, are adequately managed.

Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 47(b) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report headed
under “Financial risk management objectives and policies”.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 259 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2018, together with the reasons, are
set out in note 42 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity holders of the parent, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to approximately HK$3,107 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$4,498 million).
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EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 52 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report, no equity-
linked arrangements were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at year ended 31 December 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and investment properties during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in notes 18 to 19 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings are set
out in note 37 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this
annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTIONS OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weisong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Xu Ke

Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny (appointed on 19 April 2018)
Mr. Ye Fei (resigned on 7 September 2018)

Mr. Wang Qiang (resigned on 5 December 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Gao Bin
Ms. Liu Yan
Mr. Tang King Shing

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Dr. Gao Bin
and Ms. Liu Yan shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Each of the INEDs had made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all INEDs are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The Director's biographical information are set out on pages 21 to
23 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 166(1) of the Bye-laws provides that, among other, every
Director and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices and related matters provided that the indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of them.

In this connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 38, 39 and 45 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest subsisted during or at the end of the year ended
31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested
in, apart from the Group’s businesses, any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or were in existence during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 26 June 2018, the Company entered into the HSH SPA with
Solis Capital, which is wholly owned by Satinu in relation to the
Disposal of HSH Shares. Owing to Satinu indirectly owns 74.99%
of the issued shares in the Company, Solis Capital is an associate
of Satinu and a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, which the Disposal of HSH Shares
constituted the connected transaction.

Details of which are set out in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report, the Company’s
announcement dated 26 June 2018 and the Company’s circular
dated 31 July 2018.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in note 45
to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.
None of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
Egzll-{IIEgNs IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

As at 31 December 2018, so far as it is known by Director or the
chief executive of the Company, the particulars of the corporations
or individuals who had any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO (“Register of Shareholders”)
were as follows:
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Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Capacity and ordinary issued share capital
Name nature of interest Shares held (approximately)
(Note 2)
EARRAT
FREE BBTRA
=18 S RESMEE ROEA B2 (8 4)
(W#2)
Tai He Financial Group Limited Beneficial owner 2,655,429,222 50.58%
AMEmEEERAA ExEAA
Songbird SG PTE. LTD. Beneficial owner 1,281,805,667 24.41%
Songbird SG PTE. LTD. EmEAA
Interest held by a controlled 2,655,429,222 50.58%
corporation
REGEEFE 2
Satiny (Mote Interest held by a controlled 3,937,234,889 74.99%

corporation

Satinu 7 HEmGEESE 2 s
Notes:
1. Satinu is indirectly wholly owns Yellowbird Capital Management

(GP) Limited, which is the general partner of Yellowbird Special
Opportunities Fund, L.P. (“Yellowbird Fund”). Yellowbird Fund
indirectly wholly owns Songbird SG Pte. Ltd., which in turn owns
74.99% of the issues shares in the Company.

2. The percentage represented the number of shares held over the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018 of
5,250,019,852 shares (note 16).

Save as disclosed above, there is no person (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company) as at 31 December 2018,
had 5% or more interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the Register of
Shareholders.

Wi

1. Satinuf& # # A& Yellowbird Capital Management
(GP) Limited - Yellowbird Capital Management
(GP) Limited % Yellowbird Special Opportunities
Fund, L.P. ([ Yellowbird Fund |) 2 Z@AE A °
Yellowbird Fund [ # & & # & Songbird SG Pte.
Ltd. * T Songbird SG Pte. Ltd. % B A 2 7] & 17X
192 74.99% HE2s

2. BEOLREBRZZE-N\F+ZA=+—HFRFRGOH
EEANA R E TR D 48 £05,250,019,852 18 2 Lt
Bl (fsE16) ©

B EXAEEEIN R _E-NF+_A=+—0H"
BMEAL (RRAREZTHTETHRABRIN VA
X A Pt 2 A B I 4 P B B BOR B R IR RO B
B5% A L2 EOXR ©




8107 Hoday [enuuy PN SSUIP[OL] pajiuN e

Report of the Directors
E=RWE

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Board recognises the employees are the most valuable asset
of the Group. The Group provides the staff with competitive
remuneration packages as well as a safe, harmonious and
discrimination-free working environment.

Details of which are set out in the section headed “Employees and
Remuneration Policies” in this annual report on page 18 and the
sections headed “B1. Employment to B4. Labour Standards” under
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” contained in
this annual report on pages 31 to 35.

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the percentages of the
Group’s turnover attributable to its largest customer and five
largest customers were approximately 49% and 88% respectively.
The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 94% of the
Group’s total purchases and the amount of purchase attributable
to the Group’s largest supplier was approximately 35% of the
Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial interests in any
of the five largest customers or suppliers during the year ended 31
December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 40 to 58 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had significant impact on it.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of
business operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a
balance between the quality and efficiency of our services and
the minimisation of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental
degradation. Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive
approach to effect internal and external communications by means
of telephone, emails and conferences or such other communication
means which are efficient yet environmentally friendly. Also, the
Group are able to minimise physical travelling and printing.

More details regarding the Company’s environmental policies,
practices and performance are set out in the section headed “A.
Environmental” under the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 25 to 30 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW ON THE
ANNUAL RESULTS

The Company has established the Audit Committee with a specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The Audit
Committee is responsible for, among others, reviewing and
supervising the Group’s financial reporting process, assisting the
Board to ensure effective risk management and internal control
systems and providing advice and comments to the Board.

As at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprised all three INEDs, namely, Dr. Gao
Bin, Ms. Liu Yan and Mr. Tang King Shing. Ms. Liu Yan is elected
as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW ON THE
ANNUAL RESULTS (Continued)

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee together with the management and the external
auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee is satisfied that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for their re-appointment as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weisong
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
26 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN B AR EE

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TAI UNITED HOLDINGS LIMITED
AMERERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tai
United Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group"”) set out on pages 75 to
258, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BRRENER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional EIEEF EEERBERMOFELE > RAYHK
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the HIGAMBERRANBEAZAEENEH FLHE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These  EBRAEK MBI BEGAUEREL T EE R
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the  ETTERIEN -RMTSHELEHRESHENER -
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

HMEEtER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEANESFNAEERRENSEE

Valuation of investment properties

REWFEZ1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties,
including those investment properties classified as held-
for-sale, as a key audit matter due to the determination of
the fair value of these investment properties is dependent
on certain unobservable inputs and key assumptions
that require significant management judgments which is
assessed based on a method of valuation.
BHMERREYE (BRZESER/FIFLEZREY
FIZHERERETEE REARETZEREME
ARERANEREREARBMEEN G ZEXNY
reE T AAE R AZENEEZMR -

All the Group’s investment properties and investment
properties classified as held-for-sale, are measured at fair
value based on valuations performed by independent
qualified professional valuers, which makes reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same location and conditions and where
appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from
properties. Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are set out in Notes 5, 19
and 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
EREMBEREMERDEAFELHE ZREMET)
BEBV A EREXBEMEL 2 BERAAERS -
H2RERMERMRR c BUMEsTERHERE
B (WEA) B R RE WE 2B ABE R
EERTAZ HERITREZERASEZFBEHARLGE
S TBIRERMEES - 1934 -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s investment
properties and investment properties classified as held-
for-sale, are carried at fair value of approximately HK$856
million and HK$1,594 million as disclosed in Notes 19 and
34 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
RZE-NF+ZA=Z=+—B HWEGEeHBRE
Mz 19R34F#E - EXECREVERSER
FIEHE 2R E W T 5142 £9856,000,000 74 7T K
1,594,000,000 % 7T 2 A ALENEER ©

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties, including those investment properties classified as
held-for-sale, included:

BIMRENE (BERZEIRRF/IELEZREME) A
BETZRRFEE

o Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the
processes that the management performed in relation to
the valuation assessment;

TREEERGENGETIEFZ T BER

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuers and
obtaining an understanding of their scope of work and
terms of engagement;
TEBUAEREEGENM AT O REEE
W T E TESE R EEAR

e Challenging the valuation techniques and reasonableness
of the significant inputs used by the management and
the valuers in the valuation based on our knowledge in
the property markets;

ERHRMEMETIS 2 THREEBRERGEMNEE
FTERA 2 (M ERT R AR EIRE A v S BT IR B

o Comparing the market transactions and market rentals
with properties in the similar location and conditions to
the significant inputs used in the valuations; and
LB MERBUME RIGF 2 THR 5 RT%5HEE A
MAERRFR 2 ERERRA &

o Assessing the reasonableness of specific assumptions
made by the management and valuers on adjustments
to the properties valuations, by taking into account of
the contractual terms and conditions, location, discount
rates, market rents and other individual factors.
EEREERAEMEEEREYME 2 E BRI M
S HBE - BRIR R WS E RAMERE Z&EHY
¥HEMERAERZ ABRR AR -
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Key audit matter

HMEEtER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANESNAEERRENER

Estimated impairment of mining rights

BRI 15 51 HE

We identified the estimated impairment of mining rights
as a key audit matter due to the significant management
judgments are required to estimate the recoverable
amounts of the mining rights.

ﬁiFiﬁE%@i}H)ﬁ%%%iﬁ%iiﬁiﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%:i%lﬁ JRE=Z
EIRBAGHRER 2 PO & R AER SR HIE

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. The recoverable
amounts of the mining rights are determined based on
the value in use calculation and certain key assumptions.
Value in use calculation used the discounted future pre-
tax cash flows expected to be derived from the cash-
generating units that holds the mining rights. The Group
has engaged an independent qualified professional valuer
to perform such valuation. The key assumptions used
in estimating the discounted future pre-tax cash flows
include tungsten metal estimated selling price, estimated
future costs of production, estimated future operating
costs, recoverable reserves, resources and exploration
potential, discount rates and exchange rates.
AREREEARAABEREEXANEFERAEE RS
HoRBEEZAIKESEIRBEAEEFTERET
TERJET - AHEHEAEERRKABHREFER
BEsReEFAEM MBARRNEMNRERE - &5
HEZE - 2B EREEMERMETERMLE-
HERIRARRBAIR S REMER FEREBBEES
SEEFTEE AEFARREERE HEARREERAE -
RS BERRGHEES IR ERERE -

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the
mining rights in Mongolia was approximately HK$345
million, net of accumulated impairment losses of
approximately HK$658 million. Impairment losses of the
mining rights amounted to approximately HK$110 million
has been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2018.

RZE-—NF+A=Z+—B FHZ2RBEER
I {8 40 5 345,000,000 7 7t + H1F R 5 7% (8 5 8 49
658,000,000% 7T. = 47 i 12 3. 15 5 #8 41 110,000,000 7
TERBE-Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFEER-

Details relating to the management impairment
assessment on the mining rights are set out in Notes 5,
22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
ERAEREEHREBRE ZBREN M ZFBEHNES I
RE|MITES - 22 23 -

Our procedures in relation to the estimated impairment of
mining rights included:

B REEN AR EET 2R TR

Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the
processes that the management performed in relation
to the impairment assessment of mining rights and the
preparation of the cash flow forecasts;
THREREMRRBERRENERGRERERAE
TZRERFZEEER

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtaining an understanding of their scope of work and
terms of engagement;

BV AEREEGEM AR R HOREEIE
AT R H T AEHE [ e IR {6 AR

Evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the significant inputs and assumptions including
tungsten metal estimated selling price, estimated
future costs of production, estimated future operating
costs, recoverable reserves, resources and exploration
potential, discount rates and exchange rates used by the
management and the valuer with reference to market
information;

BIEE REEMSEZINEE RITERER FTRA S LS

AREBRARBREZAEERREE  BREESHE
et EE A RREERAE - B RREERA
ARFHE  BRRUMRES  RIRERRER

Engaging our internal valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and
discount rate used in the valuation;

V\iiliiéiﬁ KR EERAERANEETER

ﬁﬁﬁ?%%

Obtaining the sensitivity analysis from the valuer for
certain key inputs of the valuations to evaluate the
magnitude of their impacts on the results of the value in
use of mining rights;

BtERMESERE TEEHERABBNERES
A EEREEEREBEERNTEREF

Obtaining legal opinion from the Group’s external legal
counsel in Mongolia on the legal rights and titles of the
relevant mining rights; and

K15 ESBERGIMNOEEBEE AR REE 2 EIR
MmEERNLERZERER &

Obtaining confirmation from the Mineral Resources
and Petroleum Authority of Mongolia that the Group’s
mining rights are still in effect and in good standing with
no official exploitation has been conducted by the Group
and any third parties since the Group’s acquisition

EBSEROBESREOMERR 2 ®R - EEEZ

%%%W%ﬁﬁﬁff BEERTAE= 5O
o2 [ 2 o R AR A0 A 3 77 (] IE S B 2% o

EH
I
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Hib &

ERREFTHEMERAS -HAMEMBET
ENFRANEN  ETEREESMEHRRE R
P BE RS -

BAEHEEMBHRRNELL TREEMER -
BT EZEFRMEREREATANER &R

BAERMNEEAMBRROET  RANEEE
FEEMER  EltBET EREMEMZES
HGAMBERRARMEFFBRETAEAENS
MEFEEAABAEUTFFEERERBANGE
R BRBEMEAITHIE MREMBREM
BTFEEAHERRE  BMFEREXEE -
HETE - BPYRBE RS

REERARES M BRRAR

BERAEFARAERBEEESSHMASHMNC(E
BB IREER) REECR RGP # R FE 2 ki
BEEMTENGEAMBRER  YHERRRE
FEMBHREANBE T FEANRFXERME
HOERERRAPAFOABEEEE

ERBEGAUBHRRK EFREM E5H
SEEENREN YEERBATREARSEL
LHEMANER UREAKEKERSEFTER
BRIFEZHEER EXEBRIFLEE K5
BEHEMOERNERTER -

RHEEAAREE BESENYBHREEE-
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

BB B RS M BRREAEN
BE

HANER REHHSAVBHRREBESTFHE
MR EFF s R M E M E R RRAEE S B
RE - WIRB(ARZERRE) H 0 RAHEE [
ERBRRHAGERMERLNZBEIRE - Kit
BASN - AR R E R BIEE AR - ATALA
RAITHRE 2 AR HERNEMALAEEMEE
FEZEAER - AERERESKENRE B
TREREBRBCEABETERDETORF  £X
— B AR R BB TR - BRRRER L 7T A
MRS - MREBTRMTMEFLE
BERATREY BRA VB RRERERBEYER
R PTE BV EORTE - B A A 85 BR BRI AT AR
fEEX -
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau Chi Kin, Kinson.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2019

o HESKAMBHIRNEEINHRTNA  HEEMN
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ire B M EM RS
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Z
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z =& — \F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—LF
B FET FHET
Revenue &= 6
Goods and services S m kiR 4,088,275 10,658,871
Rental e 95,366 129,689
Interest A E 130,579 217,386
Net investment (losses) gains FIRE (BE) s 8 (186,343) 237,650
Total s 4,127,877 11,243,596
Other income Hap g A 9 9,026 40,939
Impairment losses, net of reversal REEE - HkREE 10 (2,886) -
Other gains and losses Hip iz R E1E 11 (124,253) 33,737
Purchases and changes in inventories FTEZHEEREE (4,077,048) (10,646,473)
Employee benefits expenses BEBFMAX (68,514) (105,066)
Other operating expenses Ha S &M% (209,456) (208,080)
Changes in fair value of investment KEMERNNBEEE
properties 19 (124,942) 148,875
Changes in fair value of assets classified S ERBIHIELEZEEZ
as held-for-sale NAEEE 34 58,000 20,000
Impairment losses on mining rights KiEEREBE 22 (109,704) =
Share of results of an associate SE— B E QAR ER (394) (35)
Finance costs LIRCIDN 12 (71,695) (177,788)
(Loss) profit before tax BrELRT (E518) 4 7 (593,989) 349,705
Income tax credit (expense) Frisfi# e (M) 13 40,596 (37,614)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(BB)mF 14 (553,393) 312,091
Other comprehensive (expense) income: £ A 2@ (FI2) Y A -
Items that may be reclassified Eig e B E Ba s HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from REBINEBEELEZEL R
translation of foreign operations (76,802) 174,650
Changes in fair value of available-for- AEHEREZ AREE
sale investments - 5,095
Share of exchange difference of an SMh—EBERRELZR
associate - 466
Reclassification of cumulative exchange P4 &[T B 2 B8 1% R 5t
differences to profit or loss upon EHEmEENOERER
disposal of subsidiaries 50 - (53,452)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange 7% H & — 1B & 22 B85 1%
differences to profit or loss upon RETEREEENHE
disposal of an associate FZiEm = (619)
Other comprehensive (expense) income — F/E E 2@ (FI k)
for the year WA (76,802) 126,140
Total comprehensive (expense) FEZHE(BAX)
income for the year ONL | (630,195)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

e Ba A 2 E R
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+tF
b= FHExT FET
(Loss) profit for the year DTATEMEE
attributable to: (E18) &=R
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEF DN (553,243) 312,096
Non-controlling interests SR (150) (5)
(553,393) 312,091
Total comprehensive (expense) DTATEGEERZER
income for the year attributable to: (B 3) YK A% :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ DN (630,045) 438,059
Non-controlling interests JEER R (150) 172
(630,195) 438,231
(Loss) earnings per share B8 (F5#E) &R 17
— Basic (HK cents) —F AR G (10.54) 6.06




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RA MR

At 31 December 2018 R =ZE— N\F+-A=+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F T—+F
[{hg=2 FHET FET
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E =S 18 19,833 35,617
Investment properties B 19 856,463 2,761,828
Goodwill kS 20 - -
Intangible assets mEEE 21 4,155 4,655
Mining rights g 22 344,837 454,541
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFAEBRZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 24 584 -
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 25 - 70,919
Deferred tax assets REFIEE E 41 615 2,039
Other non-current assets HEiIERBEE 6,000 12,853
1,232,487 3,342,452
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 26 1,333 4,542
Financial assets at fair value through BRANER AER
profit or loss LEREE 24 10,247 =
Financial assets designated as at fair BER/BRAANET AER
value through profit or loss Ziﬁﬂﬁ? 27 - 446,660
Accounts receivable FEULBR X 28 6,964 166,617
Loan note receivable Y %Qt”ff% 29 - 1,472,118
Financial assets held-for-trading FHEE ELZ/j% BMEE 30 - 2,244,524
Other receivables, deposits and Hh el RE - 2e &
prepayments AT IR 31 13,158 131,213
Financial derivative contracts ERSTES L 32 - 93,539
Structured deposits ERMETER 33 200,143 89,020
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIRITFR 33 = 1,117,534
Bank balances and cash RITHBR KRR S 33 1,167,972 1,380,685
1,399,817 7,146,452
Assets classified as held-for-sale DEARBELEZEE 34 1,740,466 680,118
3,140,283 7,826,570
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities held-for-trading BEEBESZSRAaE 30 = 6,600
Accounts and bills payables FEBR R R B IR 35 737 1,346,530
Accrued liabilities and other payables F.ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁi\ﬁﬂ}*ﬁ 36 227,760 180,300
Borrowings EBE 37 426,626 2,203,852
Amount due to Tai Capital HK BN A ZBA (B8) %8
(as defined in Note 7) (EERMWE7) 38 = 192
Loan from Tai An Capital RAARLRERZER
(as defined in Note 7) (E#& RMzE7) 39 123,585 121,847
Other liabilities Hih B & 40 - 1,203,767
Tax payables FEHLIR 49,714 77,773
828,422 5,140,861
Liabilities associated with assets classified ELD ¥ A EH & 2 BE&E
as held-for-sale @ aE 34 105,593 -
934,015 5,140,861
Net current assets RBEEFEE 2,206,268 2,685,709
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 3,438,755 6,028,161

—\FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBORERR

At 31 December 2018 R=Z— N\E+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+tF
[{hg=2 FHET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Borrowings BE 37 - 620,904
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 41 65,733 224,251
65,733 845,155
Net assets EEFE 3,373,022 5,183,006
Capital and reserves BARFE
Share capital [N 42 262,501 262,501
Reserves ] 3,107,449 4,917,283
Equity attributable to owners of the RRRHER AEGRER
Company 3,369,950 5,179,784
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 43 3,072 3,222
Total equity EmBEE 3,373,022 5,183,006

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 258 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

FISEBE AV BERRER-ZE—NE=
A+ "BEEERMAERBEETIZE  THUAT
REFRZE

Mr. Chen Weisong Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny

REMRELE PR AR £
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ & —=

EEx

—NFtZRA=t+—RLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

L2 IN 1
Other
Contributed - Investments capital Non-
Share Share surplus  revaluation Translation  Statutory contribution Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve losses  Subtotal interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B4 RE 4]
Bx  ROEE BREE EREE ERGE iTRGE  TERE  ZiHEB N FERER ]
T T T Fin Tin T T Tt T T T
(Note a) (Note b)
(fizra) iE1)
At 1 January 2017 R=%-t%-A-A 240164 4341585 52,743 - (18,458) - 7312 (394,166) 4,229,180 3050 4232230
Profit loss) for the year Egaf(BE) - - - - - - 31209 312,09 (5 312,091
Exchange differences arising from REBNERES
translation of foreign operations ZERER - - - 174473 - - - 14413 177 17465
Changes in fair value of available- AfLEREAAERD
for-sale investments - - - 5,095 - - - - 5,095 - 5,095
Share of exchange difference of Me-EBERAELES
an associate - - - 466 - - - 466 - 466
Redlassification of cumulative exchange K E— RN BAFB# 25t
diferences to profit or oss upon EiZRENIREER
disposal of subsiciaries (Note 50(z) ((E 50( s - - - (53452 = = - (534%) - (5345)
Redlassfication of cumulative exchange A E—RIBENAE
differences to profit orloss upon h gt Eﬁﬁgﬁiﬁ
disposal of an associate AHEER - - - (619) - - - (619) - (619)
Other comprehensive income EEEMRAUA
for the year - - - 5,095 120,868 - - - 125,963 17 126,140
Total comprehensive income FERMHALE
for the year - - - 5,095 120,868 - - 312,09 438,059 17 438,231
Issue of ordinary shares for acquisition
of subsidaries (Note 42) 2331 585233 - - - - - 607,570 - 607,570
Cancellation of share premium
and transferred to contributed
surplus reserve (Note ¢) (4926,818) 4926818 - - - - - - - -
Dividends recognised as distributions
(Note d (Note 16) ( - - (95,025) - - - - - (95,025) - (95,025)
Transfer to statutory reserves (Note ¢) Mﬁ Er G (ite) - - - - 57,485 - (57489 - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZF-t£+-A=1+-A 262,501 - 4884536 5,095 102,410 57,485 7312 (139555 5,179,784 3222 5,183,006
Adjustments (see Note 3) AE(RIE3) - - - (5,095) - - - 9774 (14869) - (14869
At 1 January 2018 (restated)
262,501 - 4884536 - 102410 57,485 7312 (149329) 5164915 322 5168131
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (553,243)  (553,243) (150)  (553,393)
Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign operations - - - - (76,802) - - - (76,802) - (76,802)
Other comprehensive expense for the year  £EEf2ERY - - - - (76802 - - - (76,802) - (76,802)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ £E2EH X 2% - - - - (76802 - - (553,243)  (630,045) (150)  (630,195)
Dividends recognised as distributions ERANELIRE
(Note d (Note 16) d) (i 16) - - (1,500,456) - - - - - (1,500,456) - (1,500,456)
Other capital contribution A - - - - - - 33553% - 335536 - 33553%
Transfer to statutory reserves (Note ¢) BRTATRE (Me) - - - - - 6,422 - (6422) = = =
31 December 2018 RZE-NETZRZT-8 208N - 33008 - BRB BT 3MS (899 3300 302 3373
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,\/\

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ & —=

AfREZBE

—NFrZRA=t+—RIFE

Notes:

(b)

The contributed surplus reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation prior to its public listing on 2 October 1995 and
represents the difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the former holding company of the Group acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the shares of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

As at 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017, the other capital
contribution reserve represents the initial fair value adjustment
on loan from Tai An Capital and the terms of the loan have been
changed during the year ended 31 December 2018 and details are
set out in Note 39. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group disposed its listed equity securities, which classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") upon adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 9 Financial Instruments, to
Solis Capital Limited (“Solis Capital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the ultimate holding company of the Group at a cash consideration
of HK$2,359,817,000 and the consideration received over the quoted
price of the listed equity securities at completion date amounted
to approximately HK$335,536,000 is recognised in other capital
contribution reserve while the difference in quoted prices of listed
equity securities between the date of disposal and 1 January 2018,
amounted to HK$115,208,000 is recognised in profit or loss as
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL as set out in Note 8.

On 30 October 2017, the shareholders of the Company approved a
special resolution regarding the cancellation of the entire amount of
share premium amounting to approximately HK$4,926,818,000 and
transferred to contributed surplus reserve.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a
company may not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus reserve, if there are reasonable grounds
for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the
realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts. Otherwise the contributed surplus
reserve is distributable. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Company has distributed dividends from contributed surplus
reserve amounted to approximately HK$1,500,456,000 (2017:
HK$95,025,000) to the shareholders of the Company.

According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), each of the Company's PRC
subsidiaries shall transfer 10% of their net income after taxation,
based on the subsidiary’s PRC statutory accounts, as statutory
reserves, until the balance reaches 50% of the respective subsidiary’s
registered capital. Further appropriations can be made at the
directors’ discretion. The statutory reserves can be used to offset any
accumulated losses or convert into paid-up capital of the respective
subsidiary.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z = — \F+-A=+—HIFEZ
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
==2-N\#F —E—+F
FET FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
(Loss) profit before tax BrEAT (&) & (593,989) 349,705
Adjustments for: KA Ny &HIE
Amortisation of intangible assets mIEE#H = 1,342
Changes in fair value of investment properties & ¥ % 2 A (B & 124,942 (148,875)
Changes in fair value of assets classified as DERFHIELEZEEZ
held-for-sale N EEE (58,000) (20,000)
Changes in fair value of structured deposits ERETFR AR EEE (3,519) (1,407)
Changes in fair value of financial derivative ERITEENAREE
contracts (166) (103,854)
Changes in fair value of financial assets BRARBE ABRZ
at FVTPL CREEZANEES) (29) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « BE M REZITE 10,565 20,425
Finance costs Bt TSR 71,695 177,788
Gain on disposal of an associate o — A EE 2 QAR (394) (987)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  WELEZEERE
plant and equipment 2,541 -
Loss (gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRAREE (W) 7,016 (52,220)
Interest income A B YA (8,389) (34,215)
Impairment losses on accounts receivable JRE WA B TR e L A FE MR TR 2
and other receivable, net AR - FE - 7,746
Impairment losses on financial assets, SRMEERERE  MNRED
net of reversal 2,886 -
Impairment losses on goodwill and intangible & R EF EE 2R EEE
assets - 38,408
Impairment losses on mining rights HEE 2R EEE 109,704 =
Profits attributable to the third parties’ interest = FRGAGBEETE 2
in consolidated structured entities WE 25 B A0 K 45,416 82,001
Share of results of an associate Pak (i AN E 394 35
Unrealised exchange losses REBREREE 58,138 -
Unrealised loss on fair value change of BE R ANBETABRZ
financial assets designated as at FVTPL PREEZABRAAE
25518 - 50,213
Unrealised loss on fair value changes of FIEEEZERMEE(BE) 2
financial assets (liabilities) held-for-trading RAERRAAEZHEE - 16,407
Operating cash flows before movements in EEEEHRZ
working capital KERSHRE (231,189) 382,512
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD (8m) 3,099 (2,708)
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BRARER ABZEZ
CEREERD 2,668,591 =
Decrease in financial assets designated HBERBBAANEFAEBRZ
as at FVTPL TREERMD - 32,972
Increase in accounts receivable JFE LA BR ZR 3 N (5,587) (82,851)
Decrease in loan note receivable EWEREHRLD 1,476,849 -
Increase in financial assets BIEEE S REEE N
held-for-trading - (1,602,475)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and HihEUORIE - e &
prepayments SEERE /SR il (44,405) (2,532)
Decrease (increase) in financial derivative SROTES KR (38 H0)
contracts 93,705 (2,370)
(Decrease) increase in accounts and bills FERTBR R R FERT 88 (R 4) 38 N
payables (1,248,530) 360,763
Decrease in accrued liabilities and other FET B B R H A BT R IE R
payables (5,213) (15,232)
Cash generated from (used in) operations KREE (TR 2R 2,707,320 (931,921)
Income tax paid BERFEH (39,594) (16,133)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING REXBFE (A 2R ER
ACTIVITIES 2,667,726 (948,054)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—tF
B FERT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 12 EUSZ [R Hll 3R 1717 7k 1,120,919 845,157
Proceeds from redemption of structured B [l 4518 (477 38 2 AT 1S 7B
deposits 823,021 525,282
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMRBARZESRAFE
subsidiaries 50 575,659 703,616
Repayment of loan receivables BEEEKER 213,364 =
Deposits received from disposal of HEREMEBRIES
investment properties 176,623 110,700
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAREFABRZ
assets at FVTPL SREEZFSHRIE 71,364 =
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREME TS HRIE
properties 44,199 111,817
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HER—HEE QAR
an associate FR1S IR 31,000 16,100
Interest received BB 29,479 20,646
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BMEREEZ
plant and equipment FR1S IR 1,887 =
Placement of structured deposits GFALEBETR (960,400) (610,782)
Loan advance to a third party BNFE=ZH2EXK (135,000) (78,127)
Acquisition of property, plant and UEE % - BB K&
equipment (1,972) (12,562)
Deposits refunded for potential BEWE 2 BRIES
acquisitions - 315,233
Repayment from a related company R B —E R A AR E K - 78,058
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REEEPRITER - 18,785
Placement of restricted bank deposits BFAZRERITFR - (1,114,480)
Advance to a related company BT A AT ZKE - (78,058)
Acquisition of available-for-sale WP ERE
investments - (62,961)
Settlement of consideration payable ZAUWEEESIZERER AR R
of acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings HB ARz EBARE
Limited and its subsidiaries - (62,877)
Acquisition of other non-current assets U E i IERBN & E - (2,927)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING RETEHMBREFHE
ACTIVITIES 1,990,143 722,626




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F T—+F
FET FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEED
Dividends paid B E (1,500,456) (95,025)
Repayment of third parties’ contributions in Eﬁfﬁ ZHRERE IR
consolidated structured entities =4 (1,254,157) (189,594)
Repayment of margin financing loans EERFLHMEER (1,028,403) (611,059)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (884,817) (207,527)
Repayment of loan instrument EEERTHE (650,005) -
Repayment of other borrowings EEHMEES (288,127) (40,626)
Interest paid BAFIE (62,681) (128,755)
Repayment of loan from Tai An Capital EERBRLZEARAZER (593) (70,958)
Repayment to Tai Capital HK MAZER(BE)ER (192) (14,536)
Proceeds from bank borrowings raised BERTEECMBRIA 449,566 -
Other capital contribution through disposal iﬁtﬂj%?ﬁ@ﬁfﬁ”ﬂ\?ﬁ 57
of financial assets at FVTPL TREEZH HMTE 335,536 =
Refund of excess repayment of loan instrument EEEEERT AL &5 23,096 =
Repayment of vendor financing loan BEHBREBEFENR - (32,149)
Repayment of loan notes EEEREE = (1,441,537)
Proceeds from margin financing loans 1%33% BB B TS IE - 1,328,872
Proceeds from issuance of loan instrument BITERTAZBHIA - 621,656
Proceeds from other borrowings raised E{ﬁl SEECBHIA - 328,753
Proceeds from third parties’ contributions in FEoIRGAKEBEER R
consolidated structured entities Frig5K38 - 131,923
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZEFFAZBESTFEHE (4,861,233) (420,562)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRZEARLEERDFE
EQUIVALENTS (203,364) (645,990)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEEREH 2HE
CHANGES (9,299) 10,013
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE REDzRERZEFRELER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,380,685 2,016,662
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE RERZEEREFHRELER
END OF THE YEAR 1,168,022 1,380,685
REPRESENTED BY 2
Bank balances and cash RITHEHIRE 1,167,972 1,380,685
Bank balances and cash classified DEAFELEN
as held-for-sale wRITHEBRNIAS 50 -
1,168,022 1,380,685
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
r e B SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL

Tai United Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the Company’s
ultimate holding company is Satinu Resources Group Ltd.,
a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of the
Company has been changed to Room 2902, 29th Floor,
China United Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong
Kong since 17 September 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 54.

The consolidated financial statements presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

—REH

AAMZERBR AR (ARRF D R B FETM
K R/—HEREBRAT - HRMHVRES
BAEXSIMARAR (BRA]) £ AR
AEZE(ESZDRE  ARRAIZELERA
7] & Satinu Resources Group Ltd. (—ER X &
BRZHE((RBREXZHS]) MK 2B
AR)) o ANA R Z 7 E B LK Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda° BE=ZZE—\FALA+EtHE &
REZEBEEMBMNE B AFTEIE 28
SREEE AP0 29182902 F ©

RAR B —EREERA B MAR R EZ2H
BRRZEEXBHNMESS -

e mRIAETT(DET]) 25 &R
REIZ N ER—H -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS OF THE
COMPANY’S AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES’
(COLLECTIVELY REFERRED TO AS “THE
GROUP”)

Disposal of Excel Fine Holdings Limited
(“Excel Fine")

On 23 October 2017, the Group had entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
to dispose of its entire equity interest of Excel Fine at a cash
consideration of HK$738,000,000 and the principal asset of
Excel Fine is the commercial property units located on 79th
Floor of The Center, Central, Hong Kong. As at 31 December
2017, the Group received disposal deposits amounting to
approximately HK$110,700,000, equivalent to 15% of the
total cash consideration. The remaining consideration of
HK$627,300,000 was received on 28 March 2018 and the
disposal was completed on the same date in which the Group
lost control of Excel Fine.

Details of the above disposal were set out in Note 50(c) and
in the announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2018.

Disposal of Best Future Investments
Limited (“Best Future”)

On 17 January 2018, the Group had entered into sales
and purchase agreements with two independent third
parties to dispose of its 67% equity interest in Best Future,
which engaged in provision of securities and margin
financing, trading and brokerage of futures contracts, asset
management and money lending business in Hong Kong at a
total cash consideration of approximately HK$104,940,000.
The disposal was completed on 18 January 2018, on which
date the Group lost control of Best Future.

On 1 June 2018, the Group had entered into another sale
and purchase agreement with another independent third
party to dispose of its remaining 33% equity interests in
Best Future at a cash consideration of HK$31,000,000. The
disposal was completed in June 2018.

Details of the above disposals were set out in Note 50(d)&(e).

ARRREMBAR (BRI A
EBNEAXRS

i £ Excel Fine Holdings Limited
([ Excel Fine )

R_FE—+E+A=-+=H A~EHHE—
%ﬁj%_EETjE%T%**ML%éﬁF
738,000,000/ Jt i & H i Excel FineZ & &

A% #E » Excel Finez F BEE A NE AT
BRALTIBNEEMEENL R — L
F+ZA=+—HB AEBRILERS

#7110,700,000% 7t (MEEFRAER S RED
15%) o # N {E627,300,000/8 TE N - F
—N\NF=ZAZF+NBKE  BRAKEEAD
€ 5K % B[Rl BF 5k 2= ¥ Excel Fine Z 2 Hll#E & -

Ful B EEBEFBEHNM 00 RARER
HRE-_ZT-N\F=A-t+NBZRE-

HEERBRERRAT (TEH])

$’%laﬁf‘f§—)\¢ At+tRHEREE
VE=ZFEMNEERS WRBBREREY
104940000%7&%.:./\E/\fiﬂﬁ(/ﬁ\ﬁ/\ﬁ ?ﬁé
EREFHFRRESHE  HEANEEK
A é?%ﬂi&ﬁ&z%ﬁ%i‘%) 67% 2 PR HE -
ZHEBER=ZFE—NF—A+NEHEK &
SERZ B REEEFO LG -

AREBER -_ZET—NFANA—HEEME

VEZHIUEEHZ NIRBBREKRE
31000000,%7zﬁm/\ MEW 8 T 33% 2 i%
BeZHEER - \FEXATK -

B E 2 FFBE M EE 50(d) M (e) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

T2 5 2 58 36 A R 2 H AT RRARAE T
BREMBREER
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Eo%

BN BREEL BEANNEREBETA
E15%
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2EZEE)-

2BE2LFR

BEMBREER RO BERNRZH 2D E
F2RZEIR K&t &

BEMBREER BEBMEREEREARR
FAFZEFTR RAN—GEABEMBR

EENFIRERIA
BAEGENF20E FAVBEREEIR T
pA-TIES FEZFRHZFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
Standard recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening accumulated
losses and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

° Sales of petrochemical products, metal-related
products and medical equipment; and

e Services fees, commission and brokerage income.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in Notes 6 and 4 respectively.

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 15 on 1
January 2018, there is no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements with regards
to the revenue recognition and no comparative
information has been restated.
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A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected
credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and lease
receivables and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with
the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has
not applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are
recognised in the opening accumulated losses and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
9 are disclosed in Note 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. BAMIREETEBYBR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEA((EFEBMBEHREEL D)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (#&)

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and 32 ERAMKBREERNEIREH
related amendments (Continued) T EAKRHEBIER &)
Summary of effects arising from initial application I E BB HEEREIR &
of HKFRS 9 &mE
The table below illustrates the classification and TERAZFAESHREELSREBERNVIRE
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities BB (ZZE—N\F—A—B)REES
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date MR EEREIR BB RS
of initial application, 1 January 2018. 3HIRTAHAEEERETHSBNGTE -
Financial Financial
Financial Financial assets at Financial liabilities
assets assets FVTPL  Deferred liabilities  at FUTPL Investments

Available- designated  Loannote  held-for-  Accounts  required ax  heldfor-  required Accumulated revaluation
forsale asatFVIPL receivable  trading receivable by HKFRS 9 assets  trading by HKFRS 9 losses ~ reserve
Notes — HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

i) BEERR

g §EEY

BEEAR Efg0% £

RABIA Bin BAAE
Bz BUER BFER AR BE BREz HAREZ REEf

TiitE  SREE 58 GBEE RMER GEEE RARE  GBAE  SERE  EHER f#f
WE TR TEr  TEm TR TEn  TEn TR TEn  TEn TR TAn

Closing balance at RIE-tE+2R
31 December 2017 t-BERES
- HKAS 39 -EREHEN
£30% 70919 M6660 1472118 224454 166,617 - 2039 6,600 - 139555 (5,09)
Effect aising from inital IREREARERE
application of HKFRS 9: RAZoEHE:
Redlassification BfiAE
From avalable-for-sale RAHE ] (70919 - - - - 0919 - - - (5,09) 5,005
From financial assets held-for-rading  FIEEE 2 £ BAE ) - - - (52 - 45 - - - = =
From designated as at EEBELAE o
fair vlue through ([&RrfE i
profitor logs (*FVTPL") HABR]) 0] - (46660) - - 6660 - - - - - s
From financial abltes held-for-tradng B /EEE 2 2BEE 6] - - > . = - - (6600 6600 = - =
|
Remeasurement EffitE fiyr
Impairment under ECL model BHEERBRAT Il
LA (o) - - (10,010) - (6479) - 1,620 - - 14,869 - ﬁ‘
| ] S
Opening balance at H=8-NE-E-8 m%
1 anuary 2018 BRI - - 146108 SR8 JRIB 369 S G0 19 - E
B2
[
&
=3
&
K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(@)  Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

(b)

From AFS investments to FVTPL

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9,
the Group’s unlisted equity investments and
investment funds of approximately HK$70,919,000
were reclassified from AFS investments to financial
assets at FVTPL. No fair value gains relating to
those unlisted equity investments previously
carried at cost less impairment were adjusted to
financial assets at FVTPL and accumulated losses
as at 1 January 2018. The fair value gains of
approximately HK$5,095,000 relating to those
investment funds previously carried at fair value
were transferred from investments revaluation
reserve to accumulated losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated at
FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group no
longer applied designation as measured at FVTPL
for the distressed debt assets which are evaluated
on a fair value basis, as these financial assets
are required to be measured at FVTPL under
HKFRS 9. As a result, the distressed debt assets of
approximately HK$446,660,000 were reclassified
from financial assets designated at FVTPL to
financial assets at FVTPL.

The Group has reassessed its investments in
equity securities classified as financial assets
held-for-trading under HKAS 39 as if the Group
had purchased these investments at the date
of initial application. Based on the facts and
circumstances as at the date of initial application,
HK$2,244,524,000 of the Group’s investments
were reclassified from financial assets held-for-
trading to financial assets at FVTPL.

32 BRMBHREERFIRLH
T AKRMEBIER &)

IR E B BHREEREIRZF
#HE (E)

(a)

(b)

AR E (AR E ) RE

HARHEREERAAEFAR

m

R ERE B EREREAF
SREB AEBZELTRARE
MR B E£#)70,919,000/8 7L E 7]
HEEREEMHOBEERANER
ABHZEGREE -RZT—N\F
—A—RB  BELIREARRE
DIBRBMAZEELETBRARENA
RERFFAERERARET AR
ZEeRMEERBFEIR - KAERQ
AREVNEBRZEREESHARN
B U %5 495,095,000/8 T B E &
HEEERE25E -

BRAEGFA B R LIETERIE
RREFAABRZ THEE

RYIBEAER  AEETHREZ
AABEEENGZTIREBEERE
REEREAA B ABRTE -
RARZSeREERABERS
M RELERFIFIEARETA
Bt Bt TREBEEYD
446,660,000/ 8 TLHIETE BIZ AR
Bt \BmcemMEESENER
BARBFAEBRZSREE -

AEEREBEE B SR FE 3958
BEHNAHIBEABIEEEZERME
ENBRAFLFRE  BOAEER
G ERE B HBEEZERE - AR
MRERBHNEERER &%
[E2,244,524,00078 L 1 & R 35
EEBEZSRMEEENPERRA
REFABSZERMEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b)

(©

()

Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated at
FVTPL (Continued)

The remaining financial assets at FVTPL are
financial derivative contracts not designated as
effective hedging instruments and structured
deposits which are continued to be measured at
FVTPL under HKFRS 9.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised
in relation to these assets from the application of
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

The Group has reassessed its investments in
commodity futures contracts classified as financial
liabilities held-for-trading under HKAS 39 as if the
Group had purchased these investments at the
date of initial application. Based on the facts and
circumstances as at the date of initial application,
HK$6,600,000 of the Group's investments were
reclassified from financial liabilities held-for-trading
to financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime
ECL for all accounts receivable. Except for those
which had been determined as credit-impaired
under HKAS 39 and accounts receivable arising
from property rental income classified as held-for-
sale have been assessed individually, the remaining
balances are grouped based on internal credit
rating.

32 BRMBHREERNFIRLH

TERAEBRIER (@)
WHEE BN B RERRE IR
#HE ()

(b)

(c)

()

BRAREG AR R R HIETE BIE
AAMEG ARG 22 M EE (&)

HBTRAREFAEEZEREE
R FEWIETE BB RE R TR 2
BITE RN RBEBIETR > BES
SERBEAMBREEAF IR
BRAREFABRAE -

Y ERERETEWBRSERNF
B ZEFCREEMERSBREK

ye-
BARBHA NS Z EBARE

AEEBRBEE B S ERIFE 3958
BEFFTHIEARBEEREZSRA
ENERHAERE  HOAREER
TG ER BB EZERE - &R
MRERBHNEERER A%
6,600,000 IR EHFIEE
BEZeBMABET I BEARANE
STABZFIzERmEE -

BRI EERE T A6E

AEBERTEVBEREERNFI
SEEEAERSNEERE 2
HIEHEEBRERNMERUER
Ko BRAR IR & 7 2RI 56 39 6k e 5
REEREERDBERFELEZ
MEESBAEENBURERCE
TTERIFF(ESN - 81 N EBRIRIBEA R
EEFEDA -

—\FFR

fidy
I

nE]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

()

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Except for those which had been determined as
credit-impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other
financial assets at amortised cost including loan
note receivable, other receivables, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances, are assessed
on 12m ECL basis individually as there had been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, additional credit loss
allowance of HK$16,489,000 and increase in
deferred tax assets of HK$1,620,000 have been
recognised against accumulated losses. The
additional loss allowance is charged against the
respective assets.

All loss allowances for accounts receivable and
loan note receivable as at 31 December 2017
reconciled to the opening loss allowances as at 1

5] RAMES] BB YRR
([ERMB®REER ]

32 BERAMBMEREAE IR L H

TERAEBRER (@)
W T BN B REEAE IR
#HE ()

@) FEHEEERERTH5IE (&)

BzEREEFERFEIGREE
RIEEREEN  HEHEKANGE
MEMEREENBREERR
BREWERRE HEKE
HRBIRITFRRIBITAELR - TR
1218 A B HIE & B 1R 2 2 (@ Bl 5F
e RESBVFZHERAREER
B 3 S AR R IE AN o

R-—ZZE—NE—AF—HB BERZ
HNEBERENCEEEERESE
16,489,000 % 7T & i 1E 7 TH & = 18
501,620,000 T - EDRIMEE
BEMBREIINGIBEE -

RZZT—+F+-_A=+—HB2ZE
YRR R BB ERRENMAEER
BEEAR_Z-N\F-A—HZH

January 2018 are as follows: TEERENEROT
Accounts Loan note
receivable receivable Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBWERER EREREE #st
FHT FHT FET
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF
— HKAS 39 +=-—A=+—8
—EBGTER
F 3957 36 - 36
Amounts remeasured through  FEBEIW Rt EEEH
opening accumulated losses FFTENEE 6,479 10,010 16,489
At 1 January 2018 WZZ—NF—A—H 6,515 10,010 16,525




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. BANMIREETEEMBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEAN((EEBMBREERD )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (#&)

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
3.3 Impacts on opening consolidated 33 EH ?%Mﬁ%iﬁiﬁ,ﬁU%Q%
statement of financial position arising HPNGRENBRRARZEE
from the application of HKFRS 9
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting EARGEE gt B EEs SRR
policies above, the opening consolidated statement EHMBRAKRETES - TREIS
of financial position had to be restated. The following BRTEZEEMBERZFAE T
table show the adjustments recognised for each of the HEZIBEIBEEA -
line items affected. Line items that were not affected by
the changes have not been included.
31 December 1 January
2017 HKFRS 9 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(audited) (restated)
BEME
—E—tF JEER —E-N\E
+=-A=+-H E9 —B—H
FAET THET FHET
(&R (&=E51)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBERABRELZ
PREE - 70,919 70,919
AFS investments AL ERE 70,919 (70,919) -
Deferred tax assets BRETIAE E 2,039 1,620 3,659
Others with no adjustments Hfth (R ) 3,269,494 = 3,269,494
3,342,452 1,620 3,344,072
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBERABRELZ
SREE - 2,691,184 2,691,184
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL 157 AR A LEFFA
BazoMEE 446,660 (446,660) -
Accounts receivable JRE Wi BR 5K 166,617 (6,479) 160,138
Loan note receivable [ e e 1,472,118 (10,010) 1,462,108
Financial assets held-for-trading HIEEBEZCRERE 2,244,524 (2,244, 524) = s
Others with no adjustments Hofth (fEFH ) 3,496,651 3,496,651 i
H&;
7,826,570 (16,489) 7,810,081 |<
i
Current liabilities REBEE I
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BARBERABRELZ I5¥
SHBE - 6,600 6,600 P
Financial liabilities held-for-trading FIEEEZSRAR 6,600 (6,600) - S
Others with no adjustments Hit (BFAE) 5,134,261 - 5,134,261 %
5,140,861 - 5,140,861 e
ﬂ
Net current assets nREEEFE 2,685,709 (16,489) 2,669,220 =
K
Total assets less current liabilites #EERREBEE 6,028,161 (14,869) 6,013,292




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. BAMIREETEEMBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG TR (EFBYHHREEL ]
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (#&)

(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.3 Impacts on opening consolidated 33 EAEBMBREEAFEIR
statement of financial position arising HPNGRENBRRARZEE
from the application of HKFRS 9 (#)

(Continued)
31 December 1 January
2017 HKFRS 9 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(audited) (restated)
BRI
—E-tF BEER —E-N\F
+t=ZR=+—-H Eo —HA—H
TET TET FET
(&%) (E=51)
Non-current liabilities ¥nBaE
Others with no adjustments Hfth (%) 845,155 - 845,155
Net assets BERE 5,183,006 (14,869) 5,168,137
Capital reserves N
Share capital %N 262,501 - 262,501
Reserves G 4,917,283 (14,869) 4,902,414
Equity attributable to owners of the AR FIHES AEHEZ
Company 5,179,784 (14,869) 5,164,915
Non-controlling interests IR 3,222 - 3,222
Total equity e 5,183,006 (14,869) 5,168,137
Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating M : BREEEZEREEZE T —)\F
activities under indirect method for the year ended F+ZA=+—HIEFEZEEEHHE
31 December 2018, movements in working capital EMEME  AEEBHERER
have been computed based on opening consolidated ZE-NF-A-BZHVREV%
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as MRRERFE - LA -

disclosed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. EAFIIREETTERDBR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEAN((EEBMBREERD )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (#&)

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue MM ARERZH R REIEET
but not yet effective EEUBREEN
The Group has not early applied the following new and RNEBEWEIR T FER T 5 2 58 0 1 8 R A 2K
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet ZHE REEET BB B WmE 2R
effective:
HKFRS 16 Leases' EERBREES HE
£ 1657
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BN BREEL RIEE 4
E175
HK(FRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Bk (ERMBRE FAERNBREZTREMN
Treatments' REZEE)-
REE 23N
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business* BAMEREEL ¥ ER
XL ACHEN
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative BN BREEL REEREERARHE
Compensation’ FIRBIAR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BN BREEL REZERHEBZENANEE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0RREREN  ECHALERFABRE?
Associate or Joint Venture? EHE 285 BT
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material® ERGHENE1RR MHZESES
and HKAS 8 R g ER
EXLACHEN
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or BRI ER FTEIBET - RSB E"
Settlement' 19 ETA
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and BERETER BENANAECENRE
Joint Ventures' F28REFTA Em
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BN BREED EENBREELEN-_ZT-—0Z
2015-2017 Cycle! EHES Tt FRBEE R
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January i RZF—AFE—A— B ERARZFES
2019 fE A 2
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2 R TEE 2 BEISUAERIG 2 FE8EE
determined e \ s
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZTEZ—F—A BN ERBsFERS i
2021 AR W
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for 4 WERHAR S _TF—A— Az’ =
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the e B EFEHERBS 2B EBEIR |
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 EEREE ki
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 RZEZTF—A— AU ERAZFES N

2020 A2

Ty

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned Br TR REIERT BB B EERIIN ;_
below, the Directors anticipate that the application of ESTEHRRTRKR  ERMBEMITET R ir
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no KETEENBREEAEGEEMBRERL X
material impact on consolidated financial statements in the mMEATE- &4
foreseeable future. \-|I=(:-
.|<
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements
of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant
asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents operating lease payments as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by
the Group.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

FE 3T RS S ST BB B R
40 ([ & BI SR EER )
(#&)

ERVBHREEUF16REE

ERP B HmEERFE 165 2B HHEA FoA
MANBEERHEREFRESIA—EHREE
X BEHEBYBREENE16REME -
BRBEGHERFE17REE MERRE -

ERPBHEENE16RBBEMBABEER
BHEFPENRRDHEERREE L o -
ERPBHREENZ16RREEREADRH
REEZEVBHREERNE 155K ARERAH
BERTERE/HEAKRNREMEE - &
B BHRELERFE16R T BIEFEOERE
EEHMBRE -

BREMEHERMEEEEHEEN KE2HER
MEHENEZRNABASFTEETBE
WHABABRAEHERREREEER
HERENEAER -

EREEENRERATE - MERITIIRK
K CETHIINMERERIN) B R 8 KR EE
BitE YR HERENTASHTEME
HAE - HEABRVBRRERHASNZHE
ENHRREFE -HR BEAESH(HEH
BRE)MEREENFARBECITZZE
MELAR -FRERENEMS - AKE
ARBEEHENK2IREERERE -
RERBEBMBREEAF 1655 - HRAE
ERBECHENTEOERRNEEAS KA
BHD (2 RRMERERE) °

BRETERREBEANRESN  BEMB
BEEAF16HABREET B ENE 7
SABHEANGSER YEERTELE
ABBHEDERKEHEXRERE -

BESh - BB R R AIE 16 ERHEM
HE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$21,708,000 as disclosed in Note 44. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for
low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of approximately HK$4,618,000 as rights under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening accumulated losses without
restating comparative information.

& R HTR] B SR 5] B R M I R
HEA((FBHBHREER D)
(%)

ERVBHREEAF16REE @)

mpF44pTEE R —N\F+ A
=—t+—8 " A&EHA#21,708,000% T H T~
AHECERERE VLT BETR  ZF
ZHEHEHRENTE -REAB B E®
HEAE165K  RIEMEZSHEREK
ESIRPRENER  NEEBSHAEZ
EHERREAREERAENEE -

AN REERREENTRERSZS Y
4,618,000 8 L RIER B G ERIFE 1758 FT
HAMNBETHET - RIEBBVBERSE
A 16BEBTITHENRNESE  BlKEeY
SEEF B EERMNBRENMR - Bitt -
ERZRSHNEAENTARZEHERNEA - B
NARERSERESNAZRBERATEINEE
NHEEFTAERELEENRTE -

FERFMRER R ER EXFeETE - 27
RERHEEES  AEEFEEATEES
o RERIEREAGENF1TRRER
(BRVEREREZE )R EFR4RE
ELXHELEBEHERNREENANER
BB MEERIE 1658 - M0 ¥ 55 AT E
REBEGLEAE 175 LEE (BB ®R
TREZEE)-REBEFRIRT KRB RERE
HMEMNANERZER - At - XEBERT
EEMAGAHNRERABERERERR
R FENEE - 1o ARE (ERAR
AN BERRETERLZERERMBRSE
ERE 165 - WA B REREMOAT
BIENRATE MUBSILBER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide additional guidance with the objective of assisting
entities to determine whether a transaction should be
accounted for as a business combination or an asset
acquisition. Furthermore, an optional concentration test is
introduced to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
amendments will be mandatorily effective to the Group
prospectively for acquisition transactions completed on or
after 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgements. The amendments also
align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on
1 January 2020. The application of the amendments is
not expected to have significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

FE 3T RS S ST BB B R
4B ([ EBHBHREER )
(#&)

BERUBBMELEAEIREITAZE
BHER

EBIAMAXRBNESR MREEBDHSER
BMERFEERIEREBAHERIEREE
BEAREHREINES - SN SIABES
FEAAAAFHABREN —HEBREE
EETEBREFETEHLHE R _F=
FE-A-HIZETR KBRS EF]
AEAREEMESEEREEPHRFS -

ERBTENE1IRREBETE
AISE8HERIAREARZER

ZEFEEBBRMEEBARH B IRHEE
SMESIRBBHERZERETEE - %F
BTN EMBRAMEREENENER
VR AEBE_ZE_ZEF - —BRKFE
HEEbl R - BRZFETLEBRHEXR
SEZHBRARKRERNERNTE - H
AREFESAVBERRANZRIEE -

EREFREE

BARBREHREEEGHALREG2
BB SRS EBER - b5 RAMGE
ROBEEEWARHMARLANES LT
A1 (ML RAI)) B &SR 7 0 55E 2 A
HE -

RAEMBHRRIBRBELKASERFR
HETYWERERMTARRSHERRZA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSSBEK @)

(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held-
for-sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assume as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting
a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represents the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of the associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of the associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. Change in net
assets of the associate other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interest in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held-
for-sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. The management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held-for-sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held-
for-sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 and investment
properties which continue to be measured in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in Note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature
of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Goods, services and interests

Revenue arising from financial services business are
recognised on the following basis:

o Commission and brokerage income for brokerage
business is recorded as income on a trade date basis;

o Service fee income are recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant services
have been rendered,;

o Interest income from margin clients are recognised on
a time basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the effective interest rates applicable;
and

o Insurance brokerage service income is recognised when
the underlying service transactions are completed.

Other interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Revenue from the sales of petrochemical products, metal-
related products and medical equipment are recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed.
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset.

Rental income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation of
which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Loan raising costs

Loan raising costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
borrowings form an integral part of the effective interest rate
of the borrowings and amortised through the expected life of
the borrowings, or, where appropriate, a shorter period and
recognised as an expense on an effective interest method
over the loan period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs not directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
in relation to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Singapore and United
Kingdom (“UK") and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
in relation to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in
Hong Kong are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss/profit before tax”
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value of investment
properties are included in the profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Mining rights

Mining rights that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses and are subject to
amortisation upon commissioning of the mine for production.
Amortisation of mining rights is recognised using the unit-of-
production method based on the actual production volume
over the estimated total recoverable reserves contained in
proven and probable reserves at the related mine.

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

BEXREEE @

BB R AR A REHREE
B WEARBRSIREREE - REESE
HIREAHRER cERESERD EEMMME
RER AN REFEEEZLS - £/
BRESRETHER

Eﬁé&%ﬁ?ﬁé(%%l‘%%)tﬁ

RBEYR  AEERSEABRAERF
MZBAWRENVEEZREER  MEBEZF
BERGHEARKBEBRZIR - fMiFHE
EAERTR  AfEEEEEEZ AT KRE S
BOUNEBETREBRCHE (InE) - AFE
RACEAFHcBVEENEIBEREE
B RBERE AR ERETTRERNR °

B REREEZATRE S8BT ER G
ERBEMFHERNEEKRE S EE - AKE
HEZEEEMBRSELBU 2AIRE S
B-BAUBERNEGER—BZOREER 2
AEENANEZEMNRSELEN R
TOREAINEER —BZORELEZ &
NREEEBMER -

A E S E AR ER N ERAER S ES
BUMER 2B EE - R HEREER
B RREERECARRERMIZHER
BREELREE GREELELM) ZFER
BREHE 2 AR R KT EAKRE - MR
RIREIMEIL AR FTIATE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for accounts receivable arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions
in Note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions
in Note 3) (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ( “FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions
in Note 3) (Continued)

0

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net fair
value gains or losses of distressed debt assets and listed
equity securities and their related dividends or interests
are included in the “net investment (losses) gains” as
set out in Note 8 and the remaining fair value gains or
losses of other financial assets at FVTPL are included in
the “other gains and losses” as set out in Note 11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including accounts receivable, loan note receivable, other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BEXREEE @

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMITE @)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)

0

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXRGTEE @

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) eRIA @

Financial assets (Continued) LHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 BHEEZRE (REN 3678 ZERE5

with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued) B EERIE W) (B)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () EERBAEEME)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, T b HNER  E5ANRER
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased HH#iBE308 AEEeRESERRE
significantly since initial recognition when contractual ML HREAEIEIN  BRIEREEAE
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the SRRAIZHEHRTERIER

Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the BEGFELMER  MEBITERRE
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased HRERRAREEBEEERR XTEERK
significantly since initial recognition if the debt HEBTAENEERR B VP HEREN
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the IR 8 00 o 1) L E A R B MR K - i)
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have BAEBRARENNEHREEEGNES
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the MEBEM  Ri)REPNLEHEREBRK
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual NEETFEE - WRRNHEISSE T E
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse KEEHNReREETHEN - MER
changes in economic and business conditions in the TENEERREREERRE &
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the BITENRNBRINEETRRIKE
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow FRll (RRERERNESR)  AIXE
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to EeRZzEBTANGEERRRE -

have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of AEBTFHERANBIEERREE
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a BE LMV RER R - WA S R R
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as TEHIERT - #E M R B 1R 2 B SR
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of TE 7 H R s Rl {E B R b i g hn o

identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of accounts
receivable, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKAS 17 Leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXRSTBEK @)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) £RMIE @)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)

EMEEZBE (RIEN 2 3898 K EHBE
BB RRIEIN) (B)
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(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. certain of the
Group's accounts receivable are each assessed
as a separate group. Accounts receivable with
significant outstanding balances and loan note
receivable are assessed for ECL on an individual
basis);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable, other receivables and loan note receivable
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories, including loans and receivables, financial assets
at FVTPL and AFS financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) held-for-trading or (ii) it is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets. The net fair value gains or losses
of distressed debt assets and listed equity securities and
their related dividends or interests are included in the
“net investment (losses) gains” as set out in Note 8 and
the remaining fair value gains or losses of other financial
assets at FVTPL are included in the “other gains and
losses” as set out in Note 11. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in Note 47(c).

(i) AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments
or (c) financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated
unlisted equity securities and investment funds as AFS
financial assets on initial recognition of those items.

4. EXREFHE @

e@MIAE #®)
EHEE (A)

EHEEDERERSE(R=_F—/1F—
A—HERE B HREEREIFH) (&)

() BRARBEFABRZZEMEE &)

HHIRTIER - AR EEE2ERE
ERINZ EREE - Al R AR K
BERBRAAEFABRRIE

. BBETHERARAEDL B RE
RATRMAT—HZHER : %

s STREEEARCREENSHRAE
BRDHME - WIREBEANKEEEE
R\l ER R IRE R - RAREE
EEERMEERE  MOBEHR
ARz E AR %

o EHAEARBE —EHULBRAXITE
TRAZANESED  MEBG
ERIFIVRAABNDEHAN (B
EXRAE) BEERRANETA
BERECTREE -

BARBEFABREZEREERARE
FIfR BT EEE 2 EMKENER
RIBETER  ERSREERNZE
AREXME  TREBEER LK
RE N EF W S 1R A R 1R 55 48
PR B s mat AMESAE FRE
(BB el RIRAREFABERZ S
BEENG T AR EW R RE IR AN
ANAEN [ EMlaERER] - AR
BERMEA7(Q L2 T AERE -

(i) AHLESREE

At ESMEENEE /AR ENL
WD BB @ ER R ERRR - (b)FF
BEIMBREH(ORARETFABEZ
CRMEEZIHTETR - REERYIA
HRZEFREREEIFLTRAZES R
REESRAHEESREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR AR ERRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ & —=

—NFrZRA=t+—RIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period except for
unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS debt instruments relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and
changes in foreign exchange rate, are recognised in
profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investments revaluation reserve.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including accounts
receivable, loan note receivable, other receivables,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past due, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of accounts receivable, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When an account receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve.
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is held-for-trading.

A financial liability is classified as held-for-trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Prior to application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the “net
investment (losses) gains” line item.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts and bills payables, other
payables, borrowings, amount due to Tai Capital HK, loan
from Tai An Capital and other liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (under
HKFRS 9 since 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial liabilities’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are amortised
over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of modification.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the Directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from these
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Control over Haitong Dynamic MultiTranche Investment
Fund IV S.P. (the “Haitong Dynamic Fund”)

On 15 December 2016, the Group has entered into a
subscription agreement with Haitong Global Investment
SPC Il ("Haitong Global”) pursuant to which the Group
agreed to subscribe for 50,000 Class R participating shares
at a total consideration of the United States Dollars (“US$")
50,000,000 of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

Pursuant to Notes 29 and 40, it described Haitong Dynamic
Fund as being controlled by the Group although i) the Group
has only held Class R participating shares of Haitong Dynamic
Fund and the Group is not entitled to appoint any directors to
the board of Haitong Global, which established the Haitong
Dynamic Fund and ii) investment manager of Haitong
Dynamic Fund has existing rights to direct the investment
decision of Haitong Dynamic Fund while the Group has no
right to appoint investment manager of Haitong Dynamic
Fund.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over Haitong Dynamic MultiTranche Investment
Fund IV S.P. (the “Haitong Dynamic Fund”) (Continued)

In making the judgments, the Directors assessed whether or
not the Group has achieved control over the Haitong Dynamic
Fund based on HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and considering the facts that i) the purpose of setting up the
Haitong Dynamic Fund was initiated by the Group and solely
for subscribing loan note issued by an independent third party
(the “Borrower”) and after the subscription of the loan note,
most of the investment capital in the Haitong Dynamic Fund
has been used up and no further investment decisions could
be made until the maturity of the loan note; ii) in accordance
with the subscription agreement, the Group could receive
the residual value from Haitong Dynamic Fund after paying
the principal and target return, which is 6.5% fixed interest
income of the US$150,000,000 principal of the Class P
participating shares; and iii) the Group agreed to provide the
guarantee in favour of the Class P participating shareholders
for the performance of the Haitong Dynamic Fund with the
maximum liability of US$103,000,000. After the assessment
on all the facts in the subscription agreement, the Directors
concluded that Haitong Dynamic Fund created significant
exposure to variability of returns to the Group given that
the expected return of the Haitong Dynamic Fund reached
28% during the two years term and the Group also has to
compensate any potential loss to the Class P participating
shareholders up to US$103,000,000, approximately to
69% of the principal contributed by Class P participating
shareholders, and concluded that the Group has control over
the Haitong Dynamic Fund under HKFRS 10 and the Group
has consolidated the assets and liabilities of Haitong Dynamic
Fund since Haitong Dynamic Fund set up.

In August 2018, Haitong Dynamic Fund has repaid the
principal and interest income amounting to approximately
US$159,867,000 (equivalent to approximately to
HK$1,254,157,000, including profits attributable to the third
parties’ interest in consolidated structured entities amounting
to approximately HK$45,416,000) to Haitong Global and
Haitong Dynamic Fund become wholly-owned by the Group.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over i M ZEREEE LB L ¥ (EREE)
Hangzhou Hong Nong Limited Partnership* (“Hong
Nong LP”)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 75 5 7= g8 & &=
& 1 B BR A ) Xizang Hongrong Asset Management Co.
Ltd* (“Xizang Hongrong”) and 3T AR EEEE B R A A
Zhejiang Tai Rong, Asset Management Co. Ltd* (“Zhejiang
Tai Rong”), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group, entered
into a limited partnership agreement with 37T 2 8835 & &
& 12 A R 2 7 ("Zhejiang Zhenong”), an independent third
party, in relation to the establishment of a limited partnership
called Hong Nong LP with total registered capital of Renminbi
("RMB")140,010,000 (which subsequently reduced to
RMB120,010,000 in June 2017). Zhejiang Tai Rong, Zhejiang
Zhenong and Xizang Hongrong acted as general partner,
senior-tranche limited partner and junior-tranche limited
partner of Hong Nong LP, respectively.

Pursuant to the limited partnership agreement, Zhejiang
Tai Rong and Xizang Hongrong collectively invested
33.3% registered capital of Hong Nong LP amounting
to RMB40,010,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$45,233,000). In making the judgment on control over
Hong Nong LP, the Directors assessed whether or not the
Group has achieved control based on HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and considering the facts that i) the
Group acted in the capacity of general partner who has the
rights to direct the investment decision and the relevant
operating activities of Hong Nong LP; ii) the purpose of setting
up Hong Nong LP was initiated by the Group which solely for
acquisition of distressed debt assets; iii) in accordance with
the limited partnership agreement, the Group could receive
the residual value from Hong Nong LP after repaying the
invested capital, amounting to RMB100,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately to HK$112,800,000) (subsequently reduced
to RMB80,000,000 in June 2017 (equivalent to approximately
to HK$90,240,000)), and the target return, which is 10%
fixed interest income of the invested capital, back to
Zhejiang Zhenong; and iv) the Group agreed to provide the
guarantee in favour of Zhejiang Zhenong for the performance
of the Hong Nong LP with the maximum liabilities of
RMB24,000,000. After the assessment of above facts of the
limited partnership agreement, the Directors concluded that
Hong Nong LP created significant exposure to variability of
returns to the Group and the Group also has to compensate
any potential loss to Zhejiang Zhenong up to RMB24,000,000,
which is 24% (subsequently increase to 30% in June 2017)
of the capital invested by Zhejiang Zhenong, and concluded
that the Group has control over Hong Nong LP under HKFRS
10 and the Group has consolidated the assets and liabilities
of Hong Nong LP since its establishment.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over T MEBREEEEHBIL¥ (FERERE)
Hangzhou Hong Nong Limited Partnership* (“Hong
Nong LP”) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Hong Nong LP
has acquired distressed debt assets through public auction
in the PRC amounting to approximately RMB142,947,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$164,846,000) and part
of the distressed debt assets have been disposed of with
realised gains to approximately RMB33,060,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$38,125,000) and recognised under
financial services and asset management segment.

In December 2017, the Group has repaid the invested
capital with fixed return amounting to approximately
RMB105,142,000 (equivalent to approximately to
HK$123,621,000, including profits attributable to the third
parties’ interest in consolidated structured entities amounting
to approximately HK$5,929,000) to Zhejiang Zhenong and
Hong Nong LP become the wholly-owned limited partnership
of the Group.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties, including those investment
properties classified as held-for-sale, that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.

In respect of those investment properties located in the PRC,
the Group recognised additional deferred taxes relating to
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT"”) and Enterprise Income Tax
("EIT") on changes in fair value of such investment properties
as appropriate. In addition, in respect of those investment
properties located in the UK, the Group also recognised
additional deferred taxes relating to the UK Profits Tax
on changes in fair value of such investment properties as
appropriate.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)

The Group engages in trading of commodities, including
petrochemical products and metal-related products. Upon
application of HKFRS 15, the Group reassessed whether
the Group should continue to recognise revenue on gross
basis based on the requirements in HKFRS 15. The Group
concluded that the Group acts as the principal for such
transactions as it controls the specified good before it is
transferred to the customer after taking into consideration
indicators such as i) the Group is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the petrochemical products
and metal-related products, ii) the Group has inventory
risk before the petrochemical products and metal-related
products have been transferred to the customers and iii)
the Group has discretion in establishing the selling price for
petrochemical products and metal-related products.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties, including those
investment properties classified as assets held-for-sale

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties, including those investment properties classified
as held-for-sale, are stated at fair value of approximately
HK$2,450,503,000 (2017: HK$3,441,828,000) based on the
valuations performed by independent qualified professional
valuers. In determining the fair values, the valuers have made
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same location and conditions and where
appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from properties.

In relying on the valuations, the management of the Group
has exercised their judgments and is satisfied that the
valuation technique used is reflective of the current market
conditions. Details of the investment properties, including
those investment properties classified as held-for-sale are
disclosed in Notes 19 and 34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of mining rights

While assessing whether any indications of impairment exist
for mining rights, consideration is given to both external
and internal sources of information. External sources of
information of the Group includes changes in the market,
economic and legal environment in which the Group operates
that are not within its control and affect the recoverable
amount of the mining rights. Internal sources of information
includes the manner in which the mining rights are being
used or are expected to be used and indications of economic
performance of the assets and operating results. The carrying
amounts of mining rights are reviewed for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets whenever
certain events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Mining rights are assessed annually to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. The Group’s cash-
generating unit (“CGU") for impairment assessment of
mining rights is the cash-generating unit that holds mining
rights (the “Mining CGU").

When an impairment review is undertaken, recoverable
amount is assessed by reference to the higher of 1) value
in use ("VIU") and 2) fair value less costs of disposal. The
best evidence of FVLCD is the value obtained from an active
market or binding sales agreement. Where neither exists,
FVLCD is based on the best information available to reflect
the amount the Group could receive for the Mining CGU
in an arm’s length transaction. The recoverable amount
of the mining rights are determined based on the VIU
calculation and certain key assumptions. VIU calculation used
the discounted future pre-tax cash flows expected to be
derived from the Mining CGU and the Group has engaged
an independent qualified professional valuer to perform
such valuation. The key assumptions used in estimating the
discounted future pre-tax cash flows are tungsten metal
estimated selling price, estimated future costs of production,
estimated future operating costs, recoverable reserves,
resources and exploration potential, discount rates and
exchange rates. Changes in these key assumptions can result
in changes of the carrying amounts of the Group’s mining
rights that may impact the profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of mining rights (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment losses
amounted to HK$109,704,000 (2017: Nil) has recognised for
the mining rights as the recoverable amounts are lower than
the respective carrying amounts. Details of the mining rights
are disclosed in Note 22 and impairment test in Note 23.

Provision of ECL for accounts receivable

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for certain
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, accounts receivable with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

For accounts receivable arising from property rental income
classified as held-for-sale, the Group uses past due status and
historical settlement arrangement to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. For
other receivables, the Group uses past due information to
assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s accounts
receivable are disclosed in Notes 28 and 47(b), respectively.
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6. REVENUE 6. Wi
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 A BE-_ZFE-N\Ft+=-A=1+—
BLEFE
(i) Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with () BEFEXUBMHS -
customers:

Financial Commodity
services and medical
and asset equipment

Segments 7 &R management trading Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SRR R Bmmk
EEEE BERRKBES st
FERT FERT FERT
Types of goods and services EmRREER
Sales of commodity products & P& &
Petrochemical products ALEM - 3,684,032 3,684,032
Metal-related products TEHEEE® - 361,419 361,419
Sales of medical equipment HEBEXE - 39,836 39,836
Service fees, commission and ~ BREE - HBe REL
brokerage income WA 2,988 - 2,988
Total et 2,988 4,085,287 4,088,275
Geographical markets HET S
Singapore i - 2,662,477 2,662,477
The PRC s - 1,422,810 1,422,810
Hong Kong B 2,988 - 2,988
Total #et 2,988 4,085,287 4,088,275
Timing of revenue U 355 28 BE
recognition
At a point in time RE—FE - 4,085,287 4,085,287
Over time & R I A 3 2,988 - 2,988
Total #et 2,988 4,085,287 4,088,275
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ & —=

—NFrZRA=t+—RIFE

6. REVENUE (continued)

A. For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with
customers: (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers with the amounts

6. Uz @)

H JJ:EFF(”%)
() HEFSHZWsmH7 : (F)

BE_Z-)\F+-_A=+—HIF
FE - UTHINERELEH 2 Wt

disclosed in the segment information for the year EOFERTIEE SR 2 HIR -
ended 31 December 2018.
Segment
revenue
HK$'000
7 HB U
FHET
Financial services and asset management CRRBREEER 2,988
Commodity and medical equipment trading HmhkBEREES 4,085,287
Revenue from contracts with customers HBEFEHZWE 4,088,275
Property rental income YIER WA 95,366
Effective interest income from loan JEWERER 2
note receivable BB A 130,579
Total Febc] 4,314,220
Performance obligations for contracts with (i) BEEFEHZBHEF

customers

Sales of petrochemical and metal-related products
and medical equipment

The Group sells petrochemical and metal-related
products to customers through its supply chain
relationship in the industry and medical equipment
to distributors and non-distributors comprising
hospitals in the PRC. Contracts with the Group’s
customers are mainly short term and fixed price
contracts. The revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customers’
specific location (delivery) on which the customers
obtain control of the goods. Following delivery,
the customers has full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has no remaining (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) performance obligations as at
31 December 2018.

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE (continued) 6.

B. For the year ended 31 December 2017

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as

L E3C )

B. BE-Z—tH+-A=1+-—
BLEFE

AEBERWm 2 OMMT

follows:

HK$'000
FHET
Sales of petrochemical products HEALER 5,775,660
Sales of metal-related products HECBHRBEESR 4,841,700
Sales of medical equipment HEBERE 21,627

Service fees, commission, brokerage income and RERERFPZRBE  Be -
interest income from margin clients AR A R BARA 19,884
Property rental income YIERE WA 129,689
Effective interest income from loan note receivable  EUWE FREE 2 BB FI S WA 217,386
11,005,946

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or rendered.

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. In the prior year,
the Group’s reportable segments included “Financial
services”, "Securities investment”, “Distressed debt asset
management”, “Commodity trading” and “Others”
segments. In accordance with the way in which information is
now reported internally to the CODM for purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment and the recent
downsizing of certain reportable segments, the financial
results of the Group’s financial services segment, securities
investment segment and distressed debt asset management
segment are now reported within the “Financial services
and asset management” segment while commodity trading
segment and others segment are now reported within
“Commodity and medical equipment trading” segment,
respectively. Segment revenue and segment net investment
(losses) gains are separately disclosed under “Financial
services and asset management” segment in current year.
Prior year segment disclosures have been represented to
conform with the current year's representation.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial services and asset management segment —
by aggregating different operating segments including
fund investment, provision of securities and margin
financing, trading and brokerage of futures contracts,
asset management, money lending business and
insurance brokerage service to customers in Hong Kong;
trading equity securities and derivatives in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Singapore; and managing of assets
arising from acquisition of distressed debts assets in the
PRC;

Commodity and medical equipment trading segment
- by aggregating different operating segments
including trading of petrochemical products and metal-
related products in Singapore; and trading of medical
equipment in the PRC;

Property investment segment — by aggregating different
operating segments including property investment and
leasing of properties in the PRC, Hong Kong and the
UK; and

Mining and exploitation of natural resources segment —
mining and production of tungsten resources activities
in the Republic of Mongolia (“Mongolia”).

oEER @)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 7EER @
Segment revenue and results DEU R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and NTAREERAIZ|RABE D 2 A EEBIR
results by operating and reportable segments. mREEZDNT -
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Year ended 31 December 2018

BE-_FE-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

Financial ~ Commodity Mining and
services  and medical exploitation
and asset  equipment Property of natural
management trading  investment resources Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRR Bmk FRRHE
REEEE BERBES WERE XARER @t
TR TR TR TR TR
Segment revenue ap:ll 6 133,567 4,085,287 95,366 - 4,314,220
Segment net investment AHEREER
losses (186,343) - - - (186,343)
Total @t (52,776) 4,085,287 95,366 - 4,127,877
Segment results DHEE (180,367) (11,299) (112,707) (113,369) (417,742)
Gain on disposal of an associate {T{%& — &= 1 Bl 394
Share of results of an associate 715 — & 2 5% 4E (394)
Net foreign exchange losses EREETE (73,388)
Changes in fair value of BRRAEHAERL
financial assets at FVTPL SRMEELAEE 29
Changes in fair value of BERUAETZANELE
structured deposits 3,519
Unallocated finance costs RO BB SRR (34,855)
Central administration costs RRITIR (71,552)
Loss before tax BB ATEE (593,989)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017 (restated)

oEER @)
DE MR R EE #)

BE_F—tF+-A=1—HAILFE &
E7)

Financial Commodity Mining and
services  and medical exploitation
and asset equipment Property of natural
management trading investment resources Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ERE LR RERHE
REEER BRREES MERE RAER st
THx TER T THx FER
Segment revenue ap1l 6 237,270 10,638,987 129,689 = 11,005,946
Segment net investment AHERE W
gains 237,650 = = = 237,650
Total @t 474,920 10,638,987 129,689 - 11,243,596
Segment results DEWEE 257,769 33,395 258,905 (14,296) 535,773
Gain on disposal of an associate {{%& — & 2 Bl 987
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  {H1%E — &8 2 FUaE 4,960
Share of results of an associate 2 —fE & A A1 £E (35)
Net foreign exchange gains E)Uﬂﬁlﬁn/?ﬁﬁ 3424
Changes in fair value of BERUERZANES
structured deposits 1,407
Unallocated finance costs RO BB (110,209)
Central administration costs RRITHREA S (86,602)
Profit before tax BB AR R 349,705

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales during both years.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4.
Segment result represents the profit earned or loss incurred
before tax by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including Directors’ emoluments, legal
and professional fees, office rentals and other operating
expenses, net foreign exchange (losses) gains, changes in
fair value of structured deposits, unallocated finance costs,
share of results of an associate, gain (loss) on disposal of
an associate and subsidiaries and changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities REBREERNERDHE D 2EERE
by operating and reportable segments: B2
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
—E-N\F —+F
FET FHET
(re&E75)
Segment assets DEEE
Financial services and asset management TRREREEEE 1,149,694 5,533,899
Commodity and medical equipment trading EmEEEREZ S 25,672 1,392,209
Property investment WERE 2,618,734 3,512,886
Mining and exploitation of natural resources  £##% & #1282 K SR B R 346,718 457,096
Total segment assets DEEEAE 4,140,818 10,896,090
AFS investments AHEERE - 70,919
Structured deposits HEREMETTR 200,143 89,020
Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL ROBERANETAERZ
EREE 584 -
Unallocated property, plant and equipment KO B E - BE K& 15,610 21,871
Unallocated intangible assets RoEREE 4,155 4,155
Other unallocated corporate assets Hit RO B AR EE 11,460 86,967
Consolidated assets REEE 4,372,770 11,169,022
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DHEEREE#E)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
(restated)
—E-N\F —ET—tF
FERT FHBT
(re&E5)
Segment liabilities DEEE
Financial services and asset management TRRBLREEER 46,235 2,395,458
Commodity and medical equipment trading EmEEBREZ S 5,364 1,251,371
Property investment WERE 751,927 780,141
Mining and exploitation of natural resources  £##% & #1282 K SR B R 66,255 93,679
Total segment liabilities DEEERLE 869,781 4,520,649
Amount due to Tai Capital (HK) Limited ERNARLER(FB)ERAA
(“Tai Capital HK") (IRRER(EE) ) 25AE - 192
Loan from Tai An Capital (Shenzhen) Co. RKEALEARCORIDBRAT
Ltd.* KZEARCRY) BRAA (RZ2EXR]) Z2ERK
("Tai An Capital”) 123,585 121,847
Unallocated borrowings ROBEEE - 1,307,498
Other unallocated corporate liabilities HitRHP B AR EE 6,382 35,830
Consolidated liabilities mE8E 999,748 5,986,016
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MEBEDHBREREDH 2HHEERME :
allocating resources between segments:
e all assets are allocated to operating and reportable e BREBMUEFENR ROBEEAABEGAE
segments other than structured deposits, unallocated wZemMBEE(R=ZTE—-—N\F—-H—H
financial assets at FVTPL (prior to application of HKFRS EREAVBREERNE AT - AT
9 on 1 January 2018: AFS investments), unallocated HERE)  ROEWE - BB REME -
property, plant and equipment, unallocated intangible ROEEBEEEREMROEAREE
assets and other unallocated corporate assets (including (FEBRAPERITEHKIAS) I
primarily unallocated bank balances and cash). FBEEADRELERATZHD 0 - -
e all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable e BRENAZEXREER)ZHE KREK ﬁ;
segments other than amount due to Tai Capital HK, LZEAZENR ROBEERAMKS <
loan from Tai An Capital, unallocated borrowings and EARBEN  FIBEAEADEELE }ELW
other unallocated corporate liabilities. NE 2y AL N
*  The English name is for identification purpose only. * O RXEBIREHRBR - <4
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @
Geographical information ih & & R
The Group operates in five principal geographical areas — AEERAEEZME —FNE FE - -FE -
Singapore, the PRC, Hong Kong, the UK and Mongolia. EERRHETEE -
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of REEREENE QRS EEE HRE N
the relevant subsidiary’s operations and information about its HEPWERZEEABIEE D 2R
non-current assets by physical location of assets are detailed EEBRFBEET -
below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets (Note)
RENBEFKE ERBEE (M)

2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(restated)
—E-N\§ —Z—tF —E-N\§ S
TET THT TER TR

(mE7)
Singapore N 4,045,451 10,617,360 1,113 3,330
The PRC i 133,800 112,979 4,877 1,688,616
Hong Kong B 133,567 235,810 22,207 36,988
The UK R 1,402 39,797 856,796 1,083,038
Mongolia 5d - - 346,295 457,022
4,314,220 11,005,946 1,231,288 3,269,494
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTPL (prior to ek : ERBEETBIEEREAABETFAEBERZS
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018: AFS investments) MEE(R_T—N\F—A—BHERABH
and deferred tax assets. BHMEEREORA : AIHEERE) KB

JEFRIRERE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @
Information about major customers FEEFZEHR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total REEFEASEMERE S ST ER B
revenue of the Group for the corresponding years which EEBKZEE10% A EHRF U T 0
exposed the Group to customers’ concentration risk are as N
follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—tF
THET FET
Customer A BEPA 2,012,913" 6,291,645
Customer B =FB 608,473" N/A 7~ jii 3 2
1 Revenue from commodity and medical equipment trading ! REBMERBEREE S D HBHWES
segment.
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the 2 ARG EARNEE LW TR 10% AL -
total revenue of the Group.
Other than Customer A and Customer B, there was no BREFAREFPBIN  BiEREHME P K
revenue from other customers individually contributing over 1 5] 72 7 5 3] 7 i 18 67 2 48 W2 B8R 10% A
10% of the total revenue of the Group for both years. o
8. NET INVESTMENT (LOSSES) GAINS 8. FRE (FHE) W=
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+tF
TET FHET
Changes in fair value of financial assets BEAR ﬁuﬂ‘)\ﬁ?&z
at FVTPL TREEANES (186,343) -
Changes in fair value of financial assets RIEEEZ® Vﬁﬁﬁ? (B8R
(liabilities) held-for-trading NABEEH - 157,049
Changes in fair value of financial assets ?amﬁ'ﬁ NAEFAERZ
designated as at FVTPL ERMEEAAEE - 80,601

(186,343) 237,650




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hi A
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+tF
FHExT FHET
Interest income from: KRENUNTEIEFEWA -
— restricted bank deposits —ZREIRITER 4,036 28,284
— bank and other deposits —8R1T R EAMIF K 4,353 5,931
Sundry income HIBA 637 6,724
9,026 40,939
10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF 10. BEREE » HIBREE
REVERSAL
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FHET FET
Impairment losses (recognised) reversed on LA N E (BE#R) B &R 2
REEE
— accounts receivable — AR SR (10,523) =
— loan note receivable —-RBUREREE 10,010 =
— other receivables — H fth B U FRIR (2,373) =
(2,886) -
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 HE-ZT-N\F+_A=+—HIEFERE
December 2018 are set out in Note 47(b). A FEIBE AT FE47(0) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

11.

12.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES M. HitlsEm R EE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—tF
FET FET
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains i 5 (B518) W F 58 (73,388) 3,424
Profits attributable to the third parties’ EZTNEEEBTEER
interest in consolidated structured entities ez FEA = F (45,416) (82,001)
(Loss) gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR (BE) K
(Note 50) (FfE50) (7,016) 52,220
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WE MEEEE
equipment (2,541) -
Changes in fair value of structured deposits 458 1477 7K A 7t (B & 3,519 1,407
Gain on disposal of an associate o — A QR 2 s 394 987
Changes in fair value of financial derivative ~ ®BIHTEA KA REEF
contracts 166 103,854
Changes in fair value of financial assets at EARBEFABRZ
FVTPL TREEAAEY 29 -
Impairment losses on goodwill and intangible 7% & & 2 & & REE 18
assets (Notes 20, 21 and 23) (BF3E20 ~ 21 %2 23) - (38,408)
Impairment losses on accounts receivable JE 8RR TR K HL At FE W kIR
and other receivables, net AR - FH
(Notes 28 and 31) (BsE28 & 31) - (7,746)
(124,253) 33,737
FINANCE COSTS 12. BA AR
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
==E2-N\F —E—+tF
FTER FHET
Interest expenses on THIFENF R
— secured bank borrowings —BHEARITEE 22,623 54,640
— margin financing —RESME 20,440 29,506
— other borrowings and loan instrument —HMEERERITA 19,618 50,776
— loan from Tai An Capital —RERRERZER 9,014 10,507
— loan notes —BRER - 29,421
— vendor financing loan —BAMEER - 1,123
Others Hh - 1,815
71,695 177,788

—\FFR

fidy
|
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Singapore CIT is calculated at 17.0% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the PRC EIT rate of
subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC was 25% or at
a lower concessionary rate of 9% for subsidiaries operating in
the Tibet Autonomous Region for both years.

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 13. 8% (&R X
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
FHExT FHET
Current tax: RATRLIE ¢

The PRC EIT Bl EATIET 3,655 26,817
Singapore Corporate Tax (“CIT") PO ER ([RER) - 12,689
Hong Kong Profits Tax HENEH 9,635 11,800
The UK Profits Tax FEFS B - 20,927
13,290 72,233

Under (over) provision in prior years: RBAFERENT (BEEE) :
Hong Kong Profits Tax HENEH = (226)
The PRC EIT B ETIET 188 (195)
Singapore CIT SN 1 A 206 =
394 (421)
Deferred tax (Note 41) EIERIE (FTEE41) (54,280) (34,198)
(40,596) 37,614

TN 1 ZETH TH AR U P (18] 45 2 10 b BT FE AR AR
AR 17.0% FHE -

RZEBE—-—NE=ZA-+—8 BEILLSAE
BT —EFHBEER) (F7%) GOIBER
(MMEBIEZR]) » E5| AMEHIFIEREFE
BOERERR-_ZT—N\F=ZA=-FN\BEEK
BERITNEBAEZTR - RIEMASFIG
MESE - A&ERD IR E 2,000,000 7T %
512 8.25% B £ E B - M 8 38 2,000,000
T E R A 512 16.5% B TR R EH - T A
FI 15 B W AR B & A8 KSR E Y 5 B S 4 B
16.5% KI5 — Bl BB TLIA o

Eit - BARFER - BEFGHIRGFER
T 1) & 2,000,000 78 T 1% 8.25% 51 B M K i
i 2,000,000 7 7T &) {4 5T FE R B E 12 16.5%
BEPESCEMSHE(DEMREHRED &
TEMBFEZBHRIEN  RMEFE K&
ERFBEELHHEBRRNPBESEMGH
TE B 25% LTI AR E & &R B A
H9% BIEKEERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 13. T8 (E&) X (@)

(Continued)

Subsidiaries incorporated in Mongolia are subject to
Mongolian income tax which is calculated at the rate of 10%
on the first 3 billion Mongolian Turgrik (“MNT") of estimated
taxable income and 25% on the amount in excess thereof.
No provision for Mongolian income tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as there are no assessable
profits for both years.

The UK Profits Tax is calculated at 19% (2017: 19.25%) of
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be reconciled
to the (loss) profit before tax in the consolidated statement of

REHFMA LB 2 AMNS & E
FTEH AR AGBTERBRAS
3,000,000,0005 B 27 ([ & E 1 E
7R 10% M EAE - #BHEH &R 25% 8
MEFFE - ARMEFE W EEEERT 5
Ao EH I KRR ARG M IRE R & B AT
SBEH B -

EEMNESHIBERE_Z—-N\E+ A
Z+—BILEFENEERBREFIZ19% (=
T—+4F 19.25%) 5T & o

AEEHMEH (HR) AxBRaRa R EM
EEWKERZRBE (BR) EMERMT -

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—tF
FERT FHET
(Loss) profit before tax Br AT (B518) )i ) (593,989) 349,705
Tax calculated at the applicable domestic BRAMBRMEREFEZ
income tax rates (Note) BIE (M) (122,873) 77,062
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR 2 B &
tax purpose 47,088 50,954
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERRIMA 2 B2
purpose (25,109) (37,311)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBE B 2 BB 2 92,416 18,568
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AIEAARERBIBEE 28 A
recognised - (15,043)
Effect of concessionary tax rate of RAR B AREEEBLZ
subsidiaries operating in the Tibet MEBAREERE 2 w2
Autonomous Region - (5,316)
Under (over) provision in prior years RBTFERET R (BEEE) 394 (421)
Deferred tax effect of LAT in respect of BREAMRFEREMEAAE
changing in fair value of the investment LaE) s THIRER 2
properties located in the PRC RIETRIEE (32,512) (49,414)
Exemption and allowance from Singapore BTN RS B0 2 B e K wi b
tax authority - (1,465)
Income tax (credit) expense for the year REEAEH (BRe)FAX (40,596) 37,614
Note: The amounts represented the combined effect of the Mist: ZERERESEERREREREEEEL

ERERRZEEREANERME &
AARERREEE(ME)NAHTE -

group entities basing on actual tax rates applicable for each
jurisdiction where the relevant group entities operate, taking
into account of applicable tax concession, if any.

[—M

BR

sl
| =+

&
K

'
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14. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. XFE (F8) &7
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\#F —E—tF
FHET FHTT

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived AFEE (BB B F Tk

after charging (crediting): (Tt A) T3 & IBBZED :
Directors’ emoluments (Note 15) ZEME (HI5E15) 22,402 27,603
Other staff costs: Hh 8 TR
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind —Fe  FRHREDHN R 42,281 72,598
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ — 3B K48 F 5 B £ 7% 3,831 4,865
Total staff costs B AERE 68,514 105,066
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 2,905 4,780
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense B R AR 2 FEHA 4,077,048 10,646,473
Depreciation of property, plant and W BENRERETE
equipment 10,565 20,425
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH - 1,342
Legal and professional fee (Note) FEREEER (M) 14,794 33,142
Operating lease rental in respect of office BEEAMREMEZ
premises KEHERS 26,302 28,501
Gross rental income from investment KREVEFGEHS
properties WA 4858 (95,366) (129,689)
Less: direct operating expenses arising from  Ji : EAHES WA Z L EWE
investment properties that generated FIEACBERKERX
rental income 12,198 13,099
(83,168) (116,590)
Note: Legal and professional fees mainly related to various corporate Mzt : RMEFER EZEREXERTEER
projects of the Group including acquisition and disposal of SESHECXBEER  BIEME49 X550
assets/subsidiaries/an associate as disclosed in Notes 49 and 50 BEZHERLEEE /HEAR, —M
during both years. NI
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 15. 2B - FETHAERESH
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS %

TREIINBERNEHESTZ2ETER

The following table sets forth certain information in respect
of the Directors during the reporting periods:

Date of appointment
as the directors

Name Position of the Company Date of resignation
BZER

] B ARNRESAH BIEH

Mr. Chen Weisong Chief executive officer and executive Reappointed on 27 October N/A (Note i)

director

2017 (Note i)

BREREE THREHFENTES RZE—+E+AZ++H @ (FEE)
EINERE (M)

Mr. Xu Ke Executive director 1 June 2016 N/A

BAksE HTER ZE-RERA-H TiEF

Dr. Kwong Kai Sing Benny ~ Executive director 19 April 2018 N/A

BRKEL HTER —Z-\§WATIA TiEF

Mr. Wang Qiang Executive director 16 December 2016 5 December 2018

FREE HTES ZE-RFTZATH —Z-\£+-AAhA

Mr. Ye Fei Executive director 28 October 2016 7 September 2018

Bgs HiTEE “Z2RETAZTNR “Z-N\¥hAtH

Dr. Meng Zhaoyi

Chief executive officer and executive
director

24 May 2016 (Note ii)

27 October 2017 (Note ii)

AREEL THRAFRNTES “Z- R FRA=TMmA ZZ—+tF T A= ++A (i)
GED)
Dr. Liu Hua Executive director 8 January 2016 9 October 2017
mEEEL HTEE —E-RE-ANR “Z—+t%TANAH
Mr. Chua Hwa Por Chairman and executive director Reappointed on 1 February 11 July 2017 (Note iii)
(“Mr. Chua") 2017 (Note iii) g
ZEREE((ERE]) TRENTES RZZ—+F-A—H ZZ—tF+tA+—B (i) &
EHTHEE (B 3i) Y
Dr. Gao Bin Independent non-executive director 20 November 2015 N/A E|4W
BAMT BUENTEE —T-8F+-A=1A TER a
i
Ms. Liu Yan Independent non-executive director 18 June 2015 N/A (4
glent BUENTEE —2-a5AA+/\R el =
T
Mr. Tang King Shing Independent non-executive director 1 February 2017 N/A %
WEREE BUENTEE —2—t%=f-A ¥l H
e
Mr. Mao Kang Fu Independent non-executive director 5 January 2016 Passed away on 7 December 2017 'K
BRRELE BUFNTES —ZT-R"%¥-ARA RZZB—+tF+-AtHET
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15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(0)

(ii)

(iii)

Mr. Chen Weisong was appointed as an executive director of
the Company effective from 22 June 2016 and resigned for
this position on 25 April 2017. Mr. Chen was reappointed as
chief executive officer and executive director of the Company
effective from 27 October 2017.

Dr. Meng Zhaoyi was appointed as an executive director of
the Company effective from 24 May 2016 and being the chief
executive officer of the Company effective from 8 June 2016.
Dr. Meng was resigned as the chief executive officer and the
executive officer effective from 27 October 2017.

Mr. Chua was appointed as chairman and executive director of
the Company effective from 19 January 2016 and resigned for
these positions on 8 July 2016. Mr. Chua was reappointed as
chairman and executive director of the Company effective from
1 February 2017 and resigned for these positions on 11 July
2017.

15. B - FETHAEREEMN

kY

&)

GEE

U]

(i)

(iii)

REDLEREZAALRRBRITESE B
E-RNRERNAZ+T-_HEAS IR =
—tFMAZ+RAAREUEN -REEE
TEZAAARAITRARZNTES 7
—E—+FE+A-+LBERBRER -

HREBLIRZEAARRABRTESE A=
Z-RFLA-tTMBERER  IRERF
TRER BT RFERNANBRER-
HETHETHRARIRBTEE A -F
—tFtAZTERRBER-

BARLEZERARAIERATES
BEZZ-A"E-ATABRER IR _F
—RNELANABEURA B EENE
ZERTFERVTEE A-_F—tF_8
—HRER IR _FB—-—tFLtA+—B#
ERRERA -
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15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 15. 2B - FETHAERESH

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

cAC )
() EERFETHAEMS

FEANESERETZTRABZMESRIE
EAETRAREE R BGHRENT

BE-_FE-\F+-HA=+—HIFE

Dr. Kwong
Mr. Chen Mr.Ye  Mr. Wang Kai Sing
Weisong Mr. Xu Ke Fei Qiang Benny Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERLE BRAKE g4 ITREE BRAEL “ay
TR TR TR TR TR TR
EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS ~ #{TES
Fees e - - - - - -
Other emoluments Hipfi &
Salaries, allowances and e BER
benefits in kind ENFA 6,497 6,361 2,524 4,106 1,821 21,309
Retirement benefit scheme  RIKBF|F 2
contributions 18 18 14 130 13 193
Subtotal N 6,515 6,379 2,538 4,236 1,834 21,502
Dr. Gao Ms. Liu Mr. Tang
Bin Yan King Shing Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
mEEL g+ BEMEE ko)
TR THET THERr TR
INDEPENDENT NON- BYFHTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees we 300 300 300 900
Other emoluments Hi & - - - -
Subtotal Nt 300 300 300 900
Total RS 22,402

—\FFR

fiyr
|
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15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

15. B - FETHAEREEMN
cAC )

() EERETETHAEME @)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’

8107 Hoday [enuuy PN SSUIP[OL] pajiuN e

emoluments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE-_E—+tF+-HA=+—HIFE

Mr. Chen Mr.Ye  Mr.Wang Dr. Meng Dr. Liu
Weisong ~ Mr. XuKe el Qiang  Mr.Chua Zhaoyi Hua Total
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BROGE  BURE  EEEE IHAE £%5 ZIMERT  MEEL 2%
Tin A FiEn T AL Thn AL Tin
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Ui7Es
Fees i3 = - - = = = = =
Other emoluments Efbie
Salaries, allowances and e Bk
benefits in kind Enila 1,881 6,360 4304 4349 3307 3850 2192 26223
Retirement benefit scheme RIVRRIET BN
contributions 1 18 18 120 9 15 14 205
Subtotal gt 1892 6,378 4322 4469 3,336 3,865 2,166 26,428
Dr. Gao Ms. Liu Mr. Tang Mr. Mao
Bin Yan  King Shing Kang Fu Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REBLT MLt BERLE ERRALE ek
FTHAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
INDEPENDENT NON- BYFHTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees we 300 300 275 300 1,175
Other emoluments Hi & - - - - -
Subtotal NEt 300 300 275 300 1,175
Total mE 27,603
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15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries. The independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office during both years.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
year ended 31 December 2018 included three directors
(2017: five directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in the disclosures above. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018
of the remaining two highest paid employees (2017:
Nil) who are neither director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

15. B - FETHAEREESMN
cAC )

() EERTETHAEME @)

ERATHTEERTIZTHRAENE
TEDRRRERNARERMELQFR
HZEERB M o ERARZEIL
FHRTEFE M I EZNRRBEFEME
ARRBFEZRBMAS

RAEFEEAR NEBEMERES N
EAHE  ERMAREELMALRE
B2 BB RBER 2 fME -

EENMEFEABREFLREXRE
MEEI S8 5 -

(b) BEM=

BHE-_Z— ) \F+=-ZA=+—HL*F
E AEEREERTHNEERE=S
EE(CTE—tF:RARES)  HES
HEREXHE -BHE—_T—N\F+-A
—t+—BIEFE B THEE=HHE
B(ZZ—+tF:2)(WEARQRAES
REBITRAR) ZSFFBOT ¢

2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
FET FET

Salaries, allowance and other e R
benefits in kind HiEMEH 6,227 =
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R 48 Fll 512 £ 7% 36 A
6,263 -

—\FFR

fiyr
I

nE]

AFERRE R
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15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employee who is not
director nor chief executive of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands are as
follows:

15. B - FETHAEREEMN
cAC )

(b) EEME &)

WIARAREEFHETEZTHAEAHE
NETIEEZEHMEEHBWT :

No. of employees

EEHA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T & 3,000,000 7 7T 1 =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T & 4,000,000 7 7T 1 =
2 —
16. DIVIDENDS 16. R 2
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
=E-N\F —E—+F
TET FHET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of AR EBRERFEER
the Company recognised as distribution BRI ERAD IR ZKE
during the year:
2018 special dividend — HK28.58 cents —E-N\EFEIRE -8R
(2017: 2017 Interim dividend 28.58 B (ZE—+F :
— HK1.81 cents) per share 2t FHhHRE
1.817%8(L) 1,500,456 95,025
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a special REmEHRE EFCBEBTREEHE
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of E-N\F+ZA=+—HLEFEZENER
HK20 cents (2017: Nil) per ordinary share, in an aggregate BEBR200BIW(ZE—EF 8BRS
amount of approximately HK$1,050,004,000 (2017: Nil), has #71,050,004,0008 T (ZE — 4 : #|&) - &

been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming special general meeting.

NN

AN IR RS ERACRALE - T AIEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

17. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. 3R (G18) B
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share RRAFHAEANEENEGRER (BB) BFT)
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BT EERAE -

following data:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\#F —E—tF
FET FET
(Loss) earnings (B8 &BF
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ARFEERER (F18) &F|
owners of the Company for the MANBEBABEFER
purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share (E18) m (553,243) 312,096
2018 2017
‘000 ‘000
—E-N\F —E—LtF
Sl F A%
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary ARGEERER (EBE)
shares for the purpose of calculation of &R 8 38 AR N T 1A B
basic (loss) earnings per share 5,250,020 5,149,656
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the weighted average HEZZ—+tF+-A=+—HLFE A
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings RAEGREARBT M METFAHMERNZ
per share has been adjusted for the issuance of shares as Tt F=RABTRODERRBRERERS
consideration for acquisition of Tai Infinite Holdings Group EERATKEWBAR ([RKEEE] 2K
Limited and its subsidiary (the “Tai Infinite Group”) in March BEL TR - WEFBH N9 -
2017. Details of the acquisition are set out in Note 49.
No diluted (loss) earnings per share for both years were HRREFENTEEFTEEEBR W
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue WMEZIMEFENESREE (B18) &8 -

during both years.

—\FFR

fidy
I

nE]

AFERRE R
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - BMERRZE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment Machinery vehicles Aircraft Total
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bah -
EELER
HEZE  BOERE W RE fid: @zt
TEL TEL TEL TET TET TET
cost A
At 1 January 2017 KZE-+5-A-H 7,750 10,473 - 15,415 155,000 188,638
Additions hE 1,752 3,624 2,302 4,884 - 12,562

FRUE-RNBLARES
(Ht3£49) - - = 4,250 L 4,250
ERLE-HHBAR

Acquired through acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 49)
Disposals through disposal

of a subsidiary (Note 50(b) & (M3 500)) - - - = (155,000) (155,000)
Exchange realignment ERAE 301 420 - 176 - 897
At 31 December 2017 9,803 14517 2,302 24,725 - 51,347
Additions 1,230 142 - - - 19712
Disposals & (3,119 (217) (670) (4,887) - (8,893)
Disposals through disposal of a BELENBLRLE

subsidiaries (Notes 50(d) and 50(f) (Bt 50(d) & 50(f) (904) (2,667) - - - (3,57)
Exchange realignment EHAE (243) (327) - (81) - (651)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F+ZF=1+-R 6,767 12,048 1,632 19,757 - 40,204
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Rif#E
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-A—-H 1,189 1,689 - 1,625 1,568 6,071
Provided for the year EREE 2,404 3338 460 4812 9,41 20,425
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary W&~ B A AR E

(Note 50(0)) (GEFIO) - - - - (10979) (10979)
Exchange realignment EHAE I 110 - 3 - M3
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1-H 3,664 5137 460 6,469 - 15,730
Provided for the year ERNEE 2,546 2,975 419 4,625 - 10,565
Eliminated on disposals HERH (2.835) (49) (24) (1,357) - (4,465)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries 1t &M B2 F1E I35

(Notes 50(d) and 50(7) (Fr3E500) R 50(0) (130) (1,001) - - - (1.131)
Exchange realignment EHAE (130) (165) - (33) - (329)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\ETZA=1-H 3,115 6,897 655 9,704 - 20,371
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\ETZA=1-H 3,652 5151 977 10,053 - 19,833
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-A=1-H 6,139 9,380 1,842 18,256 - 35,617

EimE - BERRERG ARSE 2 HEHE
HEERABREZATENERE

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, on a straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Over the shorter of HEEE HEFMESF
(A& EE BE)

Leasehold improvements
lease term or 5
years

20% t033.3%

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% £33.3%

8107 Hoday [enuuy PN SSUIP[OL] pajiuN e

NS
Machinery 20% 10 33.3% Hes 20% £33.3%
Motor vehicles 20% 10 33.3% " 20% % 33.3%
Aircraft 14.3% b4 14.3%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REMHE

HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE ARE
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H 3,625,760
Acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 49) & B U BE T B A ﬂﬁ%%’c (ff¥3E49) 606,529
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RERTERAZANEE 148,875
Reclassified as held-for-sale (Note 34iii)) EHOBEABELE (WE 34(ii)) (660,000)
Disposals s (111,817)
Disposals through disposal of a subsidiary (Note 50(a)) & #8 tH & — [ & 2 & & (Ff5E50(a)) (1,189,720)
Exchange realignment ME 57, 58 B8 342,201
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+F+ZA=+—H 2,761,828
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RiBm PR ANBEZE) (124,942)
Reclassified as held-for-sale (Note 34(iii)) BB AFERE (& 34GiH) (1,660,976)
Disposals S (44,199)
Exchange realignment ME 33 8 (75,248)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+-A=+—H 856,463
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
==E2-N\F —E—+tF
FTET FHET
Unrealised (losses) gains on investment FFAGREERREMEE
properties revaluation included in WamkA 2R EYESH 2
consolidated statement of profit or loss REH (BE) a
and other comprehensive income (122,679) 63,986

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31

AEEMAERBELEEERAURNESHK
EEABEZMFEREEERAAERAG
BEXNBERARERKREDE -

REFBZREMER_ZT—NFR=ZZT—+

December 2018 and 2017 and the date of reclassification FTZA=T—BURREF S EERE #
to assets held-for-sale have been arrived at on the basis of HEMEEE Ei Z’A/‘CTETJ Fh B 7K £ [ ﬁ;
valuations carried out by Cushman & Wakefield LLP and BEEANE 2 B A B R HEE (L (ERD Cushman & <
APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC"), Wakefield LLP&E{EK,%EXEEWE&EE BARQ |
independent qualified professional valuers not connected AI(TRARDDRETZHEERE - W
with the Group. I54

. . . . . . 3
In determining the fair values of the investment properties, REERENEZAREMNE  AKEZE o
the Group engages independent qualified professional valuers BUAERBEMBEMETHE AEEE E
to perform the valuation. The management of the Group BEEKEZRRSE UlUZRAZEA Ex
works closely with them to establish the appropriate valuation FEETRBAZSE TRAEFEREREE BH
techniques and inputs to the model and explain the cause of MEARBEREZER - =
fluctuations in the fair values of the investment properties to z
the board of directors.
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19. REWE @)

RBE-Z-N\F+_A=t—HLFER"
FrARfEERMBEZES - RAEFHERER S
ZREMEAAER  REVEZ&RRS MK
TRERERBRE -

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
during the year ended 31 December 2018. In estimating
the fair values of the investment properties for disclosure
purpose, the highest and the best use of the investment
properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used).

TERBINZEREMEINBZEETAZ
ERtCLERGBERMEMAEAZE)

Investment Valuation Significant observable/
properties technique unobservable input(s) Sensitivity
REM* HER EXUBE TAUBREHAHE HREE

As at 31 December 2018
R-E-NE+=-A=+—H

8107 Hoday [enuuy PN SSUIP[OL] pajiuN e

Residential property units Market comparable
located in the UK approach

NRBEBEZEEYEE MHLEE
o

-
|

As at 31 December 2017
R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—~H

Residential property units Market comparable
located in the UK approach

UREBZEEYERE THLEE
i

Hotel facility located in
the PRC

Income approach

fRhBRZEERE  REE

Market price of comparable properties
ranging from Great British Pound
("GBP") 2,351 to GBP2,840 per
square foot, by taking into accounts
of the accessibility, size, location
and conditions and environment of
properties

A RZEMENENL - KN LE
EERRRER  AELBYENT

BAREFHR2,351 HEEE 2,840
HeE

Market price of comparable properties

ranging from GBP1,602 to GBP3,313

per square foot, by taking into
accounts of the accessibility,
size, location and conditions and
environment of properties

B RZEMEOEME - K L E
FERRRFER  AELBYENT

BAREFHR,6025EEE3,313
K

Gross monthly rental income of
RMB6,600,000

Term yield: 1.0% to 4.5%

Reversionary yield: 1.5% to 5.0%

RS2l ABEAARE
6,600,000 7T

BEERE : 1.0% £4.5%

EHERE : 1.5%£50%

A significant increase in the market
price per square foot used would
result in a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa.

BFHREMBOTEARENEE
BAFERBEN K2R -

Asignificant increase in the market
price per square foot used would
result in a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa.

BYHREANTEAEE NS E
BAFERBEN R2ZINA -

A slight increase in the term yield
and reversionary yield used would
result in a significant decrease in
fair value, and vice versa.

FRNEBHEREREFERE/)
M SEBDABEANERD
[ 2 To%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
under Level 3 fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 are as follows and there were no transfers out of
level 3 during both years:

19. REWE @)

RIB-NFR-_ZB—tF+_A=+—8H"
AEEREVEZHBRE=ZERINEER
ERET  RAMBEFEN HEEE=F
B

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —E—tF

FET FHET

Residential property units located in the UK~ fLRARE 2 (FEWE B 856,463 1,080,848
Hotel facility located in the PRC (Note) (7 AR B 2 0 5% e (B AE) - 1,680,980
856,463 2,761,828

Note: Hotel facility located in the PRC has been reclassified as assets
held-for-sale as disclosed in Note 34(iii).

Misk: NMRFPEZBEEREEFTDEAZERE
2 A EE (G0 EE 34Gi) P E) ©

20. GOODWILL 20. HE
HK$'000
FET
cosT R
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF-—A—BEK=ZFT—LtF
+=-A=+—8 12,014
Disposals through disposal of subsidiaries (Note 50(d)) % 38 t & Ff B A 7] H & (Fff 5 50(d)) (12,014)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+=_A=+—H =
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 January 2017 R=ZZE—tF—H—H -
Impairment losses recognised (Note 23) BRER 2 R EEE (M:E23) 12,014
At 31 December 2017 RZZFE—tF+=-A=+—H 12,014
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 50(d)) F 5 B B8 2 R e a8 (BT 5T 50(d)) (12,014)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+ZA=+—8 -
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H -
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tF+=-A=+—H -

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are disclosed in Note 23.

RBEE-_FT—tF+t-_A=T—HLFE"
ﬁﬁ%%%/mﬁmﬁzuﬁ I FE 23 28R -

—\FFR

fiyr
I

nE]

IRE R

iy

B
=]
L
K

'
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. B EE
Trading Vehicle
rights and license  Customers'
licenses plates  relationship Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAER
3 ERE EFHR @t
THT TRT THT THT
COST B
At 1 January 2017 R-ZT—+F—F—8 8,355 4,130 20,131 32,616
Acquired through acquisition FRUERBARESR
of subsidiaries (Note 49) (P 5 49) = 25 - 25
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZA=+—H 8,355 4,155 20,131 32,641
Disposals through disposal of subsidiaries ~ EBHEHBRRHE
(Notes 50(d) and 50(f)) (P 5E 50(d) K 50(f)) (8,355) - (20,131) (28,486)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=1+—H - 4,155 = 4,155
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERAE
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—-HA—H - - 250 250
Provided for the year FREE - S 1,342 1,342
Impairment losses recognised (Note 23) ERRREERE (F:E23) 7,855 S 18,539 26,394
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=+—H 7,855 - 20,131 27,986
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries RPN LSE i
(Notes 50(d) and 50(f) (B 3£ 50(d) K 50(7)) (7,855) - (20,131) (27,986)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=+—H - - - -
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—-\F+ZA=1+—H - 4,155 = 4,155
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZA=+—H 500 4,155 - 4,655
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 1. BREEE @)

The trading rights and licenses represents the eligibility rights
to trade on or through the Stock Exchange and The Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Limited and insurance brokerage
license and have no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the Group can use to generate cash flows. In addition, the
vehicle licence plates were issued by the relevant authorities
in the PRC and Hong Kong with no expiration dates.

As a result, the trading rights and licenses and vehicle licence
plates are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives. These trading rights and
licenses and vehicle licence plates will not be amortised until
their useful lives are determined to be finite and they are
carried at cost less any subsequent impairment losses, if any.
Instead, they will be tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Particulars regarding impairment
testing on trading rights and licenses are disclosed in Note
23 and the management of the Group determined that there
was no impairment of vehicle licence plates as their market
value exceeds their carrying amount as at the end of the
reporting periods.

Customers’ relationship arising from the acquisition of Hui
Kai Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Hui Kai Holdings")
in 2016 were initially recognised at fair value and amortised
on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of 15
years and any identified impairment losses.

In January 2018, the Group disposed of its 67% equity
interest in Best Future in which Best Future had recognised
customers’ relationship as part of its intangible assets upon
completion of the acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings. Details
of the disposal are disclosed in Note 50(d). Accordingly,
the Directors conducted an impairment assessment on the
carrying amount of customers’ relationship at 31 December
2017. Considering that the disposal consideration is lower
than proportionate net assets value of Best Future at the
date of disposal and accordingly, impairment losses have
been recognised on customers’ relationship amounting
to approximately HK$18,539,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017.

RHERERIENSEBBIMIRBERE
RHMBRRABETRH 2 A BEBENRR
RELER  AEERRAANELERSRELZ
MM BAZ AT FARIRBIFTARR o pLI) - TE
REmTEEEEABET MRS E
& B A -

Bt "EBEERER AR HHE MR N E
WEEEEERAERFH AEXFRER
EREEREES TSNS BEEREL
ERFMREESERARKFRZRARE
MERBERBR(WME) AR R HEF
HREHBTREFAEHIMRE " RIRFE
B (RERE)ZIBENR BRI Z#E
KR PR E R B FEE N M 23 ] E - kA
SEEREETERRERYERE  TIHERN
HEHRBERRzmEBHEREE -

RZFB—ANFUBENZRAR AR REH
BAR ((ESVZERD)EEZTEFPBENGR
AREERERISF2HEHERFHRNRE
ORI MR BRI ESRE -

RZZB-NE—F AKEHETHERES
67% < B - £ T B U BB E S IR AR AR
ERRBETNEFHEE/SENIENEE -
HEFBEHRBERM TS0 Btk - EF2R
—E—+F+Z A=+ —HEEFPHEEZ
RHELETRENE BE-_F—tF+=
A=Z+—HALFE EEFHERERR
EHRHERRERNRLLABENEE
FE CHEFEAERAREBESBEY
18,539,000/8 7T °
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22. MINING RIGHTS 22, RIERE
HK$'000
FET
COST R
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and RZE—+tF—A—HB ZF—tF+=A
31 December 2018 =+—HE=ZE—N\F+=-—A=+—H 1,003,034
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 RZZFE—tF—-—A—HBK
—2—+tF+=-_A=+—H 548,493
Impairment losses recognised (Note 23) BRI EEE (M 23) 109,704
At 31 December 2018 R=E-—N\F+=-A=+—H 658,197
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H 344,837
At 31 December 2017 R=E—tF+=-A=+—H 454,541

REEEIRERGEERIEEHARAD

The mining rights represent four of the rights to conduct

8107 Hoday [enuuy PN SSUIP[OL] pajiuN e

mining activities in the location of Ulaan Uul, Nogoonnuur
Soum of Bayan-Ulgii Aimag (“Ulaan Uul”), Tsunkheg,
Nogoonnuur Soum of Bayan-Ulgii Aimag (“Tsunkheg”) and
Khovd Gol, Tsengel Soum of Bayan-Ulgii Aimag (“Khovd
Gol"”) in Mongolia. The mining right in Tsunkheg and the
two mining rights in Ulaan Uul have remaining legal lives
of 13 to 17 years, expiring in July 2031, March 2033 and
December 2035, respectively. The mining right in Khovd
Gol has a remaining legal life of 18 years, expiring in July
2036. The mining licenses are issued by Mineral Resources
and Petroleum Authority of Mongolia (the “Mongolia
Mineral Authority”) and may be extended for two successive
additional periods of 20 years each. The Directors are of the
opinion that the application for extension is procedural and
the Group should be able to renew its mining licenses at
minimal charges, until all the proven and probable minerals
have been mined. No active mining operation of the Group
has taken place yet during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Group is in the process of identifying independent third
parties for continuing potential cooperative arrangements as
to carry out exploitation of the four mining rights in Ulaan
Uul, Tsunkheg and Khovd Gol.

SHEN((EMEH]) RERE ([EHED
REESEEEEHmRMEZN ([Bh %
) ETERRIEE &) 2 AR - REFIKRZ
FREE RN SH SR 2 MEREREFSEE
i%%wiwi DRRA_ZE=—F+HF

—E==F-ARE=RFt+-AER-

Fﬂﬁyﬁi%%%ﬂ%&mi%%mi

“3%&@%&5&%@%U%$%%%D
B AEEESEMA BR20F -EER
B AEBHEAETKAEBRREY  SAEE
JERENEERRKIBMESTERKRAN B
i%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁZ%@Eﬁﬁhﬁﬁ o R
HE-_T-NF+-_A=+—HLEFER"

$%lﬁ$ TERFIBETR -

AEBIERNBEETRARSHSH - %iﬁ
BRI Z AN EREEDCEEE L
= EREAERYE -
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22.

23.

—NFrZRA=t+—RIFE

MINING RIGHTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
received several notices from the Mongolia Mineral Authority
and requested the Group to prepare updated resource
estimation technical reports and feasibility study reports on
the mining rights in Ulaan Uul, Tsunkheg and Khovd Gol. The
Group commenced the discussion with the Mongolia Mineral
Authority regarding the feasibility of conducting mining
activities on these mining rights. The Group consulted with
legal adviser on the legal implications and with reference to
the legal advice, the mining licenses of these mining rights
owned by the Group are still in effect as at 31 December
2018 and the Group is in the progress of preparing an
updated resource estimation technical reports and feasibility
study reports in accordance with the Mongolia Code for the
Public Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources
and Mineral Reserves on these mining rights in order to fulfil
the requests from Mongolia Mineral Authority.

Mining rights are included in the mining and exploitation
of natural resources segment which is a CGU, representing
the Group’s subsidiaries — Kainarwolfram LLC and Ikh Uuliin
Erdenes LLC that holds mining rights for the purpose of
impairment testing. Particulars regarding impairment testing
on mining rights are disclosed in Note 23.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES AND MINING RIGHTS

Impairment testing on goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in
Note 20 and trading rights and licenses set out in Note 21
have been allocated to the CGU included in the financial
services and asset management segment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of FVLCD and VIU.
The Directors determined recoverable amount of the CGU
included in the financial services and asset management
segment as at 31 December 2017 by reference to
disposal consideration of Best Future because the disposal
consideration less costs of disposal is higher than the relevant
VIU included in the financial services and asset management
segment. In January 2018, the Group disposed of its 67%
equity interest in Best Future in which Best Future had
recognised goodwill and trading rights and licenses as part
of its intangible assets upon completion of the acquisition of
Hui Kai Holdings in 2016. Details of the disposal are disclosed
in Note 50(d). Considering that the disposal consideration is
lower than proportionate net assets value of Best Future at
the date of disposal and accordingly, impairment losses on
goodwill and trading rights and licenses of approximately
HK$12,014,000 and HK$7,855,000 have been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2017, respectively.

22,

23.

RIEE (@)
WEE—T— NG+ A= +—BIEER

AEEPIREBHRNE TBE  BRA
SHEBHSH S - B &R RE Z M H KR

BENSHERGEERMHRE LA 17 IE %
WE - AEEESHAESBERNZERERE
ETRBERSHNATHERAN R -  NEBER
BEZFAAEYERNEZER  BEZER
BER AEBEANZSRBENRR
BR - E—N\F+_A=+—BINHAKXLEK
SEEMZERBEERESHHEER B
EERMBOAMEZ ARBRETARR &N
BREERMRERAIITHERENERSES
BERHERK-

KEEFTARBRIRZTRAERS 2 (B
ReEEEMN)  EBAEEZHWEB QR -
Kainarwolfram LLC %2 Ikh Uuliin Erdenes LLC
WEARENMEE 2 HRERE - BRERER
WERE 2 BRI 2355 -

BE - EREATHREFLEE
B BRE A8 2 R B R =

FERERCEHFHETLEEZR
BRI

HREANRATE - W 208 2 mE KT
Q1B X FEREREEDREF AR
MRBELEEEED AR ELENL -

AW EEEARAERDEKRKNEEREE
MEZBRE BARBERERLERRD
R ATBREREEEE D &2 HEEA
BE HMEFALESEEBILERERET
R-ZB—tF+ A=+ Bt AZRBRE
REEEENMZREELEM 2IRE S
BM-RZZT-NF— A AEEBHEERE
12 67% Bk MEKER T —NFEX

W%Eﬂf“é UL 67% I RER R
RHENERBHBOBLEE - WHEFE
W%KWEW cREBHEREBERR L

%ElEH&#%E’JB&M?H%&EE@QE@{E RE,

TE—FF+AZT-HLEFER B
SRR R 51 b PR HE SRR B B 1R 0 Bl 4
12,014,0008 7t & 7,855,000 7T ©

EH
I
e
33

'
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23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES AND MINING RIGHTS
(Continued)

Impairment testing on mining rights

No active mining operation of the Group has taken place
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and the Directors
conducted an impairment assessment of the Mining CGU. For
the purposes of impairment testing, the mining rights set out
in Note 22 have been allocated to the Mining CGU represented
by mining and exploitation of natural resources segment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of FVLCD and VIU. The
recoverable amounts of mining and exploitation of natural
resources segment were determined based on VIU calculation
and certain key assumptions. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the VIU calculations used cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering a period of four to nineteen years (2017:
four to nine years). The post-tax discount rates used for
the VIU calculations is 22.01% (2017: 21.50%). Other key
assumptions in estimating the discounted future pre-tax cash
flows are included tungsten metal estimated selling price with
0.63% (2017: 2.66%) growth rate, estimated future costs
of production, estimated future operating costs, recoverable
reserves, resources and exploration potential, discount rates
and exchange rates.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
the Group engaged an independent qualified mineral
technical adviser to prepare an updated resource estimation
technical report under the Australasian Code for Reporting
of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves
and they have conducted the first phase of exploitation
work regarding the recoverable reserves, resources and
exploration potential for the mining rights in Ulaan Uul,
Tsunkheg and Khovd Gol. Based on the updated resource
estimation technical report issued by the qualified mineral
technical adviser based on their the first phase of exploitation
work conducted, the tungsten grades of the mining rights
in Ulaan Uul, Tsunkheg and Khovd Gol are considerately
lower than the tungsten grades indicated in the previous
resource estimation technical report while the volume of the
exploration potential of the mining rights in Ulaan Uul and
Tsunkheg is higher than the volume indicated in the previous
resource estimation technical report. Considering the
increment in the estimated volume of exploration potential of
the mining rights in the updated resource estimation technical
report, the management of the Group expected that longer
period of lives of the mine for the overall exploitation work
and revised the financial budgets covering a period of four to
nineteen years for cash flow projection.

e ERCEHFEHEFREE
RERERE 2R E RS @)

BROERE 2 R 1B R

REE-_ZT—-N\E+-A=+—HILFER
REBEMARETERRBEER  EF2HIKR
ﬁ%fiiﬁi 5 iz ¥ R E RT Al o BERE AR

22 ATE  RIBEED E D B E A F
ﬁ%&Eﬂ%giw‘ﬁ/?“*ﬂﬁﬁz%ﬁ)%fﬁi?i
BAL o

A E e E AN A ER L EXAEEREERE
MEZEESE HREIMRXAERSIZ
Al E e EYIREAEBETERE TRREE
REF -SREARANES  FRAEEDNRIE
rEEEREEMAEZNETNAF (ZE—+t
& mﬂxi)HﬁF‘ﬂZ%W&ii@iﬁ)ﬂiﬁiw
Bt - HEFEREEREREZEIRER
22.01% (ZF—+F :215%) - [HEFRE K
REAREREZ HMBARBREIEMBTS
BREREF063% (ZE—+F :266%) 7%
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WEREEK -
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BERBEERMBERERREMETHNERR
ARIRAETERNERGERMRS 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES AND MINING RIGHTS
(Continued)

Impairment testing on mining rights
(Continued)

Based on the above findings from the updated resource
estimation technical report, the Group engaged a PRC
professional firm to update the feasibility study report and also
engaged Jones Lang LaSalle Corporation Appraisal and Advisory
Limited (“JLL"), independent qualified professional valuer, to
perform the valuation of mining rights at 31 December 2018
based on the updated resource estimation technical report and
the latest feasibility study report. With reference to the valuation
of mining rights performed by JLL and the information available
to the Group up to the report date, the Directors were in the
view that impairment losses of the mining rights amounting to
approximately HK$109,704,000 (2017: Nil) for the year ended
31 December 2018 need to be recognised for the Mining
CGU in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as the recoverable amount of the Mining
CGU was lower than (2017: higher than) its carrying amount.

The Directors believe that the estimates and assumptions
incorporated in the impairment assessment are reasonable;
however, the estimates and assumptions are subject to
significant uncertainties and judgements. It is estimated that
adverse changes in the key assumptions would lead to the
recognition of further impairment loss against the Mining
CGU as follows:

BEER
)53

BROERE 2 Rl (BRI ()

EREMKRAEFERRMBEZLER &
EEZE-— PR EERFTABHAIITHE
HRE - MEEBYSEREEGERMTEH
TEEFERERERAA ((FEHT]
EREHMERBRERGTATHEARRE Y
RoB—-NF+-_A=+—B2HEBEEEL
mE - K2EMEBTHRBRELNMGE
EAEEHEAREAHABZERE &
ERB BHE_ZE-N\F+=ZA=+—801t
FEZRERcELEMNGREAERREM
PHABBRATEZRRARBEE 2 REBELY
109,704,000 87 (ZE—+tF : &) * RAR
KEReECBEMZAKRBSERR (ZF
—+tF @R HEE@EE -

EERA - BEMSEMENGTRBRRES
B - W‘ﬁ'ﬁ HERBRRAXERNTHARE
RAFAHRR - RAEETERRNH AN E

BEEYRRRERCEEEMAE— PR
BEER #IwT :

HK$'000

FET

5% relative increase in post-tax discount rate AR 1Z BEIR K12 5% (26,672)
5% decrease in tungsten price ISER 5% (40,035)
5% decrease in volume of exploration potential Al RE =R A 5% (8,776)
)

5% relative decrease in tungsten grades 5 AL R 5% (40,035
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. RAREFABRZERMEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018

HK$°000

—E-N\F

FET

Distressed debt assets (Note (a)) TREBEE (M @) 10,247
Unlisted equity securities (Note (b)) I EmARARFE F (F3E (b)) 584
10,831

Analysed of reporting purposes as: B2 B R AT ER 79T -

Non-current assets EmEBEE 584
Current assets e & E 10,247
10,831

Notes: P& -

a)  The Group acquired distressed debt assets through public a) AEBEFBERARBERKEREERR
tenders in the PRC with collaterals, including plant and (BELRTBEEMER#E  E€ TER
machinery, residential, industrial and commercial buildings and EEEFRIMERE) N TREBEE - 1
land use rights located in the PRC. Such distressed debt assets —E2-)\FE-—A—R FBATREBEERN
are accounted for as financial assets at FVTPL upon adoption KB BMBEREEAEIRRHARBIRD
of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018. The changes in fair value of the REFABGZEMEE TREBEER
distressed debt assets comprised realised gains from disposal of AREZBREHETREFEAENEZRK
distressed debt assets and their unrealised fair value changes. BREREBAAELY FMHEZEEE
Any interest income arising from such assets are also included EENFBRANTARRABEZS (W0F) °
in the changes in their fair values, if any.

b)  The amounts represent investments in unlisted equity securities b) ZESEEARTEKIz —HLEEEBRE
issued by a private entity established in the PRC. BITZIELTRAFSHRE -

Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs adopted ﬁ@ﬁgéﬁiﬁﬁgﬁﬁ ZAEERMEEZEA

for their fair value measurements are disclosed in Note 47(c). BIRZ F BRI 47(0 HEE
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25.

26.

27.

—NFrZRA=t+—RIFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 25. I HERE

AFS investments comprise: AHEERERE:

2017
HK$'000
—tF
FET

Unlisted investments: FLEHRE :

— equity securities in the PRC, at cost (Note (i) — R B AN FE 5 (R A ) (B #EG)) 1,201
— equity securities in Singapore, at cost (Note (i) — BN AR AR B (A AR) (B E () 22,599
— investment funds, at fair value (Note (ii)) —1REE® (EQAE) ) 47,119

70,919

Notes: Mzt -

() The amounts represent investments in unlisted equity securities () FRFBIREENEDRE RIS EM, Az
issued by private entities established/incorporated in the PRC ZHANBRBITZHELETRAZS KT
and Singapore. They are measured at costs less impairment at —tF+ZA=+—8 HEXARERE
31 December 2017 because the range of reasonable fair value T2 RARGEAAEGMTHERANREE -
estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion MEERBEAALBTASEGE ©
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

(i) The amount represents investment in unlisted investment (i)  ZREELENMIRPRZIELMREES -
funds in the PRC and it is measured at fair value by reference HBBR2ER_ZTE—tF+_A=+—HFF
to the quoted bid prices at 31 December 2017. The unlisted MEABREAAENE ZSELMERER
investment funds have been fully disposed of in February 2018 SERZT-N\F_AZ2HE BR=F
and the changes in fair value subsequent to 31 December 2017 —tF+-RA=+—HEEZLEERHAA
up to the date of disposal is not significant. BEFHAWTEK -

INVENTORIES 26. 7€

Inventories represent goods held for resale. FEEREFEECER -

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT 27. EEBRAABEFABREZZS

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group
recognised the distressed debt assets as disclosed in Note 24
as financial assets designated as at FVTPL according to their
investment management strategy. The changes in fair value
of the distressed debt assets comprised realised gains from
disposal of distressed debt assets and their unrealised fair
value changes on the collaterals of distressed debt assets.
Any interest income arising from such assets are also included
in the changes in their fair values, if any. Upon adoption of
HKFRS 9, financial assets designated as at FVTPL have been
reclassified as financial asset at FVTPL as disclosed in Note
3.2(b).

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the distressed debt
assets was determined with reference to a valuation carried
out by JLL amounting to approximately HK$446,660,000.

MEE

RZB-NF-A-—BEREEVBREL
AIZEIR  AEBERBERETERKAE

%

REE24RBEZ T REBEERABRIETE
REAREFAAEGZEZEREE - TREK
éFZQﬁ@m@JEEEETEEﬁWQFE‘]

BRWANETREBEEERRZRE
EE’A//ME """"" B EMAREEEELENNE
WATRGARRABEEE (NEF) - RRBE
B BEHREENFEIRR  BHERKRAIAME
.:H\TE S EMEECENDERREARN
FtABmz 2 REE (M 3.2(0) FTER) ©

BITETZHEEMEENTREBEENRD

RZZE—tF+_A=+—H K2z5H=2
4

H

JL1E 4 446,660,000 78 7T ©
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28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

28. FE R BR X

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
=E-N\F —E—+tF
TET FHET
Accounts receivable arising from the sales of $HEBEEREELN
medical equipment JRE U5 BR 5K 7,147 4,624
Accounts receivable arising from the sales of  $5% AL E & & & B 1Ak
petrochemical products and metal-related E fm B A A U BR X
products - 27,558
Accounts receivable arising from property YT © WA BE A Y R LBR 3R
rental income - 32,887
Accounts receivable arising from the business &% % 5 ¥ B £ 8 fE I IR 71 -
of dealing in securities:
— margin clients —-BEERP - 40,645
— cash clients -BeEP - 1,654
Accounts receivable arising from the business #& & iR 5 2K ELE N
of dealing in futures and options: FEUTBR X
— clients —BP - 35,535
— clearing houses, brokers and dealers —HEF BRERXSHEY - 21,587
Accounts receivable arising from the business 15 [ 45 47 2 76 = 4 1 e Uk BR 7%
of insurance brokerage - 2,163
7,147 166,653
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts in relation & : HEESFRX HEFELE
to accounts receivable arising from the B FEUR AR 2 RER BB
business of dealing in securities
— margin clients —BMEEFR = (36)
Allowance for credit losses in relation to FHEEBERBEEN
accounts receivable arising from the WSR2 EEEEEE
sales of medical equipment (183) -
(183) (36)
Total et 6,964 166,617
Secured Vi - 40,609
Unsecured R 6,964 126,008
Total et 6,964 166,617

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, accounts
receivable from contracts with customers amounted
to approximately HK$6,964,000 and HK$133,730,000
respectively.

RZZE-NF+ZA=+-—BR-ZZT—N\F
—A—H BREPE LIRS 546,964,000
77T 5 133,730,000/ 7T °
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28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 28. EWBRFX (@)

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 120 days (2017: 30
to 120 days) to its customers in relation to sales of medical
equipment and sales of petrochemical products and metal-
related products depending on the type of products sold.

The property rental income receivable from tenants and
accounts receivable arising from the business of insurance
brokerage are due for settlement upon issuance of invoices.

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two days after trade date
or at specific terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and
dealers, and accounts receivable arising from the business of
dealing in futures and options are one day after trade date
or at specific terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and
dealers.

Accounts receivable from margin and cash clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities, futures and options are
repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date.

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balance and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously. Details
are set out in Note 47(d).

Before granting credit to customers, the Group reviews the
credit quality and defines credit limits by customers. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed once a year and each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group maintains
a defined credit policy to assess the credit quality of the
customers and seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables so as to minimise credit risk.

If there are any shortfall between fair value of the collateral
pledged by the margin clients and the outstanding balances
of accounts receivable arising from the business of dealing
in securities, futures and options, the Group will exercise its
rights to request the immediate repayments from respective
clients and the clients’ collateral can be sold at the Group’s
discretion to settle any margin call requirements imposed
by their respective securities transactions. The Group is
able to use client’s securities up to the amount of 140%
of the loans to margin clients as collateral of the Group’s
borrowings (with client's consent). As at 31 December 2017,
accounts receivable due from margin clients are secured
by the customers’ securities as collateral with fair value of
HK$237,311,000 and bear interest with reference to Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate with spread.

AEBZMEERBAMEEBERE LY
ERAtEREeBHBERE TEREF30E
120K (ZE—+F 308 120K) 2{=EH -

EWEPZMERS WA RRBRELEBE
EZRYEERFNHABRRRIINESR -

BERESEBEEZRIRRZBER AKX
HEERMALIZBEEN BERRFEZ
BEBRmaaRme mAERMEREE XK
EEZERBRERZZEERAR/RXZHAR—K
RILEEET  KERXHE 2 ABHZEF
K TE °

REER®R BEIES HERMERBE
EZREBMERREEPRAABERER -

AEBEABEARBEERZBATEEHRTT
TR - & HE T AR R BT AR
MEABAFBETAGEE  KFRSERER -
BB EA7() °

RAEFRBEER AEEEFBEEFPZ
EFEERRAEEEHRR -BTFTEFPZHR
BRI -—ARBRTFUAERSEENR
AEBRBEAEEERRAFTEEF ZEE
BRESREEAREEERFAERERT
B UHBEERREERE -

WRERFAERZEFRZAAERE
BEESH HEMIEERELEZHAEERRE
WIEREHZEEEMESE  AEEBITE
HEMZRERRFPARER mMEPZE
ARUBAAEERNE LS UE S TAIRE
ERAETZESRGABENMZIFEMEE
ER-KEFPRAER ASEAFERAEZA
MEREPERDT140% 2 BEFEBEHIERNK
EFEEZHRFR R _ZT—tF+ - A
—t—H EBURBEREFZERTDHAANE
237,311,000 8 T2 B BHIERIT - W2
ERTHEEFEHEE o
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28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 28. EWBR Rk (@)
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group assesses whether there
is objective evidences that accounts receivable are impaired.
The Group has a policy for determining the allowance for
doubtful debts based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts receivable and on management’s
judgment, including the current creditworthiness, collateral
and the past collection history of each clients/customers. For
accounts receivable due from margin clients and cash clients
which are past due but not impaired as at 31 December
2017, the fair value of each client’s listed securities is higher
than the carrying amount of each individual loan to margin
client and cash clients in this category or with substantial
subsequent settlement after 31 December 2017.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the balances
arising from the sales of medical equipment, petrochemical
products and metal-related products, property rental income
and insurance brokerage service.

No aging analysis for the accounts receivable arising from
the business of dealing in securities, futures and options as in
the opinion of the Directors, the aging analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of brokerage business.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable
presented at the end of the reporting period (net of
allowance for credit losses), based on the invoice dates
in relation to sales of medical equipment, petrochemical
products and metal-related products, property rental income
and insurance brokerage service which approximated to the
respective revenue recognition dates:

R-ZE—+F+_A=+—HB AEBEFIHE
EEEREEBRBRTEBERERE - A%
EXBEETREREZBR  ZBERTIRE
HEKEE 2B T E RERDITRE
BEZHE (BESEPZEMNEE  HiFM
KBAWERERSE) MHlE MR 2T —+F
+ZA=+—B8E@ERREEZE K E
BRFERRERFPZERAME &8P L™
BHEZAAREBRREZIBRR T —F
+Z A=+ HREERERLEENR TR
ERPRReBEP2EERNER 2EEE -

AEBYERHEBRERE ALEREE
BREEER PEHSWARRREL RS
EE 2B ATAERR -

ERNRLEEBEE  EFR/RENITILE
BIMEE  MUBFLES BERBER
P FRGE LN BB ARK O IRE DT -

AT RRBERRREHEBRERE At
EmkeBHEBER DERSBARRR
RERBEENEZEH (B R AER
HEIEE) 2708 BUERR (OB E B BB
) Rl AT

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-N\F e

THET FHT

Within 30 days 30HA 2,407 10,661
31 -90 days 31&90H 1,497 38,450
91— 120 days 91&120H 34 15,416
Over 120 days 1208 A E 3,026 2,705
6,964 67,232




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 28. EWBRFX (@)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's accounts
receivable arising from the sales of medical equipment are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,778,000 which are past due as at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, HK$2,532,000 has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
by considering the background of the accounts receivable
and historical settlement arrangement of these accounts
receivable.

As at 31 December 2017, 35% of the accounts receivable
arising from the sales of medical equipment, petrochemical
products and metal-related products, property rental income
and insurance brokerage service that are neither past
due nor impaired have the best credit standing under the
credit assessment made by the Directors and the Directors
considered that these accounts receivable have no adverse
change in the credit standing of the debtor subsequent to the
reporting period. The accounts receivable that were neither
past due nor impaired is related to a number of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's accounts
receivable balance arising from the sales of medical
equipment, petrochemical products and metal-related
products, property rental income and insurance brokerage
service are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$43,882,000 which are past due as at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality of
the accounts receivable and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances and no interest is charged on overdue
accounts receivable.

R-BE—-NE+-_A=+—0 A=EHH
EEERHEELENEKEREENRE A5
2 31 HA 79 48 BR T 18 493,778,000 7T 1 (& 75
A REEEILE ST © 2,532,000 T B 8 Hf
QRS EEERERERE S REZSE
EUBERNELEELY - AR ABELD -

RZE—+F+_A=+—HB HHEEER
®E ALtEREBRBER WEHS
WA B AR e AR 42 BR 75 E A 2 BR R 380 B 7 4 0RL
BZ35% BUEFRABESHFEHNEENG
HTNERARRAREETRBZERBIRFN K
& HAR & 7 WK B 1S ARS8 T ) B9
B g - BEREHI IR R (E 2 B MR AR SR R I R
MHELBONREEEAR -

RZE—+tHF+ZA=+—RH F&EEH
HEBERE OLtERRSBEBESR
MERSBARRBRELRISEENER
EREERBREBEHE N AEmE
43,882,000 T8I E 1 A - B3 70 FE U BR Sk A9
EEEEVESAEHRSE DR LW
B MAERTES L ELRESE A&
& 3 48 T UL 5 A5 AT () $E 9 Gh N 0 4 2 8 A R
U BR FR U ER A m] F1) 8. o
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28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 28.

The aged analysis of accounts receivable arising from the
sales of medical equipment, petrochemical products and
metal-related products, property rental income and insurance
brokerage service which are past due but not impaired is as
follows:

FE W BR 7R (4%)

HEBRRE OLERLEBREBES
MERSWARRBRELCRBEEZ BB
B RBEZ BEERRZBREDTT

2017
HK$'000
—E—+F
FHET

Within 30 days
31 -90 days

91 - 120 days
Over 120 days

30RA

31290K
91 £ 120K
120K A E

The Group has provided fully for all receivables arising from
the sales of medical equipment, petrochemical products and
metal-related products, property rental income and insurance
brokerage service over 365 days because historical experience
is such that receivables that are past due beyond 365 days
are generally not recoverable.

9,774
15,987
15,416

2,705

43,882

AEENISRNERBERERE AL
ERReBABES WEBSWARRR
AR BR T e A OB R B HR B -
Bl 4 A B o 9 0 B 365 % i L B 9 —
B -

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as REBEHEEHUOT -
follows:
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H 40
Reversal of impairment losses recognised ERRAREEERD (4)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+_A=+—H 36

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for
doubtful debts are accounts receivable due from margin
clients and cash clients of approximately HK$36,000 which
are fully impaired as the fair value of client’s pledged listed
securities is lower than the carrying amount of each individual
margin loan and without subsequent settlement after 31
December 2017.

Details of impairment assessment of accounts receivable for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 47(b).

RZE—tF+=-A=+—8 #HREFMH
KR FMESFZALBERASERRE
ERZEAERTER-_Z—+F+=A
=+ —HBELEEHEN  BURERF
MIRE B P 2 BR7K4%)36,000 8 T EBERAE °

HE_ZT-N\F+_A=1T—HILFEZE
WR OB ERT b Z FE B BRI £ 47(b)
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29. LOAN NOTE RECEIVABLE 29. BIRERFERE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —+F
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REH) 1,472,118 1,460,808
Adjustments on ECL (see Note 3) FEHEEEEAZ (RWiE3) (10,010) -
At the beginning of the year (restated) REF (EES) 1,462,108 1,460,808
Loan note arrangement fee and advisory TEH&E?K?TF???FE}EH K
fee receipt in advance R - (93,496)
Amortisation of arrangement fee income HFEFH ”5()\&
and advisory fee income RSNz 3 55,231 93,066
Subscription of loan note receivable REERERZE 23,509 -
Repayment of loan note receivable BEERKERER (1,590,781) -
Impairment losses reversed REBREE 18 10,010 -
Unamortised arrangement fee income EHOBEAMENRIEZ
and advisory fee income reclassified REBHLZHERBARES
to other payables BRIRA 35,192 =
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 4,731 11,740
At the end of the year RER - 1,472,118

In December 2016, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Haitong Global pursuant to which the Group
agreed to subscribe for 50,000 Class R participating shares

R-_EBE—XNE+=-A"
Global 5] R W%
£ {8 50,000,000 7t (FHZ R

7N £ E B Haitong
B AEEREAE
#7387,700,000

at a total consideration of US$50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$387,700,000) of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

There are two classes of non-voting shares in the capital of the
Haitong Dynamic Fund, namely Class P participating shares
and Class R participating shares and the shareholder of Class
P participating shares is a company controlled by Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, an independent third
party not connected with the Group. The principal of the
Class P participating shares is US$150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,163,100,000) and Haitong Global has
appointed Hai Tong Asset Management (HK) Limited as its
investment manager of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

fa 7_5) 72 B# Haitong Dynamic Fund 2 50,000 %
ALY o

Haitong Dynamic Fund &) & 78 #° 5 / 28 £ 1%
SRS - BPESERG RRESLERKG -
i PAE 2 B AR 10 MR R A X B R & B 1T A RS
EMBUE=F8RBRRESEEEARA
B - AR - PELERMHO AL A
150,000,000 5% 7T, (1% 7 49 1,163,100,000 %
JT) * M Haitong Global & % {F /8@ & &E & 12
(&%) B R 27 A& HHaitong Dynamic Fund
MIREEBEEA -
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The Directors have assessed the facts that i) the purpose of
setting up the Haitong Dynamic Fund was initiated by the
Group and solely for subscribing loan note issued by the
Borrower and after the subscription of the loan note, most of
the investment capital in the Haitong Dynamic Fund has been
used up and no further investment decisions could be made
until the maturity of the loan note; ii) in accordance with the
subscription agreement, the Group could receive the residual
value from Haitong Dynamic Fund after paying the principal
and target return, which is 6.5% fixed interest income of the
US$150,000,000 principal of the Class P participating shares;
and iii) the Group agreed to provide the guarantee in favour
of the Class P participating shareholders for the performance
of the Haitong Dynamic Fund with the maximum liability
of US$103,000,000. After the assessment of the above
facts, the Directors concluded that Haitong Dynamic Fund
created significant exposure to variability of returns to
the Group given that the expected return of the Haitong
Dynamic Fund reached 28% during the two years term and
the Group also has to compensate any potential loss to the
Class P participating shareholders up to US$103,000,000,
approximately to 69% of the principal contributed by Class P
participating shareholders, and concluded that the Group has
control over the Haitong Dynamic Fund under HKFRS 10 and
the Group has consolidated the assets and liabilities of the
Haitong Dynamic Fund.

In December 2016, Haitong Dynamic Fund had entered
into a subscription agreement with the Borrower pursuant
to which the Borrower agreed to subscribe for loan note
with a principal amount of US$200,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,550,800,000) at a fixed interest rate of
8% per annum with a maturity period of 2 years ended on
19 December 2018. Arrangement fee and advisory fee are
charged on principal amount at 6% upon issuance of the
loan note and the thirteenth month from the loan note issue
date.

In August 2018, Haitong Dynamic Fund had entered into
another subscription agreement with an independent
third party pursuant to which the independent third party
agreed to subscribe for loan note with a principal amount of
US$3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,509,000)
at a fixed interest rate of 2.88% per annum with a maturity
period of 4 months ended on 3 December 2018.

EFENEUTEE  DAKEBERKZ
Haitong Dynamic Fund 2 B ) T3 & 7 R &
BRABTZERER  REEXRERE -
Haitong Dynamic Fund 2 KR Z & E &K E
A EEEHEMKRERAE BIERE
BREE NEERERR  NEBEARN A
¢ X B 1% [ # % B Haitong Dynamic Fund
W I sR B (E - B /2P 2 R 150,000,000
ETLARE 265%EFEMBHA - Kiii) A &
A E st &S & & 7%103,000,000% 7T 2
Haitong Dynamic Fund 2 f& 49 1R P £ B iR 5
R - R EIA EEE % - 85 Haitong
Dynamic Fund ¥ 78 HA [B] 37 &= 5 W F HA (N 2 5
28% RASKBEIEARNPELHERERHESRS
103,000,000 7T Z E B EFE1E - 4769%
e HPELERETE - EF R AHatong
Dynamic Fund $f AR = [ &= A= Bl R &) M & K
[BBe - I FR A AR BARIR B S B R s 22 B
25 10 5% ¥f Haitong Dynamic Fund & 2 I # &
ANE@EE # Haitong Dynamic Fund 2 B E & &
BirE AR ©

RZZE—/"F+=A ' Haitong Dynamic Fund
BERAGIURERZE Bt BERARE
R K 4 %8 /200,000,000 7T (FHE R4
1,550,800,000/& 7T) M E R E & - EEF 5
KE8%  MMERH IR-_ZE—N\F+=
A+hBEIE -ZHERARBREES BT
BERERETREBERERETA BB
MET—MAKRAELE% T -

R =Z— )\ )\ A * Haitong Dynamic Fund &
BEVE=A NS —ORERE Bt
B E=HRABREEFFE288%REA
%8 3,000,000 % 7T (48 % 74 £923,509,000
T ZERERE  ERHRA-Z-N\F+=
A=RA1EME@EA -
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29.

30.

LOAN NOTE RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Effective interest income on loan note receivable
amounting to HK$130,579,000 (2017: HK$217,386,000),
including amortisation of arrangement fee income and
advisory fee income amounting to HK$55,231,000 (2017:
HK$93,066,000), have been recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

In June 2018 and July 2018, the Borrower has early redeemed
a portion of loan note from the Haitong Dynamic Fund of
approximately HK$633,178,000 and HK$611,236,000,
respectively. The remaining loan note of approximately
HK$322,858,000 has also been redeemed in December
2018. In the view of early redemption of loan note by
the Borrower, the Group reclassified the unamortised
arrangement fee income and advisory fee income amounting
to HK$35,192,000 as other payables to the Borrower.

29.

EWEREE w)

EWERE R 2 BRI A 130,579,000
BT (T —+4 217,386,000 7T) (&
BLZHEERARARZEABERBRAHES A
55,231,000 7T (A == — £ : 93,066,000
BIL))ERBE-_Z—\F+=A=+—H
IEFERZIBERER -

DRARZE-—NEFENARZZE—N\F+t
A ' &3 A B & Haitong Dynamic Fund 2
AIMEE 32 B R E I 4633,178,000%8 7T
5 611,236,000 L  MBR TEREELD
322,858,000 B L MR =T — \F+ = A&
E-EREEAREERNEREE K&
EREHETHERRARZRAERRKA
35,192,000 % 7T A& FE HE XA 2 E A FRIE o

FINANCIAL ASSETS (LIABILITIES) HELD-  30. B#EEB-SREE (BE)
FOR-TRADING
2017
HK$'000
—E—+F
FHET
Financial assets held-for-trading: BEEECZSREE
Listed equity securities held-for-trading REBFHEEE 2 FTRAEH
in Hong Kong 2,244,524
Financial liabilities held-for-trading: BIFEBEZEREE:
Commodity futures contracts held-for- RIS IFIEER 2
trading in Singapore A EE 4 (6,600)

The fair values of the financial assets (liabilities) held-for-
trading were determined based on the quoted market bid
prices available on the relevant exchanges. Upon adoption
of HKFRS 9, financial assets (liabilities) held-for-trading have
been reclassified as financial asset at FVTPL and financial
liabilities at FVTPL as disclosed in Note 3.2(b), respectively.

FIEEEZEREE (AE) 22 REDRE
HEXSMMBZTSEABETE - BRA
BREMBRELERNFIR HIEEEZE®
BEE (BB ECORERDBERRAAEBIA
BREeREERBAREBEHABREZER
BE (T FE3.2(0) PRHRER) -
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31. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 31. ,Héfwéu&%klﬁ RERFERR
Ir

PREPAYMENTS
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—tF
THET FHT
Other receivables, net of impairment and H fth JE WO IE (FOBRRE) &
prepayments (Note (i)) TaAT R IE (B R G) 4,503 21,034

Rental and other deposits e kEMmRE 8,655 10,962

Loan receivable (Note (i) JE W B SR (B R (i) - 78,127

Interest receivable FEHFI B - 21,090

13,158 131,213

Notes: B s -

(i)  Other receivables, net of impairment of approximately () EAbEWFIE (FOKRIRE) £10,027,0007% 7T
HK$10,027,000 (2017: HK$7,750,000), and prepayments —ZT—+% 7,750,000 70) REMHEE
mainly comprised consideration receivable from disposal of ZRREREHEEERHRBEERAR ([EEF]D
Mason International Limited (“Mason”), loan receivables, RE - BREZ BEIBNRELRELERE
advance payment to staff and prepayment for operating T FRIA -
expenses.

(i) The amount represents a loan advance to an independent third (i) SEEBNT - EBBILE=ZFZ2EXLD
party of approximately HK$78,127,000 which was unsecured, 78,127,000 - H AR KR - REFETE
carried at fixed interest of 3% per annum and repayable with a FE3I%zT B BEEHRA—EA -BEXE
term of 1 month. The loan was fully settled in January 2018. RZZE—-NF—-AEEUEE -

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the ERBE_ZT-—N\F+_A=+—HBILFE

year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 47. By H i 8 U SR 1B 2 R B AT 14 FE B S M A

47 °

32. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS 32. TRHTEEYN
E‘T! 2018 2017
C HK$’'000 HK$'000
=L —B-N\F T tF
g FHT T
T
% Foreign currency forward contracts SMNERHIE A DA
5 classified as current assets RmENEE - 93,539
)
[%2]
oy As at 31 December 2017, the Group has entered into foreign RZE—tF+ZA=+—H xEEEF]
3 currency forward contracts to hedge against foreign currency UHMNERBAENUNEAERRIEBEEZ
P exposures arising from commodity trading business. Changes SMNERR - REEZFT—+F+ZA=+—
?; in fair value of financial derivative contracts amounting to AEFER @RITEROZANBEEH S
= approximately HK$103,854,000 have been recognised in #E#7 103,854,000 8 TTE R IBZEPHER - IR —
5 profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017. No T-N\F+ZA=+—8 AEEWET
P foreign currency forward contracts have been entered by the SNERHIG A o
o]
2 Group as of 31 December 2018.
N
(e}
oo




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

32. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS . EMITEESN @)

(Continued)

The major terms of these foreign currency forward contracts RZE—tEFF+_A=+—H ZZIHINEH
as at 31 December 2017 as follows: AN EFBEFOT

Notional approximate amount Maturity Exchange rate

BRECEHE

EHA

X

Sell US$7,862,000
£ 1 7,862,000% T
Sell US$12,172,000
€14 12,172,000 7T
Sell US$6,465,000
£ 116,465,000 T
Sell US$1,302,000
£ 1,302,000 T
Sell US$8,951,000
£ 18,951,000 T
Sell US$8,942,000
£ 118,942,000 T
Sell US$11,487,000
£ 11,487,000% ¢
Sell US$9,784,000
£ 149,784,000 T
Sell US$11,774,000
€ 11,774,000 ¢
Sell US$4,901,000
£ 114,901,000 T
Sell US$7,828,000
£ 1 7,828,000% T
Sell US$7,086,000
£ 17,086,000 7T
Sell US$4,806,000
£ 114,806,000 7T
Sell US$9,799,000
£ 19,799,000 T
Sell US$7,801,000
£ 17,801,000 T
Sell US$4,815,000
£ 1 4,815,000% T
Sell US$4,766,000
£ 14,766,000 T
Sell US$6,082,000
£ 16,082,000 T
Sell US$6,082,000
£ 116,082,000 T

23 March 2018

- N\F=A=-+=H

15 March 2018

—2-N\F=A+HA

9 March 2018

—E—-N\F=AHNH
9 March 2018
—E—-N\F=AHNH
9 March 2018
—E-N\F=AHNH
9 March 2018
—E—-N\F=AHNH
9 March 2018
—E-N\F=AHNH
7 March 2018
—E-N\F=H+tH
7 March 2018
—E2-N\F=H+tH
2 March 2018
—E-N\F=ZHAZH
1 March 2018
—E2-N\&F=H—H
1 March 2018
—E2-N\&F=H—H

23 February 2018

—Z-N\F=-A=+=H

23 February 2018

—Z-N\F=-A=+=H

23 February 2018

—Z-N\F=-A=-+=H

13 February 2018

—2—\F=A+=H

17 January 2018

—E-N\F—AttA

12 January 2018

—E-N\F—A+=H

12 January 2018

—E-N\F—A+=H

US$7.0537/RMB
13%70=7.0537 AR
US$7.0655/RMB
1270=7.0655 A R #&
US$7.1440/RMB
13270=7.1440 AR #&
US$7.1100/RMB
1270=7.1100 AR #&
US$7.1040/RMB
1370=7.1040 A R #&
US$7.1040/RMB
1370=7.1040 AR #&
US$7.0982/RMB
1370=7.0982 AR
US$7.0934/RMB
1370=7.0934 AR ¥
US$7.0758/RMB
13%7T=7.0758 AR ¥
US$7.0487/RMB
13270=7.0487 AR
US$7.0820/RMB
1370=7.0820 AR #&
US$7.0438/RMB
13£70=7.0438 AR
US$7.0690/RMB
1370=7.0690 A R#&
US$7.0420/RMB
13£70=7.0420 AR #&
US$7.0905/RMB
1370=7.0905 A R #&
US$7.0560/RMB
1370=7.0560 A R#&
US$7.1340/RMB
1370=7.1340 AR #&
US$7.1405/RMB
1370=7.1405 AR #&
US$7.1405/RMB
1370=7.1405 AR #&
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The structured deposits as at 31 December 2018 consisted of
deposits denominated in RMB amounting to approximately
HK$200,143,000 (2017: HK$89,020,000) issued by banks
in the PRC. The structured deposits carried expected interest
rates ranging from 3.2% to 4.1% per annum (2017: 4.0%
to 4.1% per annum), depending on the market prices of the
financial instruments, including money market instruments
and debt instruments.

The Group recognised the structured deposits at fair value as
they contain non-closely related embedded derivative. The
Directors consider the fair value of the structured deposits
based on the prices that counterparty banks would pay to
redeem at the end of reporting periods and the carrying
amount of structured deposits recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values. These structured deposits have been fully redeemed
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and the
changes in fair value up to the date of redemption is not
significant. Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs
adopted for their fair value measurements are disclosed in
Note 47(c).

Restricted bank deposits

As at 31 December 2017, the restricted bank deposits
represent bank deposits restricted by certain bank to secure
the issuance of letters of credit in relation to the purchase of
petrochemical and metal-related products. The deposits carry
fixed interest ranging from 1.35% to 2.13% per annum. The
entire amount has been released upon the settlement of the
letters of credit subsequent to 31 December 2017.

Bank balances

The bank balances, including time deposits with original
maturities less than 3 months, carry interest at prevailing
market rates which range from 0.01% to 2.51% (2017:
0.01% to 1.71%) per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is
provided.

33. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BUHFRZRERITER
BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND iﬂh.ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ :
CASH
Structured deposits ERMHEER

RZE—NF+_A=+—HB L£BEHEHF
FEREPEBEANRTETZAAREE
2 & %849200,143,0008 T (ZE —+ £ ¢
89,020,000 70) Z 173K ° BB MEFFTIEN T
32%E4 1% 2 HEEMEGFBE (ZT—+1
FA40% B4 1% FHER) BIFEMITA(E
REEMENSRITARGESTE) 2mi5
B1g -

AEERAABERREBETR Bees
FEFYMBBANRATETLR - BERALERE
MERZAREDNRESFHRITEMRE
%Xﬁﬁ@ZFW& LT IR SR A
REEMBHRERES2EEERAEAAERKR
ﬁm CHREHEBUGIONBERRER
HELBEHEZELHAMARBTEENE
oM EAABENEMNEMZHERT R
FEHABIBFBERNRIEL7() -

ZREBITER

R-ZE—+tF+_A=+—H ZRHIET
GRIEZETRABRS ZRITFR - AR
%ﬁ%%ﬁa%%&&ﬁﬁﬁ%%&Zﬁ
B BEERENTF135%22.13% 2B E
FREFE - R-_ZE—tF+-_A=+—8
% 2HSBEHCREMNS AR RERR -

RATHER

RITER (RIERIPELR=ZEA SN EH
FR)ENTF0.01%E251% (ZFE—+4F:
0.01% & 1.71%) ZIRITMIHFF KRB -

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—RHIFE K
SEHRITERKETHENELRRSEFH
RITRAOO AT REMEE G Stk T EHREE
BRI EE -
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34. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 34. 2 A EHECZEERER

HELD-FOR-SALE
The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held-for- RZBE-NF+A=+—BKZZ—+tF
sale as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as T AT —HOBARELRECEENME
follows: BERETEERMT
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
(Note i) (Note ii)
—E-N\F —E—+tF
FTHExT FHET
(MF=ET) (M 5Ei)
Investment properties (Notes (iii) and (v)) &P (TR Gil) & (v) 1,594,040 680,000
Accounts receivable arising from property Y & WA E £/ R
rental income (Note (vi)) ﬁ%(ﬁiwm 68,558 -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments E b fEUg 5118 ~ 2 & R Faft
(Note (vi) B (KisE (V|)) 58,006 118
Structured deposits (Notes (iv) and (v)) M IR (M RE(v) & (v) 19,812
Bank balances and cash (Note (vi)) IRITEE R IR & (BT EE (vi) 50 =
Total assets classified as held-for-sale PEAREHEZHREE 1,740,466 680,118
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEET B E R H A B FRIE 9,441 =
Tax payables FERI IR 1,342 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAGE 94,810 =
Total liabilities classified as held-for-sale ZEAIFEHEZEBHEE 105,593 =
Notes: B
() On 31 August 2018, the Group had entered into a sale and )y RZZE—NFNA=+—H AQFHE—%H

BUF=NAILEEHGH UREREBAR

purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose

of its entire equity interest of MM KK EEEEGR RQ A
Hangzhou Tai Rong Asset Management Co., Ltd* (“Hangzhou
Tai Rong”) at a cash consideration of RMB1,550,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,777,695,000) and the
principal asset of Hangzhou Tai Rong is the hotel facility located
at No. 555 Fenggi Road, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the
PRC. The Directors expected that the disposal will be completed
during the year ending 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the
above assets and liabilities of Hangzhou Tai Rong constitute
as a disposal group of the Group are expected to be disposed
within twelve months which were classified as held-for-sale
and presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position. No change in fair value was recognised in
profit or loss on the date of reclassification. The Group received
disposal deposits amounting to RMB155,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$176,483,000) as disclosed in Note 36,
equivalent to 10% of the total cash consideration.

The English name is for identification purpose only.

& 1,550,000,000 7T (48 % 7 431,777,695,000
BT BEERMMALEEERER DA
(MM AR 2R MNALENETER
B A — BR AL 7 7R BT T & AN T BLEE B8 555
SHAERE EERHHEREBEZ
—7L¢+—)EJ*+ Bt FEK - Bt -

MOBEABEREZMMAREZEERE
ﬁ(%ﬁﬁXZK‘ilZﬁ HE)BHN T @
Hmtb‘ijt 2R EALEA M BERR
KRN - ARBEITEREFSEHHENEBEREA
E”“iﬂ MNP 36T R A E UK
&4 AR #155,000,0007C (%R

#7176,483,0008 L) - FRANEBRSREZ
10% ©
BN HHREHRER -
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34. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD-FOR-SALE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) On 23 October 2017, the Group had entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of its entire equity interest of Excel Fine at a cash consideration
of HK$738,000,000 on 28 March 2018 and the principal
asset of Excel Fine is the commercial property units located on
79th Floor of The Center, Central, Hong Kong. Accordingly,
the above assets of Excel Fine expected to be disposed within
twelve months which were classified as held-for-sale as of 31
December 2017 and presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group received disposal
deposits amounting to approximately HK$110,700,000 as
disclosed in Note 36, equivalent to 15% of the total cash
consideration. On 28 March 2018, the disposal was completed
and details were set out in Note 50(c) and its change in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$58,000,000 was
recognised in profit or loss on the same date.

(iii)  Investment properties classified as held-for-sale

M. BARBELEZEERAR
(#)

BaE : ()

iy RZZE—+tF+AZ+=H AKEEH—F
BYFE=ZFAVEERRER - —\F=
A=+ N\Bi&xR£MAE 738,000,000 T HE
H R Excel Fine 2 2 ZBAZ# + Excel FineZ £ &
BEARNREATRPLOTIENEEMES
oAl R-T—+&E+—A=+—8
LFifiExcel FineZ DB AR EHE 2 EETEH
R+ @A RHEL D BI &R ERE B Ak
MEA - AEBEWE| L EZE4110,700,000
B GEERBIRSNRER15%) (K 36
FEE) - R \E=A=-+)\B HE
FIED KR FBHRHFES R ASREE
&)%) 58,000,000 BT E AR AR Bz P HER o

(i) DBER/FHELEZREME

HK$'000
FAET
FAIR VALUE NAE
Reclassified from investment properties as held-for-sale ENSBEARELEZREME
(Note 19) (BEE19) 660,000
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss REEPERZANBEEE 20,000
At 31 December 2017 RZEB—+&+=-A=+—H 680,000
Disposals k= (738,000)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBE PR Z AL EE &) (5 34(Gi)
(Note 34 (ii)) 58,000
Reclassified from investment properties as held-for-sale BN ERFIELECREDE
(Note 19) (B=E19) 1,660,976
Exchange realignment IE 5 F % (66,936)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=+—H 1,594,040
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
ZEB-N\F —E—+F
FHxT FAT
Unrealised gains on revaluation of investment  #F A#r& B R H M EFE WK
properties classified as held-for-sale included DERBELEZREME
in consolidated statement of profit or loss BHAER KRR =
and other comprehensive income - 20,000

The fair values of the investment properties classified as held-
for-sale at the respective dates of reclassification and the end of
each of the reporting periods have been arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out by APAC (2017: JLL), independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group.

REFOBENHEBEARRSREHR 28
REFEHEZREMEZ AAEREHBER
SEBNEMENBUAEREXGHEMTA
(ZF—1F  FEMTT) BT FHEEEER
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34. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD-FOR-SALE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Investment properties classified as held-for-sale (Continued)

In determining the fair values of the investment properties
classified as held-for-sale, the Group engages independent
qualified professional valuers to perform the valuation. The
management of the Group works closely with them to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model
and explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair values of the
investment properties to the board of directors. The fair value of
the investment properties was determined based on the income
approach by capitalising the rental income derived from the
existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary income
potential and taking into account of the contractual terms
and conditions. In estimating the fair values of the investment
properties classified as held-for-sale for disclosure purpose, the
highest and the best use of the investment properties is their
current use.

Structured deposits classified as held-for-sale

In determining the fair values of the structured deposits
classified as held-for-sale, the Directors consider the fair value
of the structured deposits based on the prices that counterparty
banks would pay to redeem at the end of reporting periods
and the carrying amount of structured deposits recorded at
amortised cost approximate their fair values. These structured
deposits have been fully redeemed subsequent to the end of
the reporting period and the changes in fair value up to the
date of redemption is not significant.

Determination of fair values of investment properties and
structured deposits classified as held-for-sale

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties and structured deposits classified
as held-for-sale are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used) and the investment properties and
structured deposits are under Level 3 fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.

M. 7 ERFHRELEZEERAR

(#)
B
(i)

(v)

C (&)

DERRIELE ZRAME(E)

REENEAFHEHEZRENMEARER -
AEBE BB A EREXMGEMBRAITF

MEERTMEEREGABBLRNEER
REBREMELNAEBRDORE -REME
ARETEBRAEEERSESBAERL
BEZEHENERRANENEEEREER
WKL FH KB BHER RAR I EERE - IR EH
ERBERGZOBRBELHEZREMER
RER REAMEZRESRREREAER
BR%-

DEERELE 2 EB TN

REEDBERBELE ZABUETRZIAR
BN EFERR/EBUERNERHEFHR
TN E BRI A 2 BB 1E ) RIZHE S X
RSB ABUEFREREEL QA ER
FonSHBUERRN RS M RRERED
REEZBR AR ARBEEHYTEK -

DERFBHEHEZRANERBBUEERZ
RNAEHEE

TRERSEAFEHEZREAMEREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

34. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 34. 2 EAB{EHEZEERER

HELD-FOR-SALE (Continued) (#&)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : (#8)

(v)  Determination of fair values of investment properties and V) PDEABEHEZREMENEEMEERZ
structured deposits classified as held-for-sale (Continued) NREBTE (&)

Assets classified as Significant observable/

held-for-sale Valuation technique unobservable input(s) Sensitivity

TEAREHEZEE fEERM BEATEE TUBERHAHE HRE

As at 31 December 2018

R=ZB-N\&

+=A=+—-8H
Hotel facility located in the  Income approach Gross monthly rental income of RMB6,600,000 A slight increase in the term yield
PRC Term yield: 1.0% to 4.5% and reversionary yield used would
Reversionary yield: 1.5% to 5.0% result in a significant decrease in
fair value, and vice versa.

AL B 2 B 3% 5 WAE B AHBA AR 6,600,000 7T ERANFHRREREGREEX
FHRGEE : 1.0%E4.5% BHIE M EB R A ERER
EHREE  1.5%E5.0% Do RZIRAK -

Structured deposits Discounted cash flows Expected yields of 3.2% of money market A significant increase in bank
instruments and debt instruments invested interest rates used would result
by banks and a discount rate that reflects in a significant increase in fair
the credit risk of the banks (Note) value, and vice versa.

EBIEER BRI 2 FHRHERRTRENEETISTANGE MEANBREAHRIBEMNEE
BIAEK32%  UERRBRRITEERR BAREMRIEELN - RZIMA
HIREER & (B 3E)

A significant increase in discount
rate used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.

P56 PR A0 B 3R 3 ) K0 48 0 2
BRAREROKETE  R2ZTR

As at 31 December 2017

R=Z—t&
+=A=+—H
Commercial property units ~ Market comparable Market price of comparable properties A significant increase in the market
located in HK approach amounted to approximately HK$71,000 per price per square foot used would
square foot, by taking into accounts of the result in a significant increase in
accessibility, size, location and conditions fair value, and vice versa.
and environment of properties
UREBEBZAEMEEL THERE AELBEYEZTSEERSFERFRNT000 EANGTEHRTSERHAIE
BT K RZMEOENE - R L B EHA A ERARIEEM -
BERERRDERR [ 2 IRE% -
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34. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS

35.

HELD-FOR-SALE (Continued) (&)
Notes: (Continued) M5
(v)  Determination of fair values of investment properties and (v)

structured deposits classified as held-for-sale (Continued)

Note: The Directors consider that the impact of the fluctuation
in expected yields of the money market instruments
and debt instruments and discount rate to the fair value
of the structured deposits classified as held-for-sale
was insignificant as the structured deposits have short
maturities, and therefore no reconciliation of level 3 fair
value measurements of structured deposits is presented.

(vi)  Details of impairment assessment of accounts receivable arising (vi)
from property rental income classified as held-for-sale for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 47. The
Group performed impairment assessment on other receivables
and bank balances classified as held-for-sale as of 31 December
2018 and concluded that the probability of default of the
counterparties is insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for

credit losses is provided.

M. 7 ERFHRELEZEERAR

()

Mia: ARZEFABUETERIBAERE &
EERREETBIARBEBIAE
FH R R A e B3R A0 R B T 51 (B R
EHENEBUETRAAENZEL
TEKR RELLES 5| SEEETFR
EZERANEFEZHER -

BHE-_ZT—)\E+_A=+—HLEFEE
& B P SR S U EE A /Y B IR XA R (B
SIS E NN 47 c AEBR —E—N\F
+ZA=+t—BYEMEKFERSEAR
EHEZRITEBETRETGELERAYEF
FEOMATEMEN L TEREER
BIELBE -

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 35. BENERRRENRE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-N\F TE—tF
FTHET FHET
Accounts payable arising from the BERESBEED
purchase of medical equipment JE - BR3K 737 1,364
Bills payable arising from the purchase of HEACERRSEHEH
petrochemical products and metal-related & fa & 4 KB =8
products - 1,242,218
Accounts payable arising from the business of &% 5 ¥ 7% & £ K FE S BR 7K ¢
dealing in securities:
— clearing houses, brokers and dealers —HEEM SRR FH - 12,127
— cash clients -Rexp - 6,597
— margin clients -BMEEP = 28,384
Accounts payable to clients arising from the  Hi%& [ Bi#E 22 5) IS = £ /Y
business of dealing in futures and options JER B P HRRER - 53,546
Accounts payable arising from the business 4R 48 40 5 75 B 4 R FE S BR X
of insurance brokerage - 2,294
737 1,346,530
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35. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 35. ENEBRFRENZRE @)
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(Continued)

The credit period of bills payable arising from the purchase
of petrochemical products and metal-related products is 365
days.

The settlement terms of accounts payable arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two days after trade date
or at specific terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and
dealers. Accounts payable to cash clients and margin clients
are repayable on demand. No aging analysis for accounts
payable arising from the business of dealing in securities is
disclosed as in the opinion of the Directors, the aging analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of
business of dealing in securities.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures and options are cash deposits received from
clients for their trading of these contracts. The required cash
deposits are repayable upon the closure of the corresponding
futures and options position. The excess of the outstanding
amounts over the required cash deposits stipulated are
repayable to clients on demand. No aging analysis for
accounts payable to client arising from the business of
dealing in futures and options is disclosed as in the opinion
of the Directors, the aging analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of dealing in futures
and options.

The credit periods of accounts payable arising from the
business of insurance brokerage and the purchase of medical
equipment is 30 days.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable arising
from the purchase of medical equipment, bills payables
arising from the purchase of petrochemical products and
metal-related products and accounts payable arising from the
business of insurance brokerage based on the invoices and
bills issuance dates at the end of the reporting period:

REAtERREBHEBERELENENE
EBEEEHA365K -

EERXFEBELNRNEANEERN /R
ZEHPEMRYIREEERN KL FHE
ZEBWRGERME - BRNBREFFPEBME
EFNEARREREER EREFXHE
BOME EFRRREOMLBEIMEE -
B TR R R P RSB A W R RR KA
BRER AT -

HERARXSEBELNBNEPERS
IRFANXFCREFPNBRAEHER - FH
REeFHRERBERBE RN ERRGE
- BBREMBREFRZIHRERSHE
ARBFEFPERKEERE EXNPERMERS
EBHNLE  EFRR/RROTIALEFEIME
ERYEFBENENARRSEBEL &
NEPRA KRBT

RECLEBERBEEERB R EM— S
MEANENEREES AKX -

AT RRBEMRREZLRELARNZ
JIMBEBRRRBELNEMNEN  REAQ
tEMEEBERERELNENRERRE
RIS AR TG E £ R BN R BRER D AT

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

—E-N\F e

FERT FiHET

Within 30 days 30 640 148,640
31 -90 days 31290 H 97 1,097,236
737 1,245,876
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36. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 36. Bt EEREMENFIE
PAYABLES
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\#F —E—tF
THET FHET

Deposits received for disposal of Hangzhou — BL &M ALE ~

Tai Rong (Note 34) B S (FI3E34) 176,483 -
Deposits received for disposal of Excel Fine 5t % Excel Fine 2 B WEUIZ &
(Note 34) (BT &E34) - 110,700
Accrued expenses FERTRX 5,578 19,916
Interest payable FEREFIB 1,155 19,577
Other tax payable E b TR IR 1,280 20,746
Payable for unamortised arrangement fee FERT AR L ERWRAR
income and advisory fee income BAERAKRA 36,246 -
Other payables E b AT FRIE 7,018 9,361
227,760 180,300
37. BORROWINGS 37. B &
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
==E2-N\F —E—+tF
FTER FHET
Secured variable-rate bank borrowings EEMZERITEE
(Note a) GEE)) 427,573 889,889
Less: loan raising costs W BEREEKA (947) (2,567)
426,626 887,322
Margin financing loans (Note b) RESBEER (D) - 1,028,403
Loan instrument (Note ¢) BRI A (KizEo = 620,904
Other borrowings (Note d) HEE (Fiaxd) = 288,127
426,626 2,824,756 g
'kH_
Analysed of reporting purposes: LEWME WMEN DT &;
Secured B 426,626 2,536,629 \
Unsecured IR - 288,127 W
T
426,626 2,824,756
&

AFERRE R
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37. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2018, the variable-rate bank borrowings
of approximately HK$427,573,000 (2017: HK$489,889,000)
carried interest at the London Interbank Offered Rates (“LIBOR")
plus a margin of 2.75% (2017: 2.6%) per annum, which the
effective interest rate is 3.52% (2017: ranging from 2.88%
to 3.12%) per annum. In addition to above variable-rate bank
borrowings, as at 31 December 2017, the Group has another
variable-rate borrowing of approximately HK$400,000,000
carried interest at the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rates
("HIBOR") plus a margin of 2.8% per annum, which the
effective interest rate is 3.68% per annum.

The margin financing loans were arranged with securities
brokers which are independent third parties. As at 31 December
2017, the variable-rate margin financing loans of approximately
HK$1,028,403,000 carried interest at the Hong Kong Dollar
Prime Rate minus a margin ranging from 1.0% to 2.45% per
annum and repayable on demand and the effective interest rate
ranging from 2.8% to 4% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into a note instrument subscription agreement (the “Note
Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Subscriber”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to issue and the Subscriber
agreed to subscribe for a 8% note (the “8% Note”) in the
aggregate principal amount of US$80,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$620,904,000) with a term of 3 years from
the date of issue. The 8% Note was fully subscribed by the
Subscriber in March 2017 and the Group has early repaid the
8% Note to the Subscriber during the year ended 31 December
2018.

In accordance with the Note Agreement, the 8% Note
was secured by all the equity shares of two wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Best Future and Tai United Financial Group Limited
(“TU Financial”). The Group has released the charges on equity
shares of Best Future and TU Financial for the purpose of
disposing its 67 % equity interest in Best Future in January 2018
as disclosed in Note 50(d)) by issuing cashier’s orders to the
Subscriber amounting to HK$650,005,000.

As at 31 December 2017, the other borrowings were
arranged with independent third parties of approximately
HK$288,127,000 which are unsecured, carried at fixed interest
rate ranging from 5.0% to 6.0% per annum and repayable
with a term of one to two years. One of these borrowings
amounted to HK$210,000,000 was guaranteed by a former
director of the Company.

EE @)
BT -

(@ RZZE—NF+-—A=+—8 ' ZFEIRTT
B E4427,573,0008 0 (=T —+4F :
489,889,000/ L) I MBERTTRIEF E X [fm
BERITRZEREER]) N2.75% (ZF—+tF :
26%) ZFFEGFE  HERFRNER352%
(ZZ—tF :288%E3.12%) ° Br Ll )2 B
BITEE R-_T—tF+=-A=+—8"
ZK‘%@ﬁHﬁﬂ}?Jﬁézﬁzlooooooooi%r‘c
BREBRITRAEFEXR ([BERITRAERE
XJ)buz.s%ZE%w.ﬁ% HEBRFMNEAR
3.68% °

(b) RECHMEERNEBHLERL (BBIFE=RH)
ZH-R=ZZT—tF+=-A=1+—0 Z%EB
{REBES RYE B34 1,028,403,000 8 TR TT

REBEFIRF1.0% E2.45% 2 FR R B
BRERER MERFHNER28% E4% °

(0 REE-_Z—+tHF+-A=1+—HLEEER:
Z’S%Eﬁiﬁ%j%iﬁ( u«uﬁ%ﬁJ)uTim}FI
ERBEHE (ZERHE)D Bt A%ER
ERATLABHIAERES% 2EZE (8% =
1) - A4 4% 580,000,000 T (FHERL
620,904,000 7T) * FHI A B 1T H AT
SF 8N EBEN T —LF= ARREHE
;ywugﬁﬁzﬁglaﬁ/\ékgfifj\fﬁﬁ“ ﬂ
S+t HEFENREBSNZHEEETR
BB e

RERERNZ 8% ZEAMEEEMNB AR
(BEBERANEREBAERLA ([AFME
M) ZFABERNER FAEBEBAREE
2 17R1TANE 650,005,000 78 TTEE LA R B i 1
BRAMERMERZROER  EUARZE
—NF—-AHEERNERZ67% MK G
B 5 50(d) FT i 28 ) ©

d R-ZT—+HF+-_FA=+—H0 HpEEY
288,127,000 8 L h BB E=H 7 AE
R RIAFFEN T50%Z6.0%:T8 1
BAR—EMTHEAANEE ZSEEFHESP
—%5%210,000,0008 T2 EERAAT—
BAEFEER -
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37. BORROWINGS (Continued) 37. 8 & @#@®)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —+tF
FET FET
The carrying amounts of the above HEEMNEREEEAAN(EE
borrowings are repayable (Note): (MF5E) -
Within one year —FR - 1,202,981
More than two years, but not exceeding MEL L - BETEBER=F
three years - 620,904
- 1,823,885
The carrying amount of secured borrowings EIERERERBERZEE
that contains a repayment on demand (7ilJ TRREBAE) NEER
clause (shown under current liabilities) BEEm Eﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬁz AT
but contractually repayable as follows: AT EEEER
Within one year —F N 426,626 700,871
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLAE - BTEBBARF
two years - 300,000
426,626 1,000,871
426,626 2,824,756
Less: Amounts due within one year shown  Jg : £ — S R EIHAI 7R &R E
under current liabilities BENESE (426,626) (2,203,852)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 7|/~ &IERE B ER S5 - 620,904
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set Mizk: BRREDRBEERBEAENETER
out in the loan agreements. HEAGHE -

Details of charges over the borrowings are disclosed in Note

51.

EEZERFBERENMES -
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38. AMOUNT DUE TO TAI CAPITAL HK

39.

38. ENARER (FR) KA

2018 2017
Name Relationship HK$’000 HK$'000
=y 2R —E-N\F —ET—tF
FTHERT FHET
Tai Capital HK Under common control by Mr. Wang Qiang,
a former director of the Company who resigned
on 5 December 2018 - 192
RELZER(FHE) HBARRIZAESEREE
(RZZ—N\F+ZARABE) HLR=HI
The amount was unsecured, interest free and repayable on ZAEAEEE R ERBRERERER -

demand.

LOAN FROM TAI AN CAPITAL

In December 2018, the Group had agreed with Tai An Capital
to change the terms of the loan with carrying amount of
HK$123,585,000 as unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand (2017: unsecured, interest bearing at
4.75% per annum and repayable on 28 December 2018). The
Directors considered that the above modification of the terms
of the loan from Tai An Capital constitutes as non-substantial
modification of financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 and does
not result in derecognition and no adjustment to the carrying
amount of the loan from Tai An Capital is recognised in profit
or loss at the date of modification.

Tai An Capital was established in the PRC with limited
liability and was under common control by Mr. Wang
Qiang, a former director of the Company who resigned on 5
December 2018. The loan is initially measured at amortised
cost, based on the present value of the estimated future cash
outflow discounted using the effective interest rate of 7% per
annum and the initial fair value adjustment on loan from Tai
An Capital is recognised as other capital contribution reserve
during the nine months ended 31 December 2016.

39.

REARREFRZER

R_E—NF+_A KEBBEKELE
ARAEERERNBER  UBEEFE@E
123,585,000/8 Tt 2 ER AEEIE - TNFHE -
REREE(ZT—F  EEKE - 1E475%
ZEMNEZHERER-_ZE—-NE+_-A
ZHNRER) -EETRE REBBHBE®R
EREBIEISR  FMRBALERNZERD
BRI EEXE T HEEENEERBERER
BT AT EREERRYRERZEAR
ZEI ARV ERAEAERNBEPHER -

RZERRZ—ERPEEMKRIZAHBR AR
WHARRZAEEEREE (R TN
FH-ATAEE) LRES - ZERER
RBHEAGE  DERRKBT% 2 BEERF
MEPREFARKBESRIEL MEE—Z
—RFET-A=T—HIEAEARKE AR
BEARZERZMEAAERED R REM
LB -
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40. OTHER LIABILITIES — INTEREST IN 40. ﬁi%%ﬁ— RiceEBMER

CONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITY

As disclosed in Note 29, the Group had consolidated an
investment fund structured entity — Haitong Dynamic Fund.
For the investment fund where the Group involves as
investor, the Group assesses whether the investment it held
creates exposure to variability of returns from the activities
of the investment fund that is of such significance and the
guarantee given to the other investor which indicates that the
Group is a principal.

Third-party interest in consolidated structured entity consist
of interest of third-party shareholder in consolidated
structured entity which are reflected as a liability since they
can be put back to the Group for cash. The realisation of
net assets attributable to third-party shareholder’s interest
in consolidated structured entity cannot be predicted with
accuracy since these represented the interest of third-party
shareholder in consolidated investment fund that are subject
to the actions of third-party shareholder.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, profits attributable
to the third party’s interest of approximately HK$45,416,000
(2017: HK$76,072,000) in consolidated structured entities
is presented in other gains and losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Haitong
Dynamic Fund distributed the interest income amounting to
US$8,468,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$65,973,000)
to Haitong Global and Haitong Global decided to
reinvest US$2,468,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,123,000) to Haitong Dynamic Fund. The third
party’s interest in consolidated structured entity, including
the principal, distribution, reinvestment and profit shared
from the investment fund structured entity, amounted to
approximately HK$1,203,767,000 as at 31 December 2017 is
presented as other liabilities in the consolidated statement of

AN 29 P EE - ARBEBER AR
M5 B E © F §8 —Haitung Dynamic Fund » ¥
REAEEERKREENRERES  NEET
HEREZREARTGRIREEREF MR
LA BUETERERTERNAEMKEEEEL
BRMERASLE AT EANEERBAE -

RE=ZITRNGEAEBLIER I ESEEE=
TRRREGAEBIEER 2 ER AT RIKEE
AEEUERS  BERRBAB -FE=7
BRRREGAEBEERZERBIEEETF
Bz ERREREREN RESHEEEAER
FZNBRRTARBRNE=ZTERREE
RERS 2 HEH o

BHE-_Z-\F+-_A=+—HLFE %
CHRGERBHEEE CERIEGENL
45,416,000 7T (—Z —-+4F : 76,072,000 7%
TL)REGEEEREMEZEIER 2 B4k
wmRIGERZ -

REEZT—tF+A=+—HLEFERN "
Haitong Dynamic Fund [A] Haitong Global &
8,468,000 T (1B 52 #765,973,0008 7T) 2
F E WA - T Haitong Global J& 7 [A] Haitong
Dynamic Fund 2 ¥ 1% & 2,468,000 % 7T (18 %
M#119,123,00087T) - R=ZFE—tF+=A
=t—H F-FRRESENEER R
PREELEREEHBEREESERB RS
IRE -~ ERTIRE Kos £ 8847 1,203,767,000
BILEAEMBEZIINGEMBARREA -

financial position. i

|\.H.;
In August 2018, the Haitong Dynamic Fund has fully repaid K =ZF— \F A Haitong Dynamic Fund |<
the principal and interest income amounting to approximately £ [\l Haitong Global (5= F R4 & & 1E 1t By
US$159,867,000 (equivalent to approximately to ERIRR) BHENA: LA EBAL I
HK$1,254,157,000, including profits attributable to the third 159,867,0003 7T (H% 74 49 1,254,157,000% [y
parties’ interest in consolidated structured entities amounting T BREE=ARGERERBUEER I ERE &

to approximately HK$45,416,000), to Haitong Global, the
third-party shareholder in the consolidated structured entity.

13% ) 49 45,416,000 7 7T) °
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40. OTHER LIABILITIES — INTEREST IN 2. Ht B E-REGSEBTER
CONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITY W= ()
(Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the EREAEEE G EBETEER VB ERH]
Group's consolidated structured entity is set out below. MER T o T2 M BERBIERER
The summarised financial information below represents BB EEARECESHEE TR
amounts shown in the consolidated structure entity’s financial B HRRAMTERE -

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
FET FHT
Current assets mENE E 36,246 1,646,794
Current liabilities mEBE 36,246 2,204
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the LB ERBESRAENTEE
following:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\EF —E—+F
FTET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFRBFLIEE 36,246 171,224
Loan note receivable EWEREE = 1,472,118
Other payable H e 5108 36,246 =
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FET FHET
Revenue for the year FEKE 130,579 217,386
Profit and total comprehensive income FEBMRE2AKGERE
for the year 65,716 135,069
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41. DEFERRED TAX 41, BRI IE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement HREEHBRARAZWMEN S - &T
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities REREEERABDEE - AT AR
have been offset. The following is the analysis of deferred tax s B R m iR IEERIERE AT -

balances for financial reporting purposes.

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—tF
THET FHT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLERE MAEN DT -
Deferred tax assets RIEFIIEE E (615) (2,039)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 65,733 224,251
65,118 222,212
The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities RIEHNEBRZEZEEHB(EE) 8
recognised and movements thereon during the reporting BERHEZEFBFOT :
periods:
Revaluation
of financial Revaluation
assets  Revaluation of Accrued
designated ~ of mining  investment Tax interest  Provision of
as at FVTPL rights  properties losses income ECL Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EffEER
BONE
FABRE Eff Eff EifE  REEE

ZEREE FRE  RENE  HERR BA BERE st
TR T T TR TR THTL TR

At 1 January 2017 RZE-tF-F-H 7993 93,158 144,302 - - - 245,453
(Credit) charge to profit or loss FAMBERER
for the year (Note 13) (F3E13) (2,824) - (32,672) (1,959) 3257 - (34,198)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 49) B M B2\ &) (Hi5£49) - - 976 - - - 976
Exchange realignment &5 486 = 9,566 (80) 9 - 9,981
At31 December 2017 WoF-+& &
+-A=+-A 5,655 93,158 122,172 (2,039) 3,266 - 222,212 o
Adjustments (see Note 3) BE(RHE) - = = - - (1,620) (1,620) &;
|
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZ-\E-F-H (2
(E5) 5,655 93,158 122,172 (2,039) 3,266 (1,620) 220,592 H
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 50 (c) ~ HE—FHIEZR A Ty
(F2E50(0) - - (976) - - - (976) ]
(Credit) charge to profit or loss GrA)NEENER m%
for the year (Note 13) (F13) (5,585) (27,425) (16,785) 2,015 (3.276) (3,224) (54,280) E
Reclassified as held-for-sale (Note 34)  EFi A BA#{EHE X
(PH3E34) - - (99,015) - - 4,205 (94,810) EF
Exchange realignment 5 (70) - (5,39) 24 10 2% (5,408) pax
e
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\E+ZA K
=+-A - 65,733 - - - (615) 65,118
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41. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) A EERTE (&)
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$790,883,000 (2017:
HK$311,272,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such losses amounting to HK$8,156,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and being fully utilised during
the year ended 31 December 2018. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams during the year
ended 31 December 2018. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of HK$106,462,000 (2017: HK$30,407,000)
that will expire from 2019 to 2023. Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
difference attributable to the retained profits earned by
the subsidiaries in the PRC amounting to approximately
HK$532,864,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$576,276,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({2 A R £ F1ET
T EFRE 1T 1501)) effective on 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT ({Hp E A R HFIEL £ 30 48 (B 5 & 17 15
5 & e 48 A1) ) effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sales or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures in relation to the gains arising
from sales of properties in the PRC effective from 1 January
2004. Deferred taxation of LAT has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of appreciation
value of investment properties located in the PRC.

RBEBR  AEBZ2HEFADABIE
#5918 47790,883,0008 T (=T — £ F :
311,272,000 7t) AT A LA 85 2K 2 % ) o
REBEE_FT—tF+-A=1+—"HBLEFE
A - B E% B 18 8,156,000 JT FE 32 R IE B
BEEYRBE-_ZT—NE+_A=+—
ALEtFEABEED -REBEE_F—N\F
TZA=+—HALEFERN  BRRIEFIR
B2 RAl BRI MY ER BB B ERE
ERBBEE - sTARERHMEBIBZER
106,462,00078 7 (=& — + 4 : 30,407,000
BB E-NFE_T_—Fam- &
ftb 518 P] EE PR HAAE S o

BIEFRECEMERE BT N\F—A
—B BRALEEZPBENEARBER 25
FERZBEEBRBRR - RZF—N\F
+ZA=+—8 ARG EMBREAHR
BT B A A BRER 2 AR B8 i B FE (G A M 2=
BT IR E AT B TE 49 532,864,000/8 T (&
—+ % : 576,276,000/ 7T) * AARNEEREH
TR SR BORE AR TR EE
EATE R AR AT AT B o

BEB-—NANAEE—A—B4E%2 (PE
ARKME TG ERGITHLD) - KB
—MANAF—AZF+EtBHERZ (REAR
A T I ERG TG ERMAD) - T
EXREBHEREEFERE L HERE &
FREMN B R 2 WA BRI - g (E %
NF30% £ 60% 2 1L EZEF R - B
EMEMBRBERMHEERPEMEELE 2K
RIAMERY BZEZTZME-—F—Bi
HERk e tHIBERBELEREE RN RE 2
WA BERGRE VSRR AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

42. SHARE CAPITAL 42. IR A
Number of Share
shares capital
HK$'000
BB EE [N
FET
Authorised ordinary shares at ZER0.05ETZEEERBR
HK$0.05 per share
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZE—+F—H—H8"
and 31 December 2018 ZT—tFF+ZA=+—HK
ZE-N\FF+ZA=+—H 34,566,666,668 1,728,333
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares at BEER5EBTZERTR
HK$0.05 per share BREBR
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—HF—H 4,803,277,308 240,164
Issue of shares (Note) BATR D (M EE) 446,742,544 22,337
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 RZE—+F+_A=1+—HR
ZE-N\F+ZA=+—H 5,250,019,852 262,501
Authorised preference shares at EER0.05BTZEERER
HK$0.05 per share
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-Z—tF—HF—H"
and 31 December 2018 —T—+tF+-A=+—HK
—E-N\FE+ZA=+—H 5,433,333,332 271,666
Issued and fully paid preference shares at EER5EBTZERTR
HK$0.05 per share BRELKR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZE—+F—H—H8"
and 31 December 2018 ZT—tF+ZA=+—HK
- \F+=-A=+—H - -
Note: On 24 March 2017, the Company issued 446,742,544 ordinary Mid: RZFE—LF=ZA=+WA  XRAFET

446,742, 544 EBRIEABB A ZEENR
Bz—#5 ELMRKRAEN22,337,000%
7T N B% 173 %4 (& 49 585,233,000 74 7T I A —
BHEEERS - WEMBAR ZFBEIHRN
MizE49 o

shares which form the consideration for the acquisition of
Tai Infinite Group and resulted in the increase in share capital
of HK$22,337,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$585,233,000 and constituted a non-cash transaction.
Details of the acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in Note 49.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

43. FIERE S

Share of

net assets of

subsidiaries

HK$'000

DAEHE A R

BEFE

FET

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H 3,050
Share of loss for the year DR FAEER (5)
Share of translation reserve DAGEH 177
At 31 December 2017 RZZFE—tF+=-A=+—H 3,222
Share of loss for the year DIEE A EE (150)
At 31 December 2018 RZF—-N\F+=ZA=+—H 3,072

The Directors considered that excessive costs would be
incurred with no additional value to disclose financial
information of Beijing Kanggiao Tongda Technology Co.
Ltd.* 4t 7 FE 1% 18 3£ L 2 & BR A &) (“"Kanggiao”) which are
immaterial to the Group.

& The English name is for identification purpose only.

EERRBENRAREES  ABFTEY
AEBEEBTEENEIIMEEAREEILR
FRBEMRAERRR (R 2MBER -

* RXEBEREHRES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

44. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$95,366,000 (2017:
HK$129,689,000). The investment properties are expected to
generate rental yield of 4.53% (2017: 5.05%) on an ongoing
basis. Almost all of the properties held have committed
tenants for next one to eight years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of investment properties which fall due as follows:

44, BEHEY

AEBERHEA

REBZE-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—HBIEFERX
BREL 2 W ¥ e WA A% 95,366,000 7T (=
T — 44 :129,689,000/87T) - WA W ETE
B B E £ 453% (—FE —+ 4 : 5.05%)
MESWRER - TEE2HWEPRIBLEL
EEAEERT —Z2/N\F -

RBEHRR  ARERBE A HELLHELY
BEREMEZRAT RARSZIEE S [ E
HPATZAHNZHHMBMT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —FE—tF
FTER FHBT
Within one year —FR 90,177 95,095
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERF (BRERERT) 360,708 380,382
Over five years AFUE 270,531 380,382
721,416 855,859

The Group as lessee AEBEERBEHEA

Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease
in respect of office premises during the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$26,302,000 (2017:
HK$28,501,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises
which fall due as follows:

REBE-_Z-—NE+-_A=1+—BLLEE
N REKLEHOIRPBAEVEE FRE
T4 N 3 4926,302,000/8 7T (ZZF —+4F:
28,501,000/ 7T) °

RBEHPRR  AEERBEN T HREEH 2
A HHEEHORBRENEZ RRRE
MR FORIE -

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —E—LtF

FET FET

Within one year —F N 16,806 25,002
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERTF (BREEREMRT) 4,902 14,891
21,708 39,893

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises during the reporting period.
Leases for office premises are negotiated for a term ranging
from one to five years (2017: one to five years) with fixed
rentals.

REBERA  CEBEAONRIEREERE S
FTHAEMERNZEHS - WAEWEMEL
KEBREETHEREANF 201 F (2%
—tF:—E2RHF) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

45. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Apart from details of the balances with related parties
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
and other details disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had entered into the
following significant transactions with related parties during
the reporting periods:

(a) Transactions with related parties

45,

BARE S IR

MR A BTSRRI > BB 5 > 4
BrHERRANEREAMEHRRES
H A RSN - AN R SR H R BB AT
TUTEARS :

(a) EBES R 5

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—tF
FET FHET
Interest expense on loan from Tai An REALREARAZERZ

Capital (Note 39) FLE = (Bt FE39) 9,014 10,507

Disposal of financial assets at FVTPL [ Solis Capital i & A LB
to Solis Capital FFABRZeRmERE 2,359,817 =

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors, being the key
management personnel, are set out in Note 15, which
is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

(b) TEEEAE Z2H M

EE(MEEEBAR) ZFHBE R KT
15 EFMomFMEE e EEA
RBARTHBERETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. EXRE R EE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders, to support the Group’s
stability and growth, and to strengthen the Group’s financial
management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes borrowings and loan from Tai An Capital
disclosed in Notes 37 and 39, respectively, net of bank
balances and cash and total equity.

The Directors actively and regularly reviews its capital
structure and make adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payables to
shareholders, issue new shares or raise and repay debts. The
Group's capital management objectives, policies or processes
were unchanged from previous year.

The Directors monitor capital using net debts to net debts
plus total equity ratio. These ratios as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 were as follows:

REBEEREER SEBRASENERE
AIRFELE  TARRGERALR X
AEBNEEMER - U RIERNEEN
IEEIBEES ©

AK%IE‘J%%“T%PJEQ% %28 (9 B B IE
511&37&391?35&%9’]{&%\ EREENKE KR

ZEAZER) - IRE %ﬁ&ﬁﬁv%&

Em i -

EXREBREREMEEARE  YREL
BERANEESELTE - BEFRARER
B AEEXEHBIRMN FRENEE

BRITHBIEBRES REEE - QLE¢

B ARBER ARG H R BRI
P A (]
% EIR A R EFER R R B A

hEEEAR-R-B-\FR-F—tF
TZA=S+T—HOZBELENT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —+F
FET FET
Net debts (Note a) BEFE (Haa) (617,761) 1,565,918
Total equity (Note b) Rz 1278 (MH3EDb) 3,373,022 5,183,006
Net debts to net debts plus total equity BREFERABEFEMER
ratio (%) EEE L (%) -22.42% 23.20%
Notes: BI5E
(@) Net debts equals to borrowings and loan from Tai An Capital (@) BEFASNEENKRBEAZREARAZETR
less bank balances and cash. RITHB LRSS -

(b)  Total equity equals to all capital and reserves of the Group
including non-controlling interests.

b) HZLBERANEENMABRARFE
i
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47. €T B

(a) &R T EMNER

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
FET FHET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREFAER SRHEE
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL EBERBAANETFAEBRZ
TRIEE N/A T8 A 446,660
Distressed debt assets TREBEE 10,247 =
Unlisted equity securities I ETIRANFE 584 =
Financial assets held-for-trading BIEEB SREE N/A 38 B 2,244,524
Financial derivative contracts ERITEELN - 93,539
Structured deposits EHEMEEN 200,143 89,020
210,974 2,873,743
Amortised cost BEA AR 1,178,582 N/A 35 A
Loans and receivables B R IR
(including bank balances and cash) (BIEFRITEHKEIRS) N/A & B 4,252,234
AFS investments AHHERE N/A T3 F 70,919
Financial liabilities SHasE
Financial liabilities held-for-trading FIEEEZEMARE N/A 38 6,600
Amortised cost 31D 595,367 5,526,030

(b) HBEREEERERBER

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial AEENTZSRT ABEETERAR

8107 Hoday [enuuy PN SSUIP[OL] pajiuN e

assets at FVTPL (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018: financial assets designated as at FVTPL
and AFS investments), loan note receivable, accounts
receivable, other receivables, financial derivative
contracts, financial assets held-for-trading, structured
deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, financial liabilities held-for-trading, accounts and
bills payables, other payables, borrowings, amount
due to Tai Capital HK, loan from Tai An Capital and
other liabilities. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and impairment
assessment, liquidity risk and distressed debts assets
risks. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Bt \EREZE2REE (R _T—N\F
—A—REREEFBRELENEIR
Al HERBRANEHARBEZEZRE
ERAHEHERE) BREREE-
FEMARSR - Rt EWRIR - RITES
HORKIFEESREE BBUETN
RRHIBITHER  RITEHRRRE
EEEZERAE EBNERREMNRE
B HMENRIE R BHALE
R (BEB)FEB REAREAZERR
HBE BZFem TEMEBENER
BEMSER (BE¥RER 7 &R R
HERRAR) - ERERERRMRER G
RBESRARITREBEERR -
B an R 1K 3% F R B MO BRI I3 »
EIREEE N E IR T R AR N
MEREREEREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. eI A @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BB EKREEBFERBER (#)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk R
(i) Currency risk () EEmEkE

The Group has the foreign currency denominated
bank balances, financial assets held-for-trading,
financial derivative contracts, financial liabilities
held-for-trading, bills payables, other payable,
borrowings and intercompany balance. Several
subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
purchases, which also expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. Approximately 99.0% (2017:
99.8%) of the Group's purchases is denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entities making the purchases.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

REBHEAUIINETERNRITE
% BEEEZSRMEE  SRT
EEK BEEBEZCRBE K
NZEE- -HtEMRE - - EFEERA
RIffl 4 - ARRIBETHB AR
HNES IR BR (5 AN R B A S ONE R o
AEBHEBRNLD9.0% (ZF—+
F:99.8%) H LA B BB
IR EME 2 N E M EREGHE -

RBERR - AEBIAINEFHER
EREEREKAENRREEDT

Liabilities Assets
=L EE

2018 2017 2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“E-N\FE —T—+HF ZB-NFE T +F

FET FHET FHExT FHET

us$ e - 620,904 640,579 70,279

RMB AREE - 1,242,218 1,830 4,163

GBP s - - 26 119,966

HK$ BT - 43,906 530 149,047

Singapore Dollar T

("SGD") ([ ]) - - 646 10,761
Inter-company balance NGIIEESA

HK$ BT 1,110,000 1,110,000 = -

The Group conducts periodic review of the
exposure and requirements of various currencies
and has used foreign currency forward contracts
to hedge against foreign currency exposures as
disclosed in Note 32.

K2R E  AREH T
[Fl &% & 2 B M AR e #E 1T E Bl
A WE A AEAINES K E I
KR o

—\FFR

fiyr
|

A

[—M

BR

sl
| =+

&
K

]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(@

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed currency risk related
to RMB, HK$, GBP and SGD.

For the entities of which their functional currency
is HK$ while holding assets and liabilities
denominated in US$, the Directors consider
that as HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group is not
subject to significant foreign currency risk from
change in foreign exchange rate of HK$ against
US$ and hence only consider the sensitivity of the
change in foreign exchange rate of HK$ against
currencies other than US$. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding monetary items which
are denominated in relevant foreign currencies
and adjusts its translation at the year end for a 5%
change in relevant foreign currencies exchange
rates.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and decrease in the
functional currency of the group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2017: 5%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. It did not take into
consideration the foreign currency forward
contracts outstanding at the end of each reporting
period as the Directors consider that the relevant
currency risk exposure is minimal. The analysis
illustrates the impact for a 5% strengthening of
the functional currency of the relevant group
entities against the relevant currency and a
positive and negative number below indicates
a decrease and an increase in loss (2017: an
increase and a decrease in profit) respectively. For
a 5% weakening of the functional currency of
the relevant group entities against the relevant
currency, therefore would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss or profit.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BEEMREEEEZRBE®)

5 m e (&)
() E¥EE(GE
GURE DT

AEETIZEBREARE BT
RN THENEERR -

HEEEE BB TMIFEIUET
HENEERBEBZEE E=R
Ao BTHEETEE  AEETE
EATRETINERE RS EHHEKN
SNERRR  HL  EBEEBILAE
TUUASN 2 & M 1y N B 2R S Bh a0 B
RE DN - MBEDITERIERE
BZUHEBINEENEBIEE
YHRERREEINEERESH 2
5% FHERERE -

TERFANABEAEBUEEEEN
REEE S EEIINEAKSL (ZF
—tF 5% ZHRAE 5% (ZF
—tF 5% FRBRELEAREA
EEBER A BREINE R E
A REBREYIMEERSEA 6
BE) 2 FHE c EW R REMES
RZEKREBNINERPELY R
EAAEERAEEEERBREN -
DA EEERERNINEER
RSB ES%MEE M~
MK IE B T 5 R E B AR A
RN (ZE—EF 5 FEIn&
W) c WEBEEEENIEE
B H IR E R ES%  BHE
BafBSEEMMBRHTE -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BIEEMREEBEERBE @)

5 m e (&)

() ExmbE(E)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BREE DN (E)
RMB Impact (i) HKS Impact (ii) GBP Impact (iii) SGD Impact (iv)
AREEZE() BTEL(i) KEYE(ii) FMETEE ()
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ZE-\f “T-+F ZB-N\f _T—+%F ZE-\f —_T-+F ZB-\F _T-+t%
Tér ThAr TEx TEr  TEx TEr TER  ThEx
(Increase) decrease in loss 6598 (3240)
(2017: (decrease) increase (25—t
in profit) B (RD)
#1n) (76) 51,379 41,603 37,262 1) (5,009) (27) (447

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure
on bank balances and bills payables
denominated in RMB at the end of reporting
period.

(i)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure
on bank balances, financial assets held-for-
trading, borrowings and an inter-company
balance denominated in HK$ at the end of
reporting period.

(i)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure on
bank balances denominated in GBP at the
end of reporting period.

(iv)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure
on bank balances and other payables
denominated is SGD at the end of reporting
period.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

i) TEHARREARAARE
AENRTERRENRER
B BE 3[R

(i) ETZ2HERBEHRRAETE
ENRITES BEEEZ
ERMEE FBERRARMBS
EREVEE S B o

TREE LS LT I
(ERIRITEBEE LER -

(iv) EZHRE|E IR K
TAHERMRITER K EME
N SRIB AV EE 5L L o

EEERR  ARFRORRILT
EERBREERR  BBEEIF
BERKEBIMNERK -

—\FFR

fiyr
I

nE]

AFERRE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Group is mainly
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of market interest rate on accounts
receivable from margin clients as disclosed in Note
28, variable-rate bank balances and restricted
bank deposits as disclosed in Note 33, accounts
payable from margin clients as disclosed in Note
35 and variable-rate borrowings as disclosed in
Note 37. It is the Group’s policy to keep majority
of its borrowings at floating rates of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to loan note receivable as disclosed
in Note 29, fixed-rate borrowings as disclosed in
Note 37, loan from Tai An Capital as disclosed in
Note 39 and other liabilities as disclosed in Note
40.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuations of HIBOR, LIBOR
and Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate arising from the
Group’s variable interest rate financial instruments.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BEEMREEEEZRBE®)

5 m e (&)
(i) F)EmE

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—8"#H
MK E28 M R R E B PR K
3382 BRITHE B R R A
IRITIFR - BE R PR ER A (40
MIFE3SATH &) R FE37m)% &
BEMEE  BRmSHEREE -
AEETZHBRRASREFNER
B REEMBERARBEKRDS
BERZHFEFTE - UBARE
FERE B/ IME ©

REETHERA BREKERFE (N
BEFE29FT I EE) - E BB E (K
AITHKE) REARLREARZE
A NK 3P IKRE) REMAE
(A K FEA0FT W E) A SREF =X
R -

AEENALHEFEAREBE
BRI B ES BT AN E
BRATRERE - RRRITRALHR
ERATRERFERS - FEE
S S SRR T4 T BA l ¥
ShE TR R E S o AT &
BESNEEBEE B R EAF
EE -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 47. €M T B (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BB EKREEBFERBER (#)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEE R (E)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEER (&)
Total interest revenue/income from financial assets BHEENATTECCMEE LT
that are measured at amortised cost is as follows: Bz AT
2018
HK$°000
—E-N\F
FHET
Interest revenue M Bz
Financial assets at amortised cost BBEN AT Rz EMEE 130,579
Other income E AUz A
Financial assets at amortised cost BREEN AT RZ EMEE 8,389
Total interest income A x| B U A 138,968
Total interest revenue/income from financial assets BHEK AT EC SREE BT
that are measured at amortised cost is as follows: Blgzs AT
2017
HK$'000
ZT—tF
FET
Interest revenue F B Wz
Loans and receivables ER R EWGIA
(including bank balances and cash) (BRERTESR LB ) 217,386
Other income EfbUg A
Loans and receivables ER Rk EWGIA
(including bank balances and cash) (BRERTESR LB ) 34,215
Total interest income x| BUA 251,601

—\FFR

fidy
I

nE]

AFERRE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not
measured at FVTPL:

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BEEMREEEEZRBE®)

5 me ()
(i) FIEmRE (E)

WHRAREFABEZEREE
ZH B BT

2018 2017

HK$’'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —E—tF

FHExT FET

Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEAATERE 2 EMAE 71,695 177,788
Sensitivity analysis BURE DT

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
variable-rate borrowings and accounts receivable
from margin clients at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming these
balances at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2017: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates is
used.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2017: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$2,133,000 (2017:
pre-tax profit decrease/increase by approximately
HK$7,246,000).

The Group’s exposure to variable-rate bank
balances and restricted bank deposits was not
included in the above analysis as the management
considers that the exposure to these risks for
bank balances and restricted bank deposits are
insignificant.

TXEBEE D TR RS BARRE
ZEEEREERETFRAZF
KRBMBT - DM HBRERBRE
HMARSREEEHRRNEATED
KEBMaE - 8 sk i 4 50E
EZ(ZT—+tF:50@ED) -
AEBEBHANRAIE RS 2T
fly o

A & EFTRSOEES (=F
— L F SOfEEE) - MATAE A
BHREFETE  AAEEHZ—Z
—NF+ZA=Z+—HLEFEZK
TR 815 00, R 47 2,133,000
B (ZZE—CF B ATEFR
b IENN# 7,246,000 7T) °

BROM A RBIEAEERTBR
TTREBEZRBIIRITFRATE R
Rl REEERSBRITH/HLR
PR IR 1T 17 SR AT B 2 R B 3 N B
* o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
Directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments of entities which are quoted
in stock exchanges in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to other price risk.
However, the management has appointed a team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should that needs arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at
the end of the reporting period. A 10% higher/
lower are used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in equity price. If the prices of the respective
equity instruments had been 10% higher/lower,
pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$224,452,000 as a result of the changes in
fair value of financial assets held-for-trading. No
sensitivity analysis is presented for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Group's exposure to other price risk for
structured deposits and financial assets at FVTPL
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018:
investment funds recognised as AFS investments
at fair value) are not included in the above analysis
as the management considers that such exposure
is insignificant.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BIEEMREEBEERBE @)

5 m e (&)
(ii)) B ER R

AEBBEBETRAZESFREZR
Bk AERER BEFBE
BEFTAETRRRZREESER
& B o ARE 2 RABRERE
EEPRBEBZANLPEREZ
PR TR o 7N & 53R i 37 S R A
574 T A& % 5 H b B 1% &
oA EEEEREZEE—HEAR
ERERRRYENETEREZE
HrEmER -

BB DI

T X RE DT TR R4 B R AR
BRAEBRREBMET - £ T
HK10% AEREHRAERESE
AJRE B 2 FTE o WEAEBERAT
BEE®RLEATEKI10%  BIEHZE
—E—+tF+A=+—HLFE
ZHRBRISANERBIEEEZS
BMEEAARBEESEMN, WL
224,452,000 T - WEREH ZE =
E-NE+-_A=+—HItFE:
DIGRRE AT -

HREEERASBHEEARY TE
R HARERGEBEERAREZA
REFARZZEREE (R=F
—NF-A—HERTFEMBRE
EQFIWA : REESRANE
ERAAHEERE) TEERME
BRI ARG A LR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, other than those financial
assets whose carrying amounts best represent the
maximum exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties
failure to perform their obligations at the end of the
reporting period is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Accounts receivable arising from contracts with
customers and accounts receivable arising from property
rental income classified as held-for-sale

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team to compile the
credit and risk management policies, to approve credit
limits and to determine any debt recovery action on
those delinquent accounts receivable arising from
contracts with customers. Before granting credit to
these customers, the Group reviews the credit quality
and defines credit limits by these customers. Limits
attributed to these customers are reviewed once a year
and each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the
credit quality of these customers and seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables so as to
minimise credit risk.

For accounts receivable arising from property rental
income classified as held-for-sale, the management
of the Group has conducted credit checks on tenants
and requested rental deposits from the tenants as part
of their normal leasing process. Stringent monitoring
procedures are in place to deal with overdue debts. In
addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debtor to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9
(2017: incurred loss model) on accounts receivable
individually or based on provision matrix. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BEEMREEEEZRBE®)

=B BB R B E TS

RZF-N\F+-_A=+—8 KE@
EXABRNSAEERRNZEERE
ESN MR EHE - BF T REET
HEME AIAKERAZZEXEER
B R B R &R B M ISR R AT SR 22 48
HAOHREREE ZKREE -

KEEFERZEWIRARZIEBIFIE
HEZYRHEEWRAELZ BRI

RBEERRRERE AEEEEE
EXR—HABRARHIEERRRE
BERE  UtEEERBERTEBHKE
BEPAK 2 IR AE B E @ U EE
T8 -RAFFPRHEERN ~AEEE
HEEPZEEERRREFERE
BYEFZREEFRI-AREEE
FHARREERE -AKBERARE
EERRAFEEFZEEERRSK
B R ERE BRI E R T R
NS EERREERE -

RN BABEHEZMEHRERAEE
ZREEERME  AREEEECHA
FETEEREREZRUDEFESIZ
ERARHEEBRRE AEECSREE
RAEESEF AREBRER - tboh
AEBEEHEHNSABAAEBAZAK
(2] < B8 DA B4R 35 1 AT W [ 0 (B 75 FERR 5T
DHBEEE -

SO AEBRERE LMW E ER
FIR(—E—tF  DEANBEER)
H R BUBR AR BB EEBBRRN
FERBEERETREE - St
5 EERRAKENEERRD AE
1B

ROl



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables

The credit risks on other receivables are insignificant as
the management of the Group periodically monitors the
balances to ensure that the counterparties are viable to
settle the debts.

Restricted bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risks on restricted bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and authorised banks in Hong
Kong, the PRC, the UK and Singapore with high credit
ratings.

As of 31 December 2017, the Group has concentration
of credit risk on the loan note receivable as
disclosed in Note 29 amounting to approximately
HK$1,472,118,000 and the Directors considered
its credit risk is limited because the counterparty is
a company listed on the Stock Exchange and the
counterparty is able to settle the interest, arrangement
fee and advisory fee of loan note receivable to the
Group in accordance to the repayment schedule stated
in the subscription agreement.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and the loan note receivable as disclosed above,
the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers and across diverse geographical areas.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BIEEMREEBEERBE @)

EEm R E T (F)

H At JEW TR

HRAKEEEEEMERGHIARR
BF A AENER - AREME KRR
ZEERBMTEN -

IR BIRTT FF A R ARTTAE £R

HREF T ABEREEFARBETS
EEMRNBITREREEFENEL -
MR - B RO R AR ERTT R IR
BIRITERMRITEBZEERRER -

R—ZE—+F+-_A=Z+—H K
SENGEERBRETRERERE
B (MM 29T E) €8 ALY
1,472,118,0008 T MAREFH AR
R Emz AR BHFFHRENR
BREVZMAZETERRISAE
EEKERZBEZME  ZHEBANE
MER WMEEREERBRRABR -

BEABRBASEEFRNRITHRE
B R EXABEZRREREEDN
STHEERRN  AEEALESAES
EERBRBARETXZHFIRER
AR 3, -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47.

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

ST E @

(b) b EE R REREEK &)

=B m B R E TS (F)

REE 2 NEMEE A B AT AR FTE 245 A

comprises the following categories: N R Rl

Internal Accounts Other financial

credit rating Description receivable assets

R RS E R AR it PE AR X Hith e mEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired

EYEN RS FHEHRRE BB EEM 2HEREEBE- R2EABRREES

BT REERIE b

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but  Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
usually settle after due date credit-impaired

BRzE BEBEABXRNEBHEREEN EATR 2HBEHACEESE- 2@AEHEES
B ER A BRI REERIE b

Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
credit risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired credit-impaired
information developed internally

RER FRADEEER  BYVIIHRREE 2HEHEESE- 2HEHREEEE-
[&\Bz B K fiE = RMEERIE RMEERIE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-
credit-impaired impaired impaired

B8 BETNEECFERBELEE >HEREEEE- 2HEBEEEE-

BEEERE BEfEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

i 3H ERBERTEBABABREVRRASE S EME & FEM A
WEmEEEMKA R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BIEEMREEBEERBE @)

EEm R E T (F)

TREFMRNEEFEETRBESBER
BreMEERRZEERR

assessment:
Internal 12-month or Gross
2018 Notes credit rating lifetime ECL carrying amount
HK$'000 HK$'000
12 A=
HIFEHE
—E-N\F Bt £ ABEETR FGEER BERHEE
FHET FHET
Financial assets at
amortised costs
REBEEATIIRZ
THREE
Accounts receivable 28 (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 7,147
(provision matrix)
JE W AR K (Mt5E1) > HEBEEEE
(BB ERE)
Accounts receivable arising 34 (Note 2) Lifetime ECL- 85,377
from property rental (M$3E2) not credit-impaired
income classified Watch list 2 HATEHA
as held-for-sale BREE SEE1E
-BIEERE
SEABIELREZYWEES
WA B 2 PRI BR 3K
Other receivables 31 (Note 3) 12m ECL 3,646
H h fE U kI8 (fFEE3) 12 & A 78 83
EEEE
Loss Lifetime ECL— 10,027 13,673
B8 credit-impaired
ZHATEHA
EEEE
-=8RE
Bank balances 33 Low risk 12m ECL 1,167,954
HRITAEER 1K /2 b2 12 & A 78 51
EEEE
Total 1,274,151
st
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes:

1. For accounts receivable, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL
on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
internal credit rating.

2. For accounts receivable arising from property rental
income classified as held-for-sale, the Group uses past
due status and historical settlement arrangement to
assess whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. The management of the Group
concluded that such receivables were classified as “Watch
List” based on internal credit rating as at 31 December
2018.

3. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BEEMREEEEZRBE®)

=B m B R E TS (F)

fiat -

1. BERERIFME  AEECEREEY
BHmEEREIRAZ BB L2 H
EHEEB R EEERE AKEE
BRABRBEEEZEREETEBE
EBE  YARBEEFFETIR -

2. BoBARELEZMEHESUAES
Z MR T - AEEE BB SRR
MES#EERHEEEEERRET
RIER AR BEEM - AREERE
BiE - ZEWHKIER —E—N\F+_HA
ZS+—BERABEEFEDERIE
RBE] -

3. HAMEERRERNE  AEBEER
CEHER AT G ERERR B VSR
VAR R AR LTt o

No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Al \EEEEED #at
FET FHET FET
Other receivables E b R U SR IB 10,027 3,646 13,673

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers
in relation to its operation. The following table
provides information about the exposure to credit
risk for accounts receivable other than those accounts
receivable arising from property rental income classified
as held-for-sale which are assessed based on provision
matrix as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired). Accounts receivable arising from
property rental income classified as held-for-sale with
gross carrying amounts of HK$85,377,000 as at 31
December 2018 were assessed individually.

ERAEKBEFERREE . —#H &
SEMEERESH T FEANSE
BEFE - TRANZHPEHEEEE (&
EEREBE) BEARR_ZT—N\F+=
A=+ —BIREREBB(E 2 EUER
K (GBLBABELEZMERS KA
EENZEREETIN BREEEEER
R EEZERN - RZE—NF+ZA
=+—H  #RM|ES5377,000/8 T2
PEABEHECWERSRAEEZ
FEM IR B E BT R AR -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BIEEMREEBEERBE @)

Credit risk and impairment assessment =B R R A ETE ()
(Continued)
Gross carrying amount ABRREE
Average Accounts
Internal credit rating loss rate receivable
HK$'000
ABEEFR FiEEE BE Uk BR X
FHET
Low risk 1K = Fax 0.95% 3,368
Watch list Buas 3.25% 1,247
Doubtful IR 4.35% 2,532
7,147

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
provided HK$183,000 impairment allowance for
accounts receivable, based on the provision matrix.
Impairment allowance of HK$10,340,000 were made
on accounts receivable arising from property rental
income classified as held-for-sale individually.

BAFBERDRIEBEBRRFHZIEY
IR W IR 2 TR FHE At L s B 2R
EHBE 2 A S DBV AT BR 1S Z AT HE
HERMEL AR - D EHERETHE
B LATE R B85 TE JE W R IB Z B Y
SR EH -

REBEE-_ZE—N\F+-A=Z+—HLF
FER - 2N 5 AR IR 7 8 S P s B LU AR 3K
R1£183,0008 L2 BEREE WO
PEARBEHEZWERSBRAELEZ
JFE W3k TR BE 8) 1E H R (B 8 % 10,340,000
T
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €@ T B @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BB EKEEBFERBER &)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B R R A ETE ()
(Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TR THEWRRER 22 HBEHE
that has been recognised for accounts receivable: BEBEc#8 -

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

- provision - individual - individual

matrix assessment assessment

(not credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

g3 2HES gL
REBR REBR FEBR
-BEkER - f& Bl sF - {EBIEF5

(BREERE) (BREERE) (EERE) @t
THT FER THT FET
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZZE-tE+=R8
under HKAS 39 Zt-A(REEE
S ERE395) - - 36 36
Adjustment upon application RERBENERE
of HKFRS 9 LRI SRR AE - 6,479 - 6,479
As at 1 January 2018 R=E-N\¥-A—-H
- As restated - K& - 6,479 36 6,515
Changes due to financial R—A—B®%R
instruments recognised as at SRMIAMKE
— 1 January:
Q. ~ Eliminated on disposal of — &K B D AR
(:,: subsidiaries (Note 50(d)) (B 50(d)) - - (36) (36)
= ~ Impairment losses recognised -BRRZREEE 183 10,340 - 10,523
g
T As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E
% tZA=+-H 183 16,819 - 17,002
2
“ The Group writes off accounts receivable when there EREMEREBARBARENEEY
C. is information indicating that the debtor is in severe mEHERNR  WEEHRACDEER
3. financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of P EARERFNERBKERD S
§_ recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under HBBEMF (AREEHEERE) K&
> liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, 5] = Hif 5 PR U AR 3R o 2 M SH A9 PR IR 3K
§ or when the accounts receivable are over two years past HTZHITEBHLR -
2 due, whichever occurs earlier. None of the accounts
g receivable that have been written off is subject to
g enforcement activities.
S
(0]
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €@ T B @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BB EKREEBFERBER (#)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B R R A ETE ()
(Continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TRIIRE BN E R R K& A U
allowances that has been recognised for loan note FRIBFER 2 1R 2 ¥0R -

receivable and other receivables:

Lifetime

ECL

(credit-
12m ECL impaired) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

1218 A EHEMY
BRUEE FEBR

EBE  (EERE) #st
FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 December 2017 R=-Z—tF+=HA=+—H
under HKAS 39 (REEBETERE395) - 7,750 7,750
Adjustment upon application RIER B BB & AR
of HKFRS 9 EIMBTFR 10,010 = 10,010
As at 1 January 2018 R-Z2—-N\¥—-A—H
- As restated X 10,010 7,750 17,760
Changes due to financial R—A—BER
instruments recognised SRMIAMBE
as at 1 January:
— Impairment losses recognised —ERRREEER 467 1,906 2,373
— Transfer to credit-impaired —HEEEERE (467) 467 =
— Impairment losses reversed —BREREER (10,010) - (10,010)
— Exchange realignment —ERAE - (96) (96)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZB-NF+=ZA=+—-H - 10,027 10,027 -
Changes in the loss allowance for loan note receivable REBZE_Z-N\F+A=+—RHLLF ﬁ;
and other receivables of the Group are mainly due to EA - AEEEWEREE XA ER =
the settlement in full of loan note receivable with a HE EEBESS N EFEHNEEE %
gross carrying amount of HK$1,472,118,000 during the BUAARME(E A1,472,118,00078 7T 2 & i
year ended 31 December 2018. WERERE - I
&

AFERRE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of bank balances and cash
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from weighted average interest rate at the end of
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual net cash inflows on derivative
instruments that settle on a net basis. The liquidity
analysis for the Group's derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities
are essential for an understanding of the timing of the
cash flows of derivatives.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BEEMREEEEZRBE®)

EEERBESERE  AKEERR
MBERERRABZIRITEREEAS
KFE - UEAAKERBREREES X
MERERENDZHE -EREER
BB ZBHAIFR L ERE T E R -

TRFAVNAEETESRMABZHT
BHEMAE - RTIBBEAKERA K
EXREETHMABLRFARZIARMA
RenEmHE - ABME  THRTE
DAEAREETEREN REARE
KERGRZRITEEDFAZKRRKH
#E - EMIETEeRAEZIHAR
RETEERH - MREBEMNERLE
Reng -WABRERZEHNE A
RUBRSBRE SRR EFHHNE

.
=
al =+ °

BAN TRAVAKETESRTAZ
MEBEE DM - ZRIDIRIAFREERE
BZETARBBRENRERAFE
R -BRNEEERRANET YA YK
BUTATARSREZKERAEE
HMAKETESRMIAZRBES DN
TEa AR -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. € T B @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BA SR b B BB R BUR (&)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (E)
Liquidity table MEE K
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+_A=+—H
Weighted On demand Total
average orlessthan  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g RERS ABRRE
FHF = TR—-fAA hELE fREE
% TER TER TER

Non-derivative financial liabilities {42 REE

Accounts and bills payables ERERRRE - 737 737 737
Other payables HibEAFRIE - 44,419 44,419 44,419
Borrowings & 3.52 426,626 426,626 426,626
Loan from Tai An Capital REAREAZER - 123,585 123,585 123,585

595,367 595,367 595,367
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. € T B @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BB EKEEBFERBER &)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (E)
Liquidity table (Continued) RH Lz ()
As at 31 December 2017 RZZFE—tF+=-A=+—H
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  or less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months 1 year 1-5years  cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
nE  REXY =R ARTRE

ToME Ae-ER -E=fEA E-F -Enf RE2E% FHE
% AR ThR TR TR TR TR

Non-derivative financial FTEEREE

liabilities

Accounts and bills payables ERERRER - 249294 1,097,236 - - 1346530 1,346,530
Other payables Ef IR - 28,938 - - - 28,938 28,938
Borrowings A& 46 1537.43% 45,655 730,137 695412 3008640 2,824,756
Amount due to Tai Capital KK~ BRAZEA (%)

B - 192 - - - 192 192
Loan from Tai An Capital REXRERZER 7.00 - - 130,791 - 130,791 121,847
Other liabilities EtBE 6.50 - - 1268610 - 1268610 1,003,767

1815800 1,142,891 2,129,538 695412 5,783,701 5,526,030

Derivatives - net settlement ~ $i4£ T E-F4E

Finandial derivative contracts £ BTERY - (12,669) (80,870) - - (93,539 (93,539)
Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are MBEERERERERZIEER LAEIHA
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” AWETATRERS TR —EA | 2FHHEHE
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 AeRZE-—NF+ZA=+—80 %5HE
December 2018, the aggregate principal amounts of B2 RS E% 5426,626,0008 7T (Z T —+
these borrowings amounted to HK$426,626,000 (2017: £ :1,000,871,000% 7T) ° &5t R AN & # 2
HK$1,000,871,000). Taking into account the Group’s W RE  EERAWITIRATEEITHEE
financial position, the Directors believe that it is probable ERARERCHNEE -ESRAE Z5HE
that the banks will not exercise their discretionary rights BEEREER B RIS ETERRREES -

to demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that these borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. eI A @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BB EKREEBFERBER (#)

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEEZ R (F)
The following table details the Group’s aggregate TRAVAREENM B EREREEERK
principal and interest cash outflows for borrowings ZHEEASRFBEBE SR L EE - WF
with a repayment on demand clause. To the extent ERFBNE  AKRMRESB|RBEH
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted RZMBETFHFEFH -

amount is derived from weighted average interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

Maturity Analysis - Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based
on the scheduled repayments
HEAN-HAREH UERNAEREREERT 2 RE

Weighted Total
average  Less than 3 months to undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1month  1-3 months 1year  1-5years  cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i =f@A ARBRRE

FaRE  FR-ER -E2=f@A E-£  -EIf  RELE BEE
% TR ThRL TR TR THTL TR

Borrowings with repayment on ZERXKFHEE

demand dlause #E

As at 31 December 2018 RIB-N\E

TZA=t-H 3.5 = 1,255 440,118 = 40,373 426,626
As at 31 December 2017 RE—tF

TZA=t-A 315 1,406 6,3% 716,474 308061 1,032,335 1,000871
The amounts scheduled above for variable interest rate fis é%#ﬁZﬁiﬂﬁ?Uﬁ(\ﬁ%iﬁfﬁﬁﬁf
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are E%% RTAIE L%E‘Jf#{ﬂiﬂz%ﬂﬁ{ﬁ
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates ZFRTAREZRBATER

differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

—\FFR

fiyr
|

AHZERBRDE]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets

(@)

(ii)

Overview

Risk of distressed debt assets represents the
potential loss that may arise from counterparty’s
failure to meet its obligation or changes in
market conditions that lead to decline in asset
value. Risk of distressed debt assets can also arise
from operational failures due to unauthorised or
inappropriate purchase, disposal or management
activities, which result in the recoverable amount
of the distressed debt assets lower than their
carrying amounts. The Group's distressed debt
assets risk arises from distressed debts which
the Group classifies as financial assets at FVTPL
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018:
financial assets designated as at FVTPL).

Risk management of distressed debt assets

The Group exercises standardised management
procedures, including project initiation, due
diligence investigation, design and approval
of recovery plan and continuous monitoring
and management. The Group enhances its risk
management by strengthening investigation,
review and approval procedures before taking
up the distressed debt assets, and monitoring
measures after taking up the distressed debt
assets; enhancing risk mitigation effect through
collateral; and continuously upgrading the
management system of distressed debt assets.
Specifically, the risks to which distressed debt
assets at FVTPL (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018: financial assets designated as at
FVTPL) mainly comprise valuation risk, legal title
risk and to certain extent credit risk.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BEEMREEEEZRBE®)

TREXEENEREE
() =

(ii)

TREBEENRREENZ S
FHENIMSIERNES M SRR
EEERENEEER - TRER
BERRGAEHREERRS
B mAREREXTRENEE
REXERASENAEKEER
EREKREEE - ARENTRE
BEERBRBENAEBENGED RS
BAREAANBREZEMEE (R
“E-N\F-A-HERBTENE
RELEFIRA - BERRAR

Bt ABRZZEREE) °

TREFEERNEREE

AEEYHBEBATIE FBHASL -
YR 7 R BIE PR AL - RAE R
MEBEFRAOBTRBLCEE - A
SEBBRECWEANRAL  BEH
o WERZRERRE  IEHEMm
RBREBRRR  HEETREBEE
BEERGARBES TR 2ER
FAREESRERERKFE - B
s HEAKENBRERARERA
BRERZITREBEE(R=_F—N
F—A—HERBBMBREEL
FIAT - BERKAREFAR
HeeMAE) RREIZEEMKE
R\ - FERERERIAR —ERENE
ERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets
(Continued)

(i) Valuation risk

Valuation risk is the risk of negative impact arising
from the difference between actual results and
value estimations that the Group would use in its
management of distressed debt assets at FVTPL
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018:
financial assets designated as at FVTPL), due to
variance in factors including future cash flows,
collection period, repossession discount rate and
disposal cost, etc. Measures the Group takes to
minimise the valuation risk include:

o Perform investigation strictly on the parties
involved in the transaction (including the
debtors and the guarantors), collateral
provided, repayment sources, etc.; and

o Adopt conservative estimation on
repossession discount rate and disposal
cost when performing valuation and review
the difference between actual results and
estimation after the completion of the
disposal of distressed debt assets to improve
the accuracy of future estimations.

The Group has established an independent
valuation process for distressed debt assets.
The Group has engaged on independent
qualified professional valuer for the valuation
of distressed debt assets and the Directors
performs an independent review of the valuation
methodologies, inputs, assumptions and valuation
results. The finance department records these
items and prepares the disclosure of the distressed
debt assets, based on the independently reviewed
valuation.

47. €@ T B (@)

(b) I EREERRREEK @&

TREBEENRBREE (&)

(ii)) 15 1ER R

HERRITERBERLEAREE L
BAREFAABREZ IREBEE
(RZZE-NF-A—RERETHE
BB mEEREIFA : HERIE
AREFABREZEREE) TE
RO EERERNEES A KRB ERK
MANEE  RERRREERK
Bam  BRHR - WE 853 & A
REEERFRE - AKERRDN
B (B R b f i B 4

s HXZPRNBBEH (EH
AMERAF)  RZFRH
Hifm ERERKRRER
METERIEHEE Rk

s HEMERRARASRTHK
BEREARBEEEMA X
ETREBEHEERETKE -
REERGEREKREFEN
EZRETOMARSMHED
RERENE o

AEBRTREFEEHE T B
MEERE AEECEFEELA
BREXRMGEMBTRETEEL
TthE  MEFHHETE  BA
BiE  BREGAESERETELE
Bl - M B R F R A X RIEE
VEHNGERETREBEEN
KEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets
(Continued)

(iv) Legal title risk

Legal title risk is the risk of loss, arising from the
decrease of recoverable amount when the legal
rights to claim was partially or entirely lost due
to inappropriate daily management of distressed
debt assets such as expiry of claim period without
taking proper legal actions on time. Measures the
Group takes to minimise the legal title risk include:

. Set up alert management system to ensure
the expiry of legal claim periods related
to distressed debt assets are managed
effectively;

o Set up periodic revisiting mechanism to
monitor the conditions of collateral. Maintain
regular investigation report properly to
ensure the Group has access to the most
updated information; and

o Set up reporting mechanism of significant
event to ensure immediate recovery action
be taken when certain risk elements emerge.

47. €@ T B (@)

(b) b EE R REREEK &)

TREBEENRBREE (&)

(v) R

ERERRIANTREBEERR
BEETEEHH DR IEER
Ik - {6 B & R D IE S
BEVRTBENE - IR KRB IBEBE
ALY R R K o 7N 5 [ T ER R AR
EREERRNEREE:

o RURERDHUERRL
BERERTREBEENRR

FA

s RBUYTEHESHAEHE H
BiRmETES YK ED
HEREECRE REX
SEEEREERNERL &

s RBUBRFEBEHE
R % 3R L B R 3= Al 37 BN SR BN
REHEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets
(Continued)

(v)  Credit risk

Certain distressed debt assets at FVTPL (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018:
financial assets designated as at FVTPL) may be
subject to credit risk. Depending on the status of
the obligor of distressed debt assets, the Group
may decide to pursue repayment from the obligor
instead of disposing it to third party, credit risk
arises in such situation.

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may
arise from a customer or counterparty’s failure to
meet its obligation. Measures the Group takes to
minimise the credit risk of distressed debt assets
include:

o Manage the creditworthiness of
counterparties using independent credit
rating on the counterparties as reference;

e Select counterparties with appropriate
creditworthiness and repayment capability;
and

o Require counterparties to provide collateral
to cover the credit exposure.

47. €@ T B (@)
(b) BIEEMREEBEERBE @)

TREBEENRBREE (&)

v)

IFEER

ETHRAREFABRZTIRER
BEEW-_Z-—/\F—A—HER
ERMBHmELERNEIRA : FBE
REBARMEFAERZSREE)
TQEQEEW{;E\H R *ETFTEL\
BEENBBAMRI - REFER R
EMEBEBAEEMEBEEELS
FE=F EREATEELEFEER
fa o

FERBFEXRERPXEFHE
NITHRERNBERR - NEEFT
ERRBRETREREEEERR
IS ERIE -

s Z2EBUEEFENER-
HHFAHERKETUEE

s EEABEEFERKFEME
BRENNE T - Rk

o ERYEFHEHEMMINE
TEERBRERE -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €M T B (@)

(0 ERMTAMNDIAETE

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
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instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
Directors are responsible to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
The Directors works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

AHFEREEBARENAEE TR E
REERSRABENAALENEFR -

AREFNEREGERESF

AU BHREEN  AREXRISMTA
BAREAE -EFAREEQLER
EMEESERM R AR -

ERFARER  AEEEAEERA
BERMSEE - EYEF —BROEA
BZBERAT AEERBEFE=T/ER
HEMETHRE EFTUEAAER
SMER A ERD - AR EEE O EA S ER
M7 Ko 3 A BRI



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A P RRN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— N\F+_-A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €@ T B @)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial () SRITENAARBETE @R
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and FEFULEMEER LA EGTENE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value BEERTHBEGHALE

on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial AEEFDEMEERSHABBERER
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each LHRIEANERE - TR E BN
reporting period. The following table gives information METZEeMEEREMEBENRR
about how the fair values of these financial assets and B (L H 2 A7 A )b B 5l R A2
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the B EBER -

valuation technique and inputs used).

Financial assets/ Fair value
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key inputs ~ Sensitivity
tHEE/HAR RUATRENARE MMEER HERGRIZEBAHE B
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-N\F Bt
TR TAL
Financial assets N/A  Asset-2244524  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market /A
held-for-trading
RIEEEZSREE PER BE-2M454 F-EH EETSABREAE oy lii
Financial liabilities held- N/A Liabiity-6,600  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market N/A
for-trading
RlEEEZSRER TER BfE-6600 F-Ef  ERTSMREAE MR
Financial derivative Asset-Nil  Asset-93539  Level2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are -~ N/A
contracts estimated based on forward exchange rates

(from observable forward exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period) and contract
forward rates

ERITEAN BE-# AE-9350 Z-BR CHABGRE -ARREREDNERE TER
HEX (HREHRNTERNEAER
i) R MR

=

AFS investments N/A  Asset-47,119  Level2 Derived from quoted prices based on net N/A

asset value of the investment funds

AL ERE PEA | AE-4M9 FZER RORBREASEEGEVEAREZ TER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €@ T B @)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial () SRIENAAREBETE @R
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and REBULEMBEZ AL BTENE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value BEEREHBERGBHALHE (E)

on a recurring basis (Continued)

Financial assets/ Fair value
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key inputs ~ Sensitivity
SRHEE/SRER WUATBENALE MESE RERFREIEBALE $BE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-N\E ZE-tF
TR TAL
Financial assets at FVTPL - Asset - 10,247 NA  Level 2 Market comparable approach N/A
- distressed debt
assets Reference to the recent transaction price of
the distressed debt assets without adjustment
BAREFABEZ | RE-10247 TR FoER  WRLEK Tiar
TREE-TREKE
-3 BELYRENAR, TREREE LS
RHER
Financial assets at FVTPL Asset - 584 NA  Level3 Asset-based approach A significant increase in the net asset
- unlisted equity value used would result in a significant
securities Derived based on the net asset value of the  increase in fair value, and vice versa.
unlisted invested entities
BAREHARRZ EE-584 MER  #ZER EEERE RRNEEFEMABENESHA
SRAE-¥IT REHABEN K2R
RAES REERNE I TREEREEBETE
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47. €@ T B (@)
() ERMIEMARENE @

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

FEFUBEMEERA L ETENE
HEERTHEENALE ()

Financial assets/ Fair value
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key inputs ~ Sensitivity
tHEE/SHAR RUATRENARE MMESR HERTRIEAAHE $BE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-N\E ZE-tF
TR TAL
Financial assets N/A  Asset-446,660  Level3 Market comparable approach Asignificant increase in the market
designated as at price per square meter used would
FVTPL (distressed debt Market price of comparable properties per ~ resultin a significant increase in fair
assets) square meter, by taking into accounts of value, and vice versa.
future construction cost to complete, size,
locations and conditions and environment of A significant increase in repossession
properties and repossession discount rate discount rate used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
BERRAETAR PEA  AE-M6660 E-ES mHEUBE FERNEGTHRTENAR LA S
HIERAE BHAREREENM  RZIHA -
ABRLENEGT AR MENEH RN
EIARTIREREA HE -LERYK FMEANKEFRENARE LHKE
RRERARRE SR E BRABRETRE  R2MA -
Structured deposits Asset - 200,143 Asset-89,020  Level 3 Discounted cash flows A significant increase in bank interest
rates used would result in a significant
Expected yields of 3.2% t0 4.1% (2017: increase in fair value, and vice versa.
4.0% t0 4.1%) of money market instruments
and debt instruments invested by banks and A significant increase in discount rate
a discount rate that reflects the credit risk of  used would result in a significant
the banks decrease in fair value, and vice versa.
ERIER BE-200143  AE-8900 H-Ef  EEBLRE FERNRERREN AR LA BE

BOABRETR RZHHA -
BElGEARTRENE BT TAN
ERIAN32%E41%(Z3—+5F:
40%E41%) URRBETESRRY
BRE

FERNERZHAR LI REHA
RERETR - R2HH -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €@ T B @)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial () SRIENAAREBETE @R
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and REBULEMBEZ AL BTENE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value BEEREHBERGBHALHE (E)

on a recurring basis (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements EZERAAEGECEHER
Financial
assets
Year ended 31 December 2018 at FVTPL
HK$'000
BRARE
STABRZ
SREE
BE-Z—-N\F+-A=+—HLEE FHET
Opening balance BR 4 84 446,660
Recognised in profit or loss (Note) REZPER () (13,316)
Purchases HEE 10,678
Disposal & (428,029)
Exchange realignment PE 3 FE (5,746)
Closing balance HAR 4584 10,247

Financial assets

designated
as at
Year ended 31 December 2017 FVTPL
HK$'000
s:\_:] ﬁ%_‘é\f?%
2. BARE
C FAERZ
% TREE
g BE-T— L4t A=1—BULFHE FHT
T
% Opening balance B 452,600
5 Recognised in profit or loss (Note) REFPER (M) 80,601
“ Purchases BE 329,760
C Disposal & (448,890)
3. Exchange realignment ME H SR 32,589
§- Sl
> Closing balance BSR4 84 446,660
=)
% Note: The amount included an unrealised loss on fair value W : 2T —tF+=-A=+—81
3 change of approximately HK$50,213,000 (2018: Nil) in FE BRATEEAAEEHERY
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 50,213,000 T (ZF—\F : &) B
% comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December AAAGEBERREMEERER -
> 2017.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The Directors consider that the impact of the
fluctuations in expected yields of the money market
instruments and debt instruments and discount rate
to the fair value of the structured deposits were
insignificant as the structured deposits have short
maturities, and therefore no reconciliation of Level 3 fair
value measurements of structured deposits is presented.

There were no transfers in different levels of the fair
value hierarchy among Level 1, 2 and 3 during the
reporting period.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures required)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that are either:

e  offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position; or

. not offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the offsetting criteria are not
met.

47. €@ T B (@)
() ERMIEMARENE @

FEFUBEMEERA L ETENE
HEERTHEENALE ()

EZBRAAEFTEZHE(E)

HRZEFEBEFRIBERE  KE
ERREBMSTARBB T AR
SERARBRENRBEEEBETRLD
RENFEITER - MELIEZT
ERBUERE=ERAEAEZHE -

RABRERAN  AREFERFE— R
—ERzELETRSREER -

FEENEHEEREHBERBHALE
WHBREEMEE (BRAABRERE
BEMEE)GBALE

EFRA  RELRRLRHTREGA
B RR B R R AR Z SR
SERSBARZREERLA LA

o+

Eo

TERAES 2 HERRXAIAHNITE
FREERFIBUBZEM AR E
BEREBAME  BE:

s RAKBEHZEEMBARRIBERAE
B =X

o RATHAEEERE  WENZEEY
AR R AR -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €@ T B @)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial () SRIENAAREBETE @R
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and FrEFNLHEERCHBEBHAALE
financial liabilities that are not measured at WHBEREMEE (AR BEREER
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value AEEMEE)FERLE (E)

disclosures required) (Continued)

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement BRERAEEEREBEFRALEEARA
made between the Group and Hong Kong Securities (BAHE] KRR HHEE uTE’]H
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC"), brokers and BIFREEERE AEEREEET R
dealers, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set BTN ERREEHSLESEE
off the money obligations receivable and payable with WKW R ERNFEEE MAXREE
HKSCC and brokers on the same settlement date and EERFHALELE -

the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

(d) Financial assets and financial liabilities (d) ZHEEZHEMRRNESREE
subject to offsetting arrangements kemas
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject T - AEHB TR E L
to offsetting, enforceable master netting BUGBRARY B EERLHEE
arrangements or similar agreements
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+E+=-A=+—8H
Gross amounts
of recognised Net amounts
financial assets of financial
Gross amounts (liabilities)  assets (liabilities)
of recognised set off in the presented in
financial consolidated  the consolidated
assets statement of statement of
(liabilities)  financial position  financial position Net amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI PR
ERReE DWIEE SN Ve
BE(8E) ZLERALHE o X
aE BEBREE ABEGBR)EE HE
THL THL THL THL
Description it
Accounts receivable from clearing ~ JEYtEE Ef7
houses 108,286 (91,123) 17,163 17,163
Accounts payable to clearing houses &1 £ & 3118 (103,250) , (12,127) (12,127)
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting arrangements
(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements (Continued)

The gross amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities and their net amounts as presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position, both of
which have been disclosed in the above tables, are
measured as follows:

e Amounts due from HKSCC, brokers and brokerage
clients — amortised cost

. Amount due to HKSCC — amortised cost

The amounts which have been offset against the related
recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position or
subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements are measured on the same basis as
the recognised financial assets and financial liabilities.

No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
or similar agreements as at 31 December 2018.

47. €@ T B (@)
d) ZEEZHEFRENEREE

RE@aE@

B TR ITRFREEL A
B GBEERYTHEEREHMEE
(4&)

ERABERGEE W BRI RERZ 5K
TREELRERABNARERFHEY
BIATHAGE

s RUBEGH RERBEEFPK
TR — #SHR AN

s RBNBFEGEFHR-BHKA

RAEE RS MR RERNER ZHE
MeRmEERSRABHEEE  HXA
SREIMERIT 2 RFREE A BEUR
PARRNERE RECHEREREE
ke AERR ELEE -

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H0 #ES
MEERCRABGEAEFELEKE  BH/M4
RIFREE RS EUTHE -
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48. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 48. 3R K@ R 5+ &
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The Group has retirement plans covering a substantial portion
of its employees. The principal plans are defined contribution
plans.

AEBERE-HERREARBOEE 2 RIK
FtEl - TR /R ERNKEE -

The Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate the RATHEEWEB A RRERSERARES T
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the rules and EEERMBABIRBELEEERAES T

regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority. The Group’s employees are required to join the
scheme. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregated income with a cap of HK$1,500 per
employee per month.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, Singapore and
the UK, in compliance with the applicable regulations of
respective jurisdictions, participated in various pension
schemes operated by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments. These subsidiaries are required to make defined
contributions to these schemes at a fixed percentage of their
covered payroll. The Group has no other obligations for the
payment of its staff's retirement and other post-retirement
benefits other than the contributions described above.

The total contributions in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to
HK$4,024,000 (2017: HK$5,070,000).

g - AEERERBHAZNEFE - AKED
BTEEREHRFRERABEREERHRR
WARS%#HK - ERAREREES A 1,500
BT e

REBTEREERERRL - ARRHPE
MM RAENBARE2ESZEREHEE
MBAEEZZHERSE - ZFMER
AAR LR EIMREF E ZBEE B D LA
ZERFEIE L E R o Bk L RN - K
SEIEE M E TRKREMBRINETE
MEELE -

HE-_Z—N\F+-_A=Z1+—HLEFEBEHR
AREFEAEMEERIRNG Z2EHKAE
4,024,000/ 7T (=& —+4F : 5,070,000/ 7T ) °
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EEWEEE

49. ASSETS ACQUISITIONS 49,

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
completed a material acquisition in acquiring controlling
interests in certain companies at a total consideration of
approximately HK$607,570,000. They did not operate
any business prior to the respective date of acquisition
and accordingly, the management of the Group considers
the nature of the acquisition as acquisition of assets in
substance and the considerations have been attributed
to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on the relative fair values of the individual items.
Acquisition-related costs had been excluded from the cost
of acquisitions and recognised directly as an expense in the
year when incurred within “other operating expenses” line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Acquisition of Tai Infinite Group

On 5 January 2017, the Company entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Chua pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to purchase the entire equity interest of
the Tai Infinite Group and to accept the assignment of loans
from former shareholder of the Tai Infinite Group amounted
to approximately HK$493,503,000. The principal asset of the
Tai Infinite Group is the commercial property units located on
79th Floor of The Center, Central, Hong Kong, which is being
valued at approximately HK$606,529,000.

The acquisition has been completed on 24 March 2017 (the
“Completion Date”) and the consideration was satisfied by
the allotment and issuance of 446,742,544 ordinary shares of
the Company with par value of HK$0.05 each. The fair value
of the ordinary shares of the Company issued, determined
by using the published price per ordinary shares available
at the Completion Date at HK$1.36, was amounted to
approximately HK$607,570,000 and resulted in the increase
in share capital of HK$22,337,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$585,233,000.

REBEE-ZT—+tF+A=+—BHIHF
ER AEBEERK—BEBENERED
607,570,000 & TR T ARIERER 2 &
AYEEE FEIERAFESSAWEBE
AIEETMER Bt A5BEEERE

ENREREREE QAR EFSZAESE
ABERMAZERE - WESHEABKAD
T BR AT FEG  YREABREREME
M ER I EMEER I AEENFERR
ERRFAX -

WEALZER

R_ZT—+F&—ARB  ARRJEEL LR
VEEWE Bt AREREBEREBARAES
EEBRERENBAZESENBRRERE Y
Ai A 3R & 7K #493,503,000/8 7L - KEEB ~
FEEEAMNNEBPIRFPEPLIIEZE
EWESBN - H{H{E4606,529,0007% T °

WEEEER-T—tF=A=-1+mA ([
BB K RERARARERET
446,742,544 BRAE A/0.05B T2 &
BREMN ARFEBITEAEABRNALE
(REKBHMNTREBEREEHER1.36
B ITEFE) #1607,570,00078 7T © I B H R
AN 12 A122,337,0008 JT M A% 17 355 B 18 hn 49
585,233,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFE
49. ASSETS ACQUISITIONS (cContinued)

Acquisition of Tai Infinite Group (Continued)

The relative fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed of Tai Infinite Group at the acquisition date are
analysed as follows:

49. EEWEEE (@)
WIEKEEE (&)

AERERBBEEERIAZERERKER
M2 BERARETIAFTT ¢

HK$'000

FHET

Investment properties REYE 606,529
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 4,250
Intangible asset mLEE 25
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H W GRIE - Re RIBNRIEA 310
Accrued liabilities and other payables Bt B EREMENFIE (2,568)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIBEE (976)
Loans from a former shareholder AR R E R (493,503)
Total identifiable net assets acquired PRk B8 m] s Rl & 2 S E 4R 58 114,067
Assignment of loans from a former shareholder AR R B R iR 493,503
Fair value of consideration settled by share allotment MM EELEE 2 REZ ARE 607,570

Details of the acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 January 2017 and 24 March 2017,
respectively.

WEEECFBINERALNTHEARE
—+EF—ARAR-_ZE—+E=A=-+mMA

ZRE -
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50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN
ASSOCIATE

(a) Disposal of Leon Property Limited
(“Leon Property”)

On 18 September 2017, the Group had entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of its entire equity interest of
Leon Property, which engaged in property investment
activities, at a cash consideration of GBP52,719,206
(equivalent to approximately HK$557,080,000). The
disposal was completed on 18 September 2017 in
which the Group lost control of Leon Property. The net
assets of Leon Property at the date of disposal were as

50. HEMB AR R —BEE QT

(a) H % Leon Property Limited

([ Leon Property |)

RZE—tFNLA+TNB  AEBEHE—
EBUE=HEINEEHE UHEE
7 Leon Property (Kt EW X% &5 8)
2R - IR & (B /52,719,206 %1
& (F 5 7% 49557,080,000/870) ° H&
BER-ZZ—tFNLA+TNBREK B
% B 75 % B K Z # Leon Property 2 12
# ° Leon Property /A & B H 2 & & F
(ERURNE

follows:
HK$'000
FHBT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which & EZRFIENEEREBEDS T :
control was lost:
Investment properties SE-C7ES 1,189,720
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HihfEIGRIE « & RIEN IR 677
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 1,946
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRR 714
Accrued liabilities and other payables JEFTEE R H AR A (7,535)
Borrowings BE (616,056)
Tax payable FERTEIR (6,194)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 563,272
HK$'000
FHET
Gain on disposal of Leon Property: i € Leon Property 2 i35 :
Consideration received BB 557,080
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (563,272)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the &R B A RE EFEMEZR
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from ENoEEERc R ERLER
equity to profit or loss 53,452
Gain on disposal included in other gains and losses H & Uz (FF AE MUk zE &5 18) 47,260
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 50. HEMBARK —BEE QTR
ASSOCIATE (Continued) (%)
(a) Disposal of Leon Property Limited (a) H % Leon Property Limited
(“Leon Property”) (Continued) (Leon Property |) (#)
HK$'000
FET

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Leon tH £ Leon Property EE 2 R ERAFE ¢

Property:
Cash consideration ReRE 557,080
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BEHERITESRLIRS (714)
Net cash inflow RERANFHE 556,366
Details of the above disposal were set out in the LB EZEBEHRAAAFTBEHA T
Company’s announcement dated 18 September 2017. —tFNRATNRZAE -
(b) Disposal of Mason (b) HEEE

On 13 July 2017, the Group had entered into a sale RZZFE—+tFtLtA+=H AEHH
and purchase agreement with an independent third —BBAUBE=FITAUBEEWRE A
party to dispose of its entire equity interest of Mason EERBEZ2EBRE BeREAR
at a cash consideration of US$20,000,000 (equivalent 20,000,000 2 7T (#8557 49 155,000,000
to approximately HK$155,000,000). The principal asset BIL) BERLERBZETEEER
of Mason is an aircraft at the date of disposal and the R NHEEKZA  AEERFX
disposal was completed on the same date in which the EHBEZENE - BENEHEBBHY
Group lost control of Mason. The net assets of Mason BEFENT :

at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
FATT
Analysis of assets over which control REEHENEED W
was lost:
Property, plant and equipment M - RE R&E 144,021
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HMEWRIE - e RIEN A 6,019
Assets disposed of BEHEEE 150,040
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 50. HEKHB AT R —EEE QT
ASSOCIATE (continued) (#&)

(b) HEEBE @

(b) Disposal of Mason (Continued)

HK$'000
FHET
Gain on disposal of Mason: HEBEZWE !
Cash consideration ReRE 155,000
Assets disposed of BEHEEE (150,040)
Gain on disposal included in other gains and losses H & Uz (FF A E b Uk zE 2 E518) 4,960
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Mason: HEBREELEZBESRATEHE
Cash consideration RERE 155,000
Consideration receivable JEYR(E (7,750)
Net cash inflow HERANFHE 147,250

(c) Disposal of Excel Fine () H & Excel Fine

On 23 October 2017, the Group had entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of its entire equity interest of Excel Fine
at a cash consideration of HK$738,000,000 and the
principal asset of Excel Fine is the commercial property
units located on 79th Floor of The Center, Central,
Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
received disposal deposits amounting to approximately
HK$110,700,000, equivalent to 15% of the total
cash consideration. The remaining consideration of
HK$627,300,000 was received on 28 March 2018 and

N_E—+tF+A-+=0 "EFHE
—EBUEZHAVEERHEANBRER
{&738,000,0007% 7T ) & E 7 Excel Fine
7 2 EPRRAE - Excel Finev T BEE AR
MREBRRFPERALTIENEED ¥
B -RZT—tF+=-A=+—8H"
7N 5 B U B & 2 & 49 110,700,000 7
T HEERBRSNREN15%) B TR
627,300,000 TR =_F—\F=H
—+tNBKE  BREEREETKZ
B [7 B 25 25 % Excel Fine 2 122§ #  Excel

the disposal was completed on the same date in which Fine & BEIMEEFELT ﬁ

the Group lost control of Excel Fine. The net assets of L

Excel Fine at the date of disposal were as follows: |<

fiyr

HK$'000 I

FET i

«

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which & EZZEHENEEREEI T =

control was lost: -lm:

R

Investment properties REYZE 738,000 54|

Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE (976) ﬁ
Net assets disposed of

BHREEEFE 737,024 ‘
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 50. HEMBE AR K —E#EE QT
ASSOCIATE (continued) (#4&)
(c) Disposal of Excel Fine (Continued) () HEExcel Fine (#&)
HK$'000
FHET
Gain on disposal of Excel Fine: i & Excel Fine 2 W3 :
Consideration received 2 ER(E 738,000
Net assets disposed of BEHELEEFE (737,024)
Gain on disposal included in other gains and losses H & Uz (G AE MUk zE 2 E518) 976
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash inflow arising on disposal & Excel Fine EEX 2B &R AFE -

of Excel Fine:

Cash consideration RENRE 738,000
Less: disposal deposits received W BB E 2 Rke (110,700)
Net cash inflow HERANFHE 627,300
Details of the above disposal were set out in the FHMHEZHFBRRARABHAZT
Company’s announcements dated 21 September 2017 —+tFNAZ+—BRZZE—NF=A
and 28 March 2018. ZtNHZRAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— \F+-A=+—HIFEZ

50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 50. HEMB AR R —EBE QT

ASSOCIATE (Continued) (48)

(d) First disposal of Best Future on 18 d R=Z2—NF—A+NHBERX
January 2018 H &&=
On 17 January 2018, the Group had entered into sales RZE-N\F-—A++H KEBEHER
and purchase agreements with two independent third BEUE=FFIVNEEH=® NERS
parties to dispose of its 67% equity interest in Best R AE 47104,940,0007%8 7T H & R E 15
Future, which engaged in provision of securities and (HREBBRSREHEFSRERZSRE -
margin financing, trading and brokerage of futures HECARGRE KL BEEERBRN
contracts, asset management and money lending BEB)67% 2Bt - ZHEER=-ZE
business in Hong Kong at a total cash consideration —NEFE—A+NBEK  NEBERZBE
of approximately HK$104,940,000. The disposal was KEE e FIE o EEREE B A
completed on 18 January 2018, on which date the WEEFENT :

Group lost control of Best Future. The net assets of Best
Future at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
FHET
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which & EZRFIENEEREEDS T :
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment W - BREREE 2,233
Goodwill HE -
Intangible assets BEE =
Other non-current assets HitnIEREEE 6,356
Accounts receivable JRE U5 B 3K 76,019
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HihfEIGRIE « & RIEN IR 2,886
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRB 158,881
Accounts payable FEFBR 3R (96,746)
Accrued liabilities and other payables EETAEREMENFIE (3,375)
Tax payable FE A 18 (44)

Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 146,210
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{Z —F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 50. HEKB AT R —EEE QT
ASSOCIATE (continued) (#&)

(d) First disposal of Best Future on 18

(d R=Z2-—NF-A+N\HERX

January 2018 (Continued) HEE®K #)
HK$'000
FHET
Loss on first disposal of Best Future on RZZE-NE—A+N\BEREE
18 January 2018: 2 ER
Consideration received 2 UWER (B 104,940
Fair value of the remaining 33% equity interest BR T FE K 33% AriE 2 A Ml (BT EE)
of Best Future (Note) 31,000
Net assets disposed of BEHELEEFE (146,210)
Loss on disposal included in other gains and losses & 2 B8 (5t ARt 4k zE K &5 18) (10,270)

Note: The Group retained significant influence over Best Future
upon completion of the disposal on 18 January 2018 and
the Group has accounted for the remaining 33% equity
interest in Best Future as interest in an associate whose
fair value at the date of disposal was HK$31,000,000.

GEE

KEER-_Z-—NF-A+T\BZK
HERDEERAEEAZE AR
SEIEATER33%KE - ERR—
MEERR 2 s EARERESE
H 874 31,000,000/8 7T

HK$'000
FET
Net cash outflow arising on first disposal of BEXHEEEKEEZRSRE FHE
Best Future:
Cash consideration received on 18 January 2018 R -_Z— \F—A+ N NBUKEZHESHKE 104,940
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of BLEHEEZRITESRNIRS (158,881)
Net cash outflow BHEREFE (53,941)
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50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(e) Second disposal of Best Future on
1 June 2018

On 1 June 2018, the Group had entered into another
sale and purchase agreement with another independent
third party to dispose of its remaining 33% equity
interests in Best Future at a cash consideration of
HK$31,000,000. The disposal was completed in June
2018 and the Group has recognised a gain on disposal
of approximately HK$394,000 in profit or loss which
was calculated as follows:

50. HEMB AR R —EBE QT
(4&)

(e) R=ZZBE—_NFARAA-HEZX
HE £

RZE-—NFARAA—H AEBEEHS
—RBNE=ZRHIIVEEHZE AH
EEBZHTIBRBRE BeRER
31,000,000 7L c HERZZ—/\F X
AR RASEBR B AR & e
#7394,000%8 T AHEWT ¢

HK$'000
FET
Gain on second disposal of Best Future on RZB-NEXRA—HEZRHE
1 June 2018: EF Al &
Cash consideration ReRE 31,000
Carrying amount of interest in Best Future at the A& BEIRER 2 R E
date of disposal (30,606)
Gain on disposal included in other gains and losses H & Uz (FF A E b Uk zE 2 E518) 394
HK$'000
FHET

Net cash inflow arising on second disposal of HF - XHEEKEENRESRAFE

Best Future:

e — N\ENA—BUERERE 31,000

Cash consideration received on 1 June 2018 RZ=E

—\FFR

fiyr
|

AHZERBRDE]
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50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 50. HEMB AR R —EBE QT

ASSOCIATE (continued) (4&)

(f) Disposal of Tai United Insurance (f) HEATNRBRELHRA T
Brokers Limited (“Tai United (T ARFRB )
Insurance”)
On 26 June 2018, the Group had entered into sales and RZZB—N\FRAZTARE  *EEHE
purchase agreements with an independent third parties —BBUL=NAINERRGE  URE
to dispose of its entire equity interest in Tai United (B 472,880,000 7% 7T tH & H 7 K F{R
Insurance, which engaged in provision of insurance B(REENERBRELER) 228K
brokerage in Hong Kong at a total cash consideration E-HEER_Z—N\E+A=+—H
of approximately HK$2,880,000. The disposal was T RZ B ARE K EHAKMRR
completed on 31 October 2018, on which date the ZEESIE o KMRIBNEE AN EE
Group lost control of Tai United Insurance. The net FEMT

assets of Tai United Insurance at the date of disposal
were as follows:

HK$'000
FHT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which & EZRFIENEEREBEDS T :
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR 207
Intangible asset B EE 500
Accounts receivable JIE W5 AR 3K 120
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H At FEUGRIE ~ e RIEFRIE 6
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRB 580
Accounts payable JE - BR 3K (517)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEET BE R H AL E A (294)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 602
HK$'000
FHET
&
a Gain on disposal of Tai United Insurance: HERRMRBA S :
2
g Consideration received BB 2,880
Q. Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (602)
>
N Gain on disposal included in other gains and losses H & Utz (5T A E b U 28 I E518) 2,278
S _—
G HK$'000
O FHET
3.
§_ Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Tai HEANMRBELENRESRANEE !
> United Insurance:
=)
=)
5 Cash consideration RBENRE 2,880
z Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BEHERITESRLKRS (580)
8 S
o]
N Net cash inflow RERAFE 2,300
oo
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51. CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group has the following charges on assets for bills
payables and certain borrowings as set out in Notes 35 and
37 at the end of the reporting period:

51. EEEM

REBRREHRABEEUNTARNEE A
TERREERNEENLIF WM E3S
K37 Bk ¢

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ET—tF
FERT FET
Investment properties wEME
— Residential property units located in —MREBEZ FEYEEN
the UK (Note a) (Kzta) 856,463 1,080,848
— Commercial property units located in —[UREBEBZDERIBELE
Hong Kong classified as held-for-sale 2B (D)
(Note b) - 680,000
856,463 1,760,848
Restricted bank deposits (Note c) ZRHIERITF (3 c) - 1,117,534
Financial assets held-for-trading (Note d) BIEEE 2 eMEE (sEd) - 2,244,524
856,463 5,122,906

(@ The investment properties, insurance proceeds and
together with a floating charge over all the assets
of certain subsidiaries of the Group were pledged
to a bank to secure for a bank borrowing with an
outstanding amount of approximately HK$427,573,000
(2017: HK$489,889,000).

(b) As at 31 December 2017, the investment properties
classified as held-for-sale were pledged to a bank to
secure a bank borrowing with an outstanding amount
of approximately HK$400,000,000. This borrowing also
guaranteed by Tai He Financial Group Limited.

(c) As at 31 December 2017, the restricted bank deposits
were pledged to secure for letters of credit arising
from the purchase of petrochemical products and
metal-related products with an outstanding amount of
approximately HK$1,242,218,000.

(d) As at 31 December 2017, the financial assets held-for-
trading was pledged to securities brokers to secure for
margin financing loans with an outstanding amount of
approximately HK$1,028,403,000.

In addition to above charges on assets, as at 31 December
2017, the Group’s 8% Note with an outstanding amount
of approximately HK$620,904,000 was secured by all the
shares of two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Best Future and TU
Financial.

(@) AEEREVE REBASREER
ETHBRARMBEEAER LN ZEHR
AWEBTFRIT FAREERITE
B #4427,573,0008 L (Z T —tF:
489,889,000 7T ) Z HEIR ©

by R—B—+E+-_A=+—8 284
BELEZREMECDEMR TR - £
BAREEIETTEE 4400,000,000/%5 7T
ZHER - ZEETHANESREERFR
NERMHER -

(0 EA_7 +tE&E+-_A=+—8 TR

THEREEBUERBEERERSH

%’]1,242,218,000/%7E25ﬂ3ixuu&i
BRBERMES 2= PR

RZE—+tF+_A=+—8 #1F

EaZimﬂé?Eﬁ#ﬁ% F e
CEARXEERESBREERY

1,028,403,000‘}%732?)’21%

BREMEERDIIN AEBR _T—+F
+ZA=+—HB2ZAREESFX 620,904,000
BILZ8% ZEMME BB AR (BMEH
MAMERMER) ZFTH KM ER -

EH
I
e
33

'
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52. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 52. B ETE
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The purpose of the share option scheme is to enable the
board of directors to grant options to selected employee or
proposed employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any director) of any member of the Group or
any invested entity, any supplier of goods or services,
any customer, any person or entity that provide research,
development or other technological support, any shareholders
or any participants who contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any invested entity (the “Eligible
Participants”) as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group and/or to recruit and
retain high calibre Eligible Participants and to attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
on 17 September 2015, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 17
September 2015 and shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on the date of adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme (i.e. 16 September 2025) unless
terminated earlier by shareholders in general meeting. The
number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total shares in issue on the date of approval of the New Share
Option Scheme by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting (i.e. 125,091,243 shares) (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from
shareholders to renew the Scheme Mandate Limit on the
basis that the maximum number of shares in respect of which
any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other schemes shall not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

The Scheme Mandate Limit was changed to 525,001,985
as at the date of passing of the ordinary resolution granted
the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit (i.e. 5 June
2017). The refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit represents 10%
of the total number of ordinary shares of the Company in
issue amounted to 5,250,019,852 shares as at 5 June 2017.
The options may be granted under the refreshed Scheme
Mandate Limit do not include options that are outstanding,
cancelled or lapsed as at 5 June 2017.

BERETEENAREZRARMEENR
SEEMKE QRN EMREERNEME
BYFEER (THE2BIGEESR  BiEE
MER) EAENRRBHER  EEAEP
TR S SR E AT SR E AL E RS
EARRAB/EAEEREMREERIERE
FIEREHERMNERMN2EE ([EER2HE
FEDROBERE FRRBURE  REH
HASEELLTRELHOTR - & HE
FRBEEAHNEERSEERBEIHA
SEEEENANER -

BERER-_ZE—RAFNA+LtHBEN—
BEBRBER ARAIER_Z—AFNA
Tt BRM— BB S (BT
2D FEFERESERMABHEIZS
ZRFAATAB)RER  BHTF BIE
MR RN EAS FIRAITRLE - BRIRIE TR
B AR AT E A BE IR iR ET B (B 13
ZET-FEREFTE) BRENE R RTT
{F RS MR T T 7] T AL 3 R B ITHIRR D &K
B AETBHBEAREAREEF A it
AEFEREE A BTRMOEHN10%
(B1125,091,243 &Rz tn) ([ETEIEEREE]) -
BRIEARDRER RS MU ET M SRER
REEL A AR IR 3T S AR AE AT 8 R AT (] E At 5T &
BEERIEMKRITENERBERERS KR
NESHEETEBARRBTRHEEITR
KZ30% e

FHEIREREN BB L BT SR EREE
ZERRERERB (A -Z—t&F,AFAR)
B 5525,001,985 8% o A& F Hiat EIRER
MARRRZEEITEBRARMDBE 2 10% -
R-ZE—+EF X ARAES250,019,852 % %
Do RRBRBE B2 AT EI B AERE &
HERE ETBEEA - E—+FBAAR
MARITEE  BFEHE R BEARHE -
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52. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 52. BB IR RS ()

The terms of the New Share Option Scheme provide that in
granting options under the New Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors may offer to grant any options subject to
such terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period
of the options to be held and/or the performance criteria to
be satisfied before such options can be exercised and/or any
other terms as the board of directors may determine in its
absolute discretion. The board of directors will also have the
discretion in determining the subscription price in respect of
any options, provided that the relevant requirements in the
Listing Rules are complied with.

The exercise price of the option is to be determined by the
board of directors provided always that it shall be at least
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer for the grant of the option (which is
deemed to be the date of grant if the offer for the grant of
the option is accepted by the Eligible Participant), which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the exercise price of the
option shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of
one share; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable to the Company on acceptance
of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company to any Eligible Participant (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding options), in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. Any further grant of options
in excess of such limit must be separately approved by
shareholders with such Eligible Participant and his close
associates abstaining from voting.

No share options were granted under the New Share Option
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

¥R RO R 81 IRBORE - IRIBFT RIS
ARNBRER EFERAUBARMEME
Pk WiEMBRAAITEBBRENARER
B B&EHR R RAETNREB RN
ERRGEER,/ REERA2RNBEETH
R R A 5K - 8T AR MARRE R E
T EZRTHAENBRESRBIMER
BNREE -

BEENTEEREZREE  MAZLR
TIH=FFNEEE  (\NBORHERE
ER(AR/RXRZA) (HENRLBEREES
BER2EERZS  URARE AR BIME
BHIRERMMIIA DU THE : () ZREE LA
HiR AE & X AR AP B ME RS H X
D FHRHE  EERENTEEETMS
AT PRERBADEE R (i) R EEE °

ROBRENENARENBSHE_+—R
(BEZB) NEER - ABRARBEAELS
NEBRENZEOERNARARNEER1.00/8
TTe RBERM AN ER 12188 HHE
AR B AR AR AT 8 R R 1 B R EL A BB B
AEMERNEERSEERIEETRHON
BiE(REDEHE CTERERITENE
M) BITEME BT RESEHTHRN K
SHE TEEATKDEITRNE 1% © i
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BRBUAME MEEEERSEEREY
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53. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows

from financing activities.

S53.REERHELANEENYEE

ERSRIEHLH
MBENEREREIERBESTEREE
BERERPHEANEIDHESREZAE -

TR AEEREEHELNRELZS (B

) 2FB REARDEL

Amount Loan
due to from
Dividends  Tai Capital Loan Tai An Other
payable HK notes Capital Borrowings liabilities Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Eff A% RE
Bx(E%) AZER
EfRE ZRE EREE ZEX #8 HfSE Eh)
T FiEn ThL ThTL Thn Fitn Tin
At1 January 2017 RZE—t5-A-A = 14728 1412116 171444 19310% 1165586 4,694,970
Financing cash flows (Note) RERSRE (W) (95,025  (14536) (1.441537)  (70958) 1259165  (57,671)  (420562)
Non-cash transactions: RS
Disposal of subsidlaries HENBAA - - - - (616,056) - (616,056)
Foreign exchange translation NERE - - - 1085 112,691 13851 1373%
Profits attributable to the third parties' interestin-~ = FRNGARENREEL
consolidated structured entities BEERET - - - - - 82,001 82,001
Dividends declared EERRE 95,025 - - - - = 95,025
Finance costs HBRE - - 10507 137,860 - 78
At 31 December 2017 RIE-tE+A=1-H - 192 - 121847 2824756 1,203,767 4,150,562
Financing cash flows (Note) BERSTE (W) (1,500,456) (192) - (593) (2441371) (1,254157) (5,196,769)
Non-cash transactions: EReRS:
Foreign exchange translation HERE - - - (6683)  (19,440) 4974 (21,149)
Profits attributable to the third parties' interestin -~ B= FRNFARENEEY
consolidated structured entities BREGE - - - - - 4546 45416
Dividends declared BERRE 1,500,456 - - - - - 1,500,456
Finance costs BE R - - - 9014 62681 - 716%
At 31 December 2018 R-2-N\E+-A=t-H - - - IBS5 4662 - 50
Note: The financing cash flows mainly represent repayment of and/ Mimd: MEBRSRETEZHEEER AERZRE

or proceeds received from loan notes, loan from Tai An Capital,
borrowings and other liabilities and payment of dividends and
exclude other capital contribution through disposal of financial

assets at FVTPL.

2 RBARERZER

A8

LV e

hEERRNESETBEERLER
ARAEFABRZEREEZEMTE -
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54. KRB XENB A RINFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\FR=ZZ—+F+_A=+—80"
2017 are as follows: AEBFENBARMFBUOT ¢

Issued and fully

Place of incorporation paid share capital/
or establishment/ registered and Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital ~attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BilEAET Ve BEARBERRAE/
MEAREH EERY dMRARER rEERGERRE TEER
2018 2017
“E-N\E C—Z-+F
Directly held subsidiaries
EREENNELT
Bestway Group International Limited BVI US$1,100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERRRHE 1,100%7T RERK
Tectron Pacific Limited BVI US§1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERLHE (E¥ REZR
Best Future BVI US§1 - 100%  Investment holding
(3 EBRAES 1% RERR
Wide Flourish Investments Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BERERRAT ERRRHE 1%7 REER
Indiirectly held subsidiaries
EREEHNEL A
Prolific Rich Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
SHERAT EBRAES (B3 RARR
Grand Shining Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
WERRAT ERRRHE 1%7 REER
Giant Silver Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding and
trading business &
RRERAT o 17 BENRREHLE it
=
Sino United Investment Management Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Trading business |
Limited W
ANBEERBRAR B 1T BR%H%
&
RRRERR (R ERAR The PRC HK$400,000,000 100% 100%  Trading business u(é,‘
f 400,000,000 7¢ BH%H E
ER
#
=T
e
K
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

54. A RRIEEM B ARNFEE @)

(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation paid share capital/
or establishment/ registered and Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital ~attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BilEAET Ve BEARBERRA/
MEAREH EERY dRRARER FREELERRE TEER
2018 2017
“E-\E -—Tt%

Indirectly held subsidiaries (Continued)

EREEHIEL 7 (&)

Sino United Energy Pte. Limited Singapore US$25,000,000 100% 100%  Commodity trading business
and security trading
business

Gl 25,000,000% T BmRHEBRERRHF
%
Tai United Asset Management Pte. Ltd. Singapore US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Security trading business
Gl 1,000,000% 7T BEFR5EH
BREAREERERAA" The PRC RMB500,000,000 100% 100%  Security trading business
e AR 500,000,000 EHRHFH

Xizang Hongrong* The PRC RMB900,000,000 100% 100%  Distressed debt asset
management

iy~ N e AR 900,000,0007C TREKEEER

AN EBREERERAR The PRC RMBS847,451,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

i AR 847,451,0007C RARR

Kanggjao® The PRC RMB10,000,000 75% 75%  Trading business

e AR #10,000,0007C B5EH

Kainarwolfram LLC Mongolia US$100,000 100% 100%  Mining and exploitation of

natural resources
G 100,000% 7 RERBERRER

Ikh Uuliin Erdenes LLC Mongolia US$100,000 100% 100%  Mining and exploitation of

natural resources
G 100,000% 7 RERBEXRRER
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

54. A RRIEEM B RTINS @)

(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation paid share capital/
or establishment/ registered and Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital ~attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BT W BEARBERRA/
MEAREH EERY dRRARER FREELERRE TEER
2018 2017
“E-\E -Tt%
Indirectly held subsidiaries (Continued)
EREEHIEL 7 (&)
San Siu Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Inactive
ZPERAT B VBT EEXHK
Citi-Elite Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
EBERAT A 1AL EELHK
Tai United Management Company Limited ~ The UK GBP1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HE B nERE
RCBG Residential (UK) Limited The UK GBP0.01 100% 100%  Property Investment
B 0.01 %4 nERE
MRB Residential Limited The UK GBP1 100% 100%  Property Investment
#E ] nERE
MRB Residential Partners LLP The UK = 100% 100%  Property Investment
(Note a)
#E (Ma) nERE
Haitong Dynamic Multi-Tranche Cayman Islands US$200,000,000 100% 25%  Fund investment
Investment Fund IV S.P. (Note b)
FHERS 200,000,000% 7T (fih) EeRE
55
H_
J:&
=
\
fir
N
i
2

AFERRE R
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)  This entity is a partnership established in the UK. No registered
share capital available.

(b)  The above-mentioned interest holding does not empower the
Group for any voting right since they are fund investment.
Details of the consolidated structured entity are set out in Notes
5 and 40.

Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.

Established as a limited liability company in the PRC.

All the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their
respective places of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the
reporting period.

54. A RRIEEM B ARNFEE @)

(@ ZEBRRERERINEHDEE - WEAH
SRR

(b) LlESERYTEFAREEMEEE
RRARERESKRE - RERBERNH
TBHEN M FES 5240

* RPBERZAIIEBELE -
# RABEKZIAERAR °

FrE X 2B ARG EER 2 MK/
PRI Z T IR E B E BT -

EERABRLERIEAEEZMBERE 4
AEBEZEEREEFERERVE -EF
BRRBINEMMBRAR ZFBERRES
RILEK °

BT B A R s B RSk s A T B
BB ERFEEKES
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55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 55. R N A KRR KRR GHEE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
FET FHET
Non-current assets FREEE
Interests in subsidiaries N INEPNCIR - £ 3,970,568 4,856,101
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 3,308 5,242
Other non-current assets HEMIEREBEE 6,000 6,000
3,979,876 4,867,343
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments E b EUFRIE « L& MFE B 1,430 5,144
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHT /&8 1 R 5RIE - 175,116
Financial assets held-for-trading BEEBEZ oM ERE - 2,110,380
Bank balances and cash RITEH KRR R 914,009 674,552
915,439 2,965,192
Current liabilities nREEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FERT B E R H M FER 58 3,230 21,720
Amount due to Tai Capital HK B AZER(HB) KA - 192
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEFTHI /B 2 Rl 5k IE 1,522,173 836,499
Borrowings BE - 1,592,964
1,525,403 2,451,375
Net current (liabilities) assets e (A8 EEFE (609,964) 513,817
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEME 3,369,912 5,381,160
Non-current liability ERBEE
Borrowings BE - 620,904 &
i
Net assets EERE 3,369,912 4,760,256 =
\

. N i
Capital and reserves BEXRHE N
Share capital AR 7N 262,501 262,501 T
Reserves fré 45 3,107,411 4,497,755 <3

&
=
Total equity R 3,369,912 4,760,256 T
%
ﬂ
| o
i
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55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

55. A R Al MR R kR R EE @
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(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AAEREED
Other
Contributed capital
Share surplus  contribution ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BARH Htx g
RDEE e 5] R BB ok
THT THT TRT THT FHL
At 1 January 2017 R=ZFT—+F—-H—H 4,341,585 159,393 = (532,511) 3,968,467
Issue of ordinary shares for RN B AR BT
acquisition of subsidiaries Lidhk (F3E42)
(Note 42) 585,233 - - - 585,233
Cancellation of share premium HTHER D REREE
and transferred to contributed ZEARBER
surplus reserve (4,926,818) 4,926,818 - - -
Dividends recognised as REDKLRE
distributions - (95,025) - - (95,025)
Profit and total comprehensive FRENREE
income for the year Yz ag - - - 39,080 39,080
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—t%+-A
=+—H - 4,991,186 - (493,431) 4,497,755
Dividends recognised as BRBHEZRE
distributions - (1,500,456) - - (1,500,456)
Other capital contribution Hix& - - 335,536 - 335,536
Loss and total comprehensive FEBBEREZERX
expense for the year B - - - (225,424) (225,424)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+_A
=+—H - 3,490,730 335,536 (718,855) 3,107,411




Five-year Financial Summary

HFHHME

The consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the ~ AEEBT R FEM B REBE LA EE B E
last five financial reporting periods as extracted from the audited ~ M B & (kB AEBE EZ LA M ERE) Bl
consolidated financial statements of the Group are summarised W

o Sl

below:
For the nine
months ended
31 December
HE
For the year ended 31 December +=R=+—H For the year ended 31 March
BHE+-A=Z+-AL%E ENEAR HEZA=T-HLFE
2018 2017 2016 2016 2015
—E-N\E “E—+fF “E-REF “T-REF “E-1fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TER TEL THL TEL
RESULTS ES
Revenue Wz 4,127,871 11,243,596 8,102,730 1,121,247 7,632
(Loss) profit for the year/period FF/HE (BE) 55 (553,393) 312,091 41,107 (116,074) (58,267)
Attributable to: AL
Owners of the Company S YNGIE 7=PN (553,243) 312,09 41,263 (116,204) (58,027)
Non-controlling interests — IR ER (150) (5) (156) 130 (240)
(553,393) 312,091 4,107 (116,074) (58,267)
As at 31 December As at 31 March
Wt-A=1+-8 R=A=1+-H
2018 2017 2016 2016 2015
“E-N\§ Tt ZTRF NS —T-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr THEx TEL T THL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Total assets BEE 4,372,770 11,169,022 10,274,019 1,887,077 775,054
Total liabilities ek (999,748) (5,986,016) (6,041,789) (1,029,167) (149,241)

Net assets REE 3,373,022 5,183,006 4,232,230 857,910 625,813
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Particulars of Properties

2

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (INCLUDING THE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CLASSIFIED
AS HELD-FOR-SALE)

RENE (BREIERFFLEZRENE)

Attributable interest

Location Usage Tenure of the Group
b 31k R#® FH FEBMELER
The Buckingham, Residential premises for rental and/or  Freehold interest 100%
6-9 Buckingham Gate, capital appreciation KAFERE

London, United Kingdom HREEENERKEEREE

No. 555 Fenggqi Road, Hotel facility for rental and/or capital ~ Granted the land use rights of 100%
Xiacheng District, Hangzhou City, ~ appreciation the property for two concurrent

Zhejiang Province, the PRC HARBERER R EE A E terms expiring on 25 June

REDTT A 2042 and 25 June 2052 for

TN T T35 & commercial and composite uses

Bl #2 ¥ 555 5% respectively.

REEARERGERE W
BWFFHHRN_TM_F
ANAZTREARZZTR-FX
AZ+ABEROME 2 L
B
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